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operations for last season, and also a copy of a letter received from
Chief White Cloud, Chief Mahsh ege shij, and others, August 6, 1893,
dated August 2, 1898 (see Exhibit A); and having been satisfied that
they had resulted beneficially to the Indians of said reservations, on
August 26, 1898, the new regulations were provided for the present
season, amending the former regulations so as to provide for the pay-
ment of Indian loggers first in order of distribution of the proceeds,
and to increase the amount to be deducted for the Indian fund from 15
per cent to an arbitrary amount of $2 per thousand feet for Norway
and $3 per thousand feet for white pine; otherwise the regulations
were the same as for last season. Copy of said regulations inclosed.

At that time an objection had been filed against said logging opera-
tions by certain Pillager Indians, dated July 26, 1898, against allowing
anyone outside of their band to go upon the Leech Lake Reservation
and cut dead and down timber.

This letter was transmitted to this office by the honorable Commis-
sioner of Indian Affairs, together with his acknowledgment of the same
to his Indian agent at White Earth, in which he said that the Indians
living on the land formerly embraced in the Leech Lake Reservation
had no more interest therein, except such as might be allotted to indi-
viduals in severalty, than the other Chippewa Indians of the State of
Minnesota, and that every Indian in Minnesota coming under that
description was equally entitled with the Leeeh Lake Indians in the
interest of the dead and down timber that can be taken from such land.

Copies of the said petition and letters are herewith inclosed, also a
copy of my letter of August 16, 1898, to Chief Ne gon e vin ais et al.,
Leech Lake, Minnesota, suggesting to them that the DPillager Indians
might, by their own efforts, secure all logging privileges on their reser-
vation, to the exclusion of outsiders, by making early selections of land
containing timber and entering into contracts with responsible parties
at the commencement of the logging season, etc. (See Kxhibit B.)

On September 28 this office received a letter from Hon. L. Fletcher,
inclosing an unsigned communication commenting upon the operations
of the dead and down timber act, and ohjecting to the same.

In reply thereto, on October 3, 1898, this oftice wrote Mr. Fletcher
that it felt compelled to enforce the law, as there was no evidence of
fraud, injustice, or carelessness in the management ot the business.
Copies of said letter and of my letter, herewith inclosed, marked
“Exhibit C.”

It having been alleged in certain newspapers, published in Minnesota,
that the caunse of the recent Indian outbreak was attributable to the
management of the logging operations on the dead and down timber
on the ceded lands of the Chippewa Indian reservations i Minnesota,
on October 13, 18398, I selected Mr. Frank J. Parke, a special agent of
this office, who was the agent who assisted Mr. J. George Wright,
Indian inspector, in his investigation of the work done by the board
of examiners under my predecessor, and who was, therefore, specially
conversant with the condition of the reservation, the timber, and the
Indians, and Mr. H. H. Schwartz, also a special agent of this office at
that time and date in Wisconsin, near the land in question, acquainted
with the conditions and people of the vicinity, both agents being law-
vers of counsiderable experience and capacity, and instructed them to
proceed at once to Walker, Minn., and confer with the honorable Com-
missioner of Indian Affairs relative to an investigation to be made by
them, after consultation with said Commissioner, relative to the logging
of dead and down timber on the ceded lands of Chippewa reservations
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that have been confirmed, and I have every reason to believe that the
operations will prove a success for the present year, though not so much
of a success or profit as they would have been if the operations had been
authorized at an earlier date, as much of the season has already passed,
but I am satistied that quite an amount of money will be realized from
the sale of this timber which would otherwise go as a gratuity to the
purchasers of the examined growing pine, under the Act of January
14, 1889. (Supra.)

The investigation, as may be seen, fully vindicated the opinion of the
office that its employees are efficient, industrious, and capable; the law
of June 7, 1897, under which the logging operations are conducted, wise,
and that the Indians are satisfied and benetited thereby.

Various representatives in Congress of the Minnesota delegation
whose districts embrace or lie near the reservations were consnlted
as to the policy of renewing logging operations for the present season,
and they expressed their approval of the management for the past
season and of a continuance of operations for this season.

Mr. W. F. Campbell, the authorized representative of the Chippewa
Nation, in a letter dated September 26, 1898, from White Earth, Minn.,
states that:

The Chippewa Indians on this reservation are unanimous in their belief that for
the first time in the history of their lumber attairs the same is being conducted
fairly and squarely and for their sole interest.

Last year this office dedueted 15 per cent of the gross amount for the
benefit of the Indian fund. Certain expenses were to come out of this,
which left a new amount to be credited to the Indian fund of 12 or 13
per cent; whereas, under the regulations in force on the unceded por-
tions of the reservation under the authority of the Indian Office, only
10 per cent was deducted for such fund. This year, under the regula-
tions in force, a larger amount, consisting ot the arbitrary sums above
mentioned, is deducted for the benetit of such funds.

On December 12, 1898, this office received, by reference from Hon.
Page Morris, a letter from Mr. J. W. Howes, from Duluth, Minn., con-
taining suggestions as to estimating the standing pine timber. A
report was called for from Chief Examiner Seelye as to the advisability
of adopting Mr., Howes’s suggestions. I inclose both his letter and
the chief examiner’s report, showing that his suggestions are no
improvement upon the present method. (See Exhibit J.)

On December 1, 1898, this office received, by reference from the honor-
able Assistant Commissioner of Indian Affairs, a copy of a letter from
William Douglas, Winnebegoshish Reservation, Minn., criticising some
of the examiners and the system of examining the standing and grow-
ing pine. I inclose his letter and a report from Chief Examiner Seelye,
denying the charges contained therein. (See IExhibit K.)

A report has been called for from Special Agents ’arke and Schwartz
on this matter, but no reply has been received at this time.

I inclose herewith a copy of a letter of the honorable Assistant Com-
missioner of Indian Affairs, dated January 5, 1899, together with a
letter of William Bonga et al., inclosing a petition from representa-
tives. of the Leech Lake, Cash Lake, and Winnebegoshish Indians,
requesting that action be taken discontinuing the estimation of pine
on their reservations. I also inclose herewith copy of a petition or
protest from Indians of White Oak Point and Mississippi bands of
Chippewa Indians against the further sale of pine timber on the eeded
Chippewa Indian lands of Minnesota, received by reference of the
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almost made me an enemy to the whites. I thoroughly understand that the mixed
Dbloods are against me. T know they arve rich off of my property and my people. I
am ready to have my revenge. 1 indorse all that (‘'hief White Hair has said at this
conncil. We object to any one Indian taking more than is allowed him, especially
the Mississippi Indians taking a large amount of sections and shutting out onr own
people. \We were willing to give one camp to the mixed bloods and one camp to
our Indians, and if this was the case we would all have a chance. I do eniphatically
object to the mixed bloods and Mississippi Indians taking all of our reservation.
You and Dr. Hart are men of influence. I call upon you, in behalf of myself and my
people, to help us and guide us in the tuture. :

SPELCH OIF WAIL BAH NUN NIE.

Myself and the Pillager Indians have lived upon this reservation for geunerations.
I want the minutes of this council sent to Washington at once. I want all of the
camps of the Mississippi Indians shut down. There has already becn large amounts
of green timber cut this winter on our reservation. The class of timber that is being
cut is a violation of the law, and is that kind of timber from which we draw our
annuity annually. I positively do oppose the manner in which we are being robbed
of our timber, not because I want to violate the law, but becanse I want the law
obeyed. The mixed bloods are the ones who are violating the law, not our people.

SPEECH OF KAY GUAY WAY BE NASH.

I want the Governmeut to have the camps of the mixed bloods, Mississippi Indians,
and white meun shut down at once. We objeet to the Brainerd Lumber Company
cutting our timber and shipping it wway from our reservution. We will hold a
council at once and decide what we want dene with our dead and down timber.
The desire of the Pillager Indiansis unanimous that these canps be shut down at
onee.  We will accomplish this desire, This is the conclusion of the whole tribe
and all the chiefs. We feel that we have a rieht to take this stand. We are all of
one mind. We are going to appoint men of our own tribe to go and see if green tim-
ber is being ent.  There will be a big discussion on this matter by our people at once.
We feel disappointed that Mr. MeClure has never made his appcearance on our reser-
vation. 'The law says, asnear as I can understand it, that yon mnst transact business
with the ones who own the property. The law savs there shall be jails and court-
houses, and any person that violates the law shall be punished. I am under the law
same as you are. The law decides in the white man’s favor in every case. What is
the reason that the law is not carried out? I never granted the right for the removal
of the valuable timber frva my reservation. The wish of the whole tribe is that all
this timber be cut and sold to T. B. Walker, who is trying to get timber to warrant
him in building a mill here and manufacture this lumber at our own homes where we
will get employment for our young men.

SPEECH O OGE MAII GARBOW.

I am very sorry that Mr. McClure did not muke his appearance at this eouncil. I
think McClure made a mistake in the discharge of his duty. If he was here we
would have him read the regulatious about the eutting the dead and down timber to
us. We are willing that the Pillager Indians, who have contracts, may log. The
mixed bloods are disturbing thewm all the time. We want all of the resolutions of this
council sent to Washington at once, that no delay may be caused in the carrying out
of our wishes. It the Commissioner should refuse to have the cutting of our timber
stopped, we want him to write to us about it at once. If he refuses, we will organ-
ize a company and put a stop to it ourselves. Our desire is to have all these camps
shut down at once, until the matter is settled. Then it will be decided who shall
cut our timber.

SPEECIL OF WAII BE SHA INCE.

We want all the contracts approved at once for all who have contracts with par-
ties who are to manufacture the logs into lnmber at Walker, so that we will get the -
full benefits of it here. Day Dah Kah Nah Dnib and John Warren are among this
number,

Most respectfully submitted by me, as requested by the Pillager Indians.

ELY WRIGHT.,
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the Leech Lake band of Minnesota Chippewas, asking that they be permitted to cut
the dead timber on the lands tormerly embraced in the Leech Lake Reservation to
the exclusion of all other persons.

This letter was received by reference from Mr. John H. Sutherland, the Indian
agent for the White Earth Agency, and for your further information in the premises
Linclose a copy of my letter of even date to him on the subject.

Very respectiully,
W. A. JoxNgs, Commissioner.

Lrrcn Laxe, MiNN., July 26, 1508.
Hon. W. A, JoNTs,
Comnmissioner of Indian Affairs, Washington, D. C.

DEAR SIrR: We, the poor Indians, desire to cut the dead and down timber what
there is on onr reservation (Leech lake Reservation). DBut we do not want anyone
that belongs outside the Pillager Band to come on this reservation to cut the dead
and down timber. It any outsider should send an application to do the above men-
tion we want you to send the application back to him or to them, and give the Indians
who really belong on this reservation. We inform you this is the minds of all the
Leech Lake Indians about our pine. We all agreed to send this request to you, so
please answer as soon as possible.

Chiefs: Aun je ge nen, his x mark.

Ne gon e hin ais, his x mark.
Kay me won aush, his x mark.
Al zhon e ge shig, his x mark.
Kah ge gay bin ais. his x marlk.

Ogal bay ah woun, his x mark.

Kay mah, his x mark.

Kay zhe balh wo say, his x mark.
Ne bid ay ah nah uod, his x inark.
Ne gon ¢ gwan abe, his x mark.
Que wiy, his x mark.

Ozon e ge shig, his x mark. Ne bid ay ge shig, his x marlk.

Queen: Min o ge shig oonee, his x mark.
Mah je gah bon, her x mark, Min o ge shig, his x mark.
Chiefs: Ching ¢wah nah quoed, his x mark.

Kah gah ge waush, his x mark,
Ke be dway aush, hix x mark.
Kah kah kun, his x mark.

Mah je gah bon, his x miavk.
Go jecnce, his x mark.
De sheence, his x mark.

Headmen: Mah ko day, his x mark.
Wah bah nah nee, his x mark, Jawmes Taylor.

May dway we nind, his x mark. Headmen:

Oge mah we gah bon, his x mark. Obe zon e ge shig, his x mark.
Nay tah we ge shig, his x mark. Way zon e co noy ay, his x mark.
Kay gway tah be tung, his x mark.

Respectfully forwarded. JonN H. SUTHERLAND,

United States Indian Agent.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, OFFICE OF INDIAN ATFAIRS,
Hastington, dugust 8, 1898.
Joux H. SUTHERLAND, Esq.,
United States Indian Agent, 1'lite Earth Agency, Minn.

Sir: I am in receipt, hy your reference, of a communication dated July 30, 1898,
from the chiefs and headmen of the Indians living on what was formerly the Leech
Lake Reservation in Minuesota, in which they express the desire to cut the dead and
down timber on said reservation, and that outsiders not living on the reservation
be prohibited from e¢ntiing any of said timber.

In reply you are informed that the Indiauns living on the lands formerly embraced
in the Leech Lake Reservation have no more interest in those lands, except suclh as
may be allotted to individuals in severalty, than tiie other Chippewa Indians in the
State of Minnesota. Said lands were ceded under the act of 1839 (25 Stats., 642), to
be sold after the appraisement of the timber for the henelit of ull the Chippewas of
Minnesota, and every Indian in Minnesota coming nuder that deseription is equally
entitled with the Leech Lake Band in the intcrest in the dead timber that can be
taken from said lands.

This oftice, as you are aware, does not have control of the sale of timber on the
ceded Chippewa lands in Minnesota, and the communication referred by you from
the Leech Lake Indians has, together with o copy of this letter, been transmitted
to the Commissioner of the General Land Oftice for his information.

Very respectiully,
W. A. JoNus, Commissioner.





















30 TIMBER ON THE CHIPPEWA INDIAN RESERVATIONS.

ExmisiT G.

ASHLAND, WISs., December 8, 1898.
COMMISSIONER OF GENERAL LAXND OFFICE,
Mashington, D. C.

SIr: Replying to your Division ¢, “P.J.M.” of December 1, 1868, Special Agent
Parke and myself are now completing our report, and the same will be in Washing-
ton by Saturday. That report in detail will answer most of the questions asked of
me in the above letter. llowever, [ answer some of them. As to the cutting of
boom sticks from green timber, the contracts provided a logger could ent 65 boom
sticks to the million feet banked. The only attention paid to this rule was as to the
number of trees. They were ¢nt whether they were needed or not. They were cut
when not needed upon the Red River Lumber Company contracts, so says a member
of that firm to me. I speak of Fletcher Walker. They were so cut by .John Nevers,
all of whose logs were green windfalls, and hence he necded to cut no standing
green timber. He tells Mr. Parke that he cut the full number the contract per-
mitted. Warren & Iairbanks cut 333 green trees to boom their 5,000,000 feet cut.
From these green trees they took in butt logs and tops about 25,000 feet. So is the
aflidavit of their foreman to me. Of course, there were trecs of correct size for
Loomage. The logs taken from boom-stick trees and the logs ent from the boom
sticks after the booms were across the lake were among the finest logs to go to
Minneapolis last winter. It is no exaggeration to say that 80 per cent of the green
cut for hooms were not required. But it was ‘“nominated in the bond.”

The rules for cutting this year contain the following, as certified to us by Mr. Rosa:
‘“ Whenever you (assistant superintendent) fiud a legal subdivision upon which you
find only enough green timler for the necessary boow sticks to secure the logs in
rafting across the lakes yon will blaze or otherwise mark around such legal subdi-
vision,” * ¥ * And Mr. Rosa further says to us in his letter of transmittal to us:
‘“‘In some cases where double booms are necessary it might be necessary to have as
high as 15 or 20 per cent of green timber for boomage.” Under the above instrue-
tions Assistant Superintendent bMe('oy informs me he estimates and approves for cut-
ting tracts containing froni 1 to 30 per cent green, the latter only rarely and where
some adjoining subdivision will require the extra green for boemage. Mr. McCoy
approved for cutting the followiug descriptions:

To Warren & Fairbanks sections 5, 6, 7, 8§, and part of 18, T. 144, R. 31. In the
opinion of Mr. Parke, Mr. David Willard and George I'aulkner, both of Minneapolis,
and myself, there is upon this contract 2,500,000 feet of green timber and a like
amount of dead timber. The gentlemen mentioned are expericneed lumbermen, and
Mr. Willard, who is & man of some means, offers to give $4 per M for all the timber
upon this land. The timber is very large, the haul is short, and in every chance the
prospect to log is fine. Upon this same land Warren & Fairbanks last winter cut
over 5,000,000 feet of pine (dead, too), and, in addition to a large amount of logging
outfit cleared $9,633.03.

On sections 4 and 9, T. 145, R. 30, a very hot fire run about two years ago—the
spring of 1897. The parts of these two sections approved for cutting by Mr. MecCoy
prescents a case where competent judges might differ. My memoranda thereon reads:
“Practically all Norway pine; about 10 per cent dead and down; 50 per cent badly
burned by fire; bark blackened but not burned through; most of trees showing
lower spills affected by heat, some spills dead; 40 per cent green.” My understand-
ing and expericnce is that when Norway spills receive the sap and remain green the
second year after a fire the tree is not injured. That view I can substantiate by
personal observation and competent proof. This section 9 is in dispute between
George Lydick and a Mr. Macintosh, both having contraets for it approved. It is on
the bank of Cass Lake and a very fine logging chance.

Another memoranda I have says: 8. 4 sec. 19, T. 145, R. 31, 75 per cent white pine;
25 per cent Norway. White pine: 40 per cent too long dead to be merchantable,
standiug with half the bark off, wormy and full of holes; 40 per cent dead and dying
merchantable; 20 per cent green. Norway: 80 per cent green.”

And again: ‘““Sec. 31, T. 145, R. 31, timber mostly white pine and scattering. Of
the merchantable timber fully one-half is green; but all of this timber is old and
going back. This timber is dying at abont 10 per cent a year.”

I also stated 25 per cent of the merchantable dead timber was left on the land. I
did not mean the stuff sawed but not banked by reason of the early season. Notevery
contract left 25 per cent. But the contract did not require the logger to do more than
cut dead timberin the boundaries of his permit. It was a profit for him to have the
perniit on say two sections and then take only the logs not having-more than 10 per
cent cull in them in preference to one section and take logs with 50 per cent cull in
them. There is no money in hauling culls. And he did not do it. Had this logger
been banking for a private concern he would have heen compelled to put every stick
on the bank containing 25 per cent merchantable timber, and cut every straight top
to 6 inches, or pay for what he left.
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They were so instrncted by me; but no report of that matter has ever been made
to this office.

Sixth. When loggers were making roads into and over the land upon which they
had permit to cut, were they allowed to cut and remove green timber for this pur-
pose, andl what were your instructions in reference to green timber cut in this way?

There was no authority for cutting green timber except for the necessary boom
sticks, and all green timber cut was to be used for this purpose, even if cut in
making roads. As it is very expensive for loggers to make roads through timber,
and as all trees in roads must be dng ont by the roots, hence there could be no profit
or inducement for the cutting of unnecessary green timber for this purpose.

Seventh. In selecting trees for boom sticks, were tlie trees selected and marked
by the assistauts of logging, or was the logger permitted to exercise his own judg-
ment and cut timber without restriction as to size or character of timber, selecting
white or Norway, as he pleased ?

The assistant superintendents were instructed to mark and select the hoom sticks,
or to be present when the boom sticks were being cut. Boom sticks are ent from 36
to 40 feet in length and necessarily have to be large straight trees. Owing to the
difficulty in handling such long timber, they were usnally taken from the most con-
venient place without regard to kind of timber.

Eighth. Is it trne that loggers, when selecting green trees for boom sticks, and
after a tree was felled and found partly defective, they were permitted to take the
green or sound parts and class it with dead and down timber?

There was only one classification of dead and down timber. If any logs were
hauled of this kind, they were so classified.

Niuth. Did you receive any eomplaints in reference to the cutting of green timber,
and were such charges investigated; and if so, what action was taken by you in
reference thereto?

On two occasions reports were made; both were investigated; one was found to
be without foundation in fact; one camp was closed and after was permitted to
reopen upon payment of $5 per thousand for the green pine cut. The correspond-
ence in this case is in the hands of the Department.

Very respectiully submitted.

R. H. Rosa,
Superintendent of Logging Chippewa Ceded Lands.

Second. As to the existence of dead and down timber in sufficient quantities to be
logged and the advisability of logging the same this season.

We made a personal examination of a large part of the land that has been exam-
ined by the assistant superintendents of logging, classed as dead and down timber,
and for whbich applications have been made to log this winter, and we found in every
instance that from 50 to 75 per cent of the timber on each of these tracts was either
dead or dead and down.

The various legal subdivisions this year classed for cutting permit and examined
by us show from 50 to 75 per cent of the timber dead and of a character that unless
cut this or next year it will be a total loss to the Indians.

Third. As to what per cent of Indians were employed as laborers during the past
season, and as to their willingness to work, availability during the present season,
and also whether any green timber was cut last year by those logging the dead and
down timber.

It is impossible to state exactly what per cent of Indians were employed, as we
could not get statements from all the loggers, and the Indians’ names upon the tine
books are usually their English names, making it impossible to tell which man was
an Indian aud which was not. (See Exhibits E, F, N, O, P, R.) But, judging from
the list that we have been able to obtain, we should say that 30 per cent were
Indians. It is complained, however, by all of the foremen who had charge of the
labor in the camps, with whom we talked, that the Indians were very irregular, and
the labor unsatisfactory, for the reasons that they would work only for short
periods at a time, and then when. it suited them. The Indians from other parts of
the resevvation, especially those from the Iond du Lac Reservation, seem to be
better and more valuable as laborers than those directly belonging to the Leech
Lake. Much allowance must be made for these Indians, as they have had but little
opportunity to engage in this class of work. But from the information obtained
they seem to be willing and anxious to work, at Jeast for short periods. They
would frequently draw what was due them in supplies and provision, and go to their
families and return at their pleasure. In this connection it can be stated that
instructions were given to the feremen in all the logging camps on the reservation
that whenever Indians applied for work they were to be given work in every case
and properly treated; and, in fact, they were better treated and received better pay
than the more skilled white laborers, who received on an average about $18 per
month, while the Indians in every case received one dollar per day. It was a part
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In our personal examinations we did not discover any abuses in this respect out-
side of what the contract permitted.

Fourth. Whether the system in vogue under the present instructions is advisable
and proper.

The general proposition to save to the Indian the value of the dead and wasting
timber pending the sale of their pine is no doubt a wise one. There is much dead
and wasting pine. It must be logged at once or not at all. But a cut this winter
as large as that of last season—say, 50,000,000 —would so far cull out the compact
bodies of dead pine as to make further operations under the act not advisable, for
this reason: It is the nnvarying rule that fires run through old cuttings and slash-
ings sooner or later.

Where the cutting is compact and clean there is nothing of value to burn. But
if there be green trees standing about the area of cutting they will be destroyed,
or if small strips of green trees are left between two slashings they will also be de-
stroyed. This is all additional to the usual forest-fire risk. After another season
cut any further logging operations would be so scattered among green timber as to
produce, in our opinion, greater loss from injury to green timber than profit from
sale of the dead timber. And while there will be dead timber that ought to be saved
by logging it after this season, it could be best saved by an amendinent to the act
permitting both green and dead to be cut upon any description containing, say, 40
per cent merchantable dead timber. Thus nothing would be left upon such deserip-
tion for fire to run over and destroy. Andin the meantime the sale of the pine
should be expedited to the end that loss and risk and other expenses may be trans-
ferred from the Government and Indian to the buyer. A speedy sale of this pine
would also put the care of the timber upon lumbermen and relieve the Government
from duties hardly governmental.

The rules for this season shonld be amended as to boom sticks and should clothe
someone with power to pass upon the justice and correctness of the supply and labor
bills charged the Indian filer by his purchaser and creditor, the necessity for which
will appear under the next question.

Fifth. Whether or not the Indians are satisfied with the work of the past season.
If not, the cause of their dissatisfaction.

Generally speaking, those full-bloods who have adopted the ways of civilization
and practically all of the half-breeds are satisfied. These people say the young
men who would work all earned $1 per day last winter at the camps; that the
Indians received $10 a ton for their wild hay in the stack, reccived good pay for
their meat, fish, and produnce, and that many of the young men are learning their
first lesson in industry, and that the work they do is for that recason worth vastly
more to the tribe than the wage they earn. Some of these advocates, however, had
and have logging permits, and hence are charged with pleading their own casc.

On the other hand, there is a very considerable and important element among the
full-bloods who are dissatisfied, and who assign varions reasons for their dissatis-
faction. Some of these reasons have merit, some have no foundation in fact.

Before coming to their specific reasons for dissatisfaction it should be said that
these old chiefs and old men generally have had firmly grounded into their heads
that the ¢ Menominee system” is the solution of their logging problem. The honor-
able Commissioner of Indian Affairs spoke favorably of that system while at Walker,
Minn., and Mr. Gus. H. Beanleau, of the Beauleau Indian elaim agency, has spent
considerable time among these Indians during and since the trouble advocating a
change in the law to the ‘“Menominee system with suitable amendments.” These
Indians do not know what is the Menominee system. They have, however, deter-
mined to send a delegation to Washington, D. C., this winter to secure some legis-
lation, and have employed Mr. Beanlean to accompany them on that mission. The
advocates of logging charge these chiefs and Beauleau to be primarily interested in
a trip to Washington. So much for the mutual grounds of erimination.

As cause for dissatisfaction the opposing Indians charge:

1. That half-breeds and half-breed wives of white men get practically all the log-
ging permits. That is true, and is so because one can not get a permit to ent pine
unless he give a bond to pay for it. These bonds are made by the lumbermen who
buy the pine. It is only natural that they will bond a half-breed in preference to a
full-blood for the simple reason that the mixed-blood speaks English and an interpre-
ter is not required for every talk necessary about the business. For the same reason
there is less chance of dispute about the contract and business, and nsunally the half-
breed is a man of some capacity and responsibility, and, if a woman, is the wife of a
white man of some business capacity. Also, the very large opportunity for fraud
furnished by the supply credit made it unsafe for a man of striet integrity to deal
with a man who had scarcely laid aside his breecheloth and blanket. Meddlesome
people, seeking their own advancement, would accuse him of cheating the Indian
whether he did or not. But in law and equity the complaint against the half-breed
or mixed-blood is not good. The Indians by their treaty of January 14, 1889, accorded
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reservations will be sold at a price not large enough to pay those expenses, as the
Red Lake Reservation was.

We want our pine, if sold at all, to be sold bank scale, and not on an estimate,
but we much prefer the Menominee system, and wish to here thank the honorable
Commissioner of Indian Affairs for recommending that method of selling the pine,
but at the same time do wish to urge him to withdraw his opposition to the present
system for the present season, so that we may exist this winter, as we have full con-
fidence in the honorable Commissioner of I’ublic Lands, and know that he will, as
he has in the past, fully protect our interests.

The large lumbermen, whose cruisers are in thie woods around us, say that no
logging will be done this winter. That the report of the investigators, even if
favorable to us, will be too late to log this season; that we can not stop the sale of
the pine on an estimate. All this they say, and further tell us that our wishes will
not be respected, and that they ought to own onr pine, and that we should be wiped
off the face of the earth.

They have given out reports to the newspapers that the late Indian trouble was
caused by dissatisfaction with the dead and down system.

This is not true, and the general public around here knows that it isnot trne, and
that these reports started from the Mississippi Valley Lumberman, a newspaper run
by a nephew of T. B. Walker, who is one of the many after our pine. This we
know, as we have many in our tribe who can and do read the newspapers, and report
to the rest of us.

Therefore, we petition that the present system continue this winter; that the
estimators be called from the field at once; that only the superintendent of logging
and his assistants be employed, and that our timber be cut by the Menominee
system.

We hope the proper anthorities will give ear to our petition as we are on the
grounds and know the true condition of things, and do here say that is a true con-
dition of the matter anud do urge an early decision of this matter, as the season is
advancing.

Chiefs: Tribesmen:
May quem e wrib. Be she ence.
Qua kee qua na be quay—Queen. Be dwa wa ga bo.
Naw gon nib. Me sa ba.

Tribesmen : Way me sho me sing,
Wab e sha sence. Na ton wash.
Ka da ge quana ash. A sho we guen.
Cow e tiash. Sha bo ke ga bo.
May quem me waun gay. Ka ge ga as e gay.
May quem me pe mace. ‘Way mit e gosh.
I en tub. O bun way way ge hick (Geo. Reese).
Wege ma ke ke tue. Na sho be tung.
Me shue ke me nep. Naw gon nub.
Ken ne wa. Ca ca cun.
Ka ba ge min. Antoine Bellanger.
Way sha wa scho gwa na ash, Trib is co geschick.
William, Cow e tiash, No. 2.
Wabis kege wa neb. Ka ba ga bo.
Weg ma e be tung. A won e be tung.
See bon ga. Ba ba hab wa me dunk,
Jim. Way jon e mish kung.
Jim. Nuin Rinse.
‘Win de go pe na ce. Na nop e ge shick wip.
Ke ka ko gwan. Ben I"airbanks.

A wash e geshick.

STATE OF MINNESOTA, County of Cass, ss:

I, May quim me won gay, being first duly sworn, do on oath depose and say that
I am a full-blood Winnebegoshish Chippewa Indian; that I personally know the
Indians whose signatures are hereto attached; that said Indians are of the tribes as
stated in this petition; that said petition was explained to them and they knew the
contents thereof at the time their names were attached thereto; that they directed
that their names be signed to said petition.

MAY QuiM ME WON GAY (his x mark).
Subsecribed and sworn to before me at White Earth, Minn., this November 16, 1898.

H. H. SCHWARTZ,
Special Agent General Land Office.
Witness to signing by x of May quim me won gay.
Jos. A. MORRISON.
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This may be objected to as a discrimination against the small logger; but, in our
opinion, the small logger has no claim upon the Government to log at a loss.

Large camps will also admit of closer inspection of the worlk.

In this connection it can be stated that we could find no instance of where any
Indians had been refused work in the camps or had been unfairly treated, and the
records show they were paid $1 per day, while the more experienced white labor
averaged about $18 per month.

Mr. Gus. H. Beauleau is quoted by some of the Minneapolis papers as saying:

1. That the Pillager band of the tribe of Chippewa Indians is in a surly mood
on account of the scandalous robbery of their pine forests under the pretext of oper-
ating in accordance with the provisions of the dead and down timber act.

“2. That they are dissatistied on account of the alleged underestimates of the
appraisers now at work, evidently referring to examiners of the pine lands.

‘3. That many of the Pillager Indians were preparing to cut dead and down
timber themselves this year under the regulation, but when they looked for loca-
tions found that they had all been filled by squaw men, half-breeds, and nonexistent
Indians in interest of the pirates.

‘4. That they also found that fires iad been purposely set to convert green timber
into dead and down, and that inspectors frequently called timber dead or about to
die and turned it over to the pirates (the word inspectors evidently referring to
the superintendents in charge of the logging operations).

¢¢5, That they also complain that the estimators who appraise the pine that escapes
being called dead and down, which is to be sold as provided by the Nelson law, are
in league with the lumbermen.

‘6. That they also charge Rosa, the superintendent of dead and down timber on
the Chippewa Indian lands, as beiug hand in glove with the ‘pine pirates.””

Learning that Mr. Beauleau was at the Leech Lake Agency, we addressed and sent
to him by registered mail the following letter, and the attached card shows that it
was duly received by hini. (See exhibit below.)

Mr. Beauleau did not acknowledge receipt of letter as requested, but some days
afterwards we met him in the hotel at Walker, and had a conversation with him,

WALKER, MINN., November 8, 1898.
Mr. Gus. H. BRAULEAU, Leech Lake, Minn. .

DEAR SIR: I have been sent here by the Hon. Commissioner of the General Land
Office, in connection with Special Agent H. H. Schwartz, to nake an investigation
as to the cutting and removing of timber from the ceded lands of the White Ilarth
Reservation under ‘‘the dead and down act.” We are anxious to make our examina-
tion as complete as possible as to the desires of the Indians, and to investigate and
embody in our report any complaints they have to make as to the system or the per-
sons connected with it. You have been quoted in the Minneapolis papers as stating
as follows. (Here was inserted the charges set out above.)

I desire to know if the above charges were made by you, and if so, that you will
notify me when and where we can meet you to take your statement and also the
s}latements of any witnesses you can have present to testify to the truth of the above
charges.

Please acknowledge the receipt of this letter, and notify me at Walker when it
will suit your convenience to meet us for the above purpose.

I feel it unnecessary to inform you as to the importance of presenting any testi-
mony you may have to sustain the above charges at the earliest date possible. 'The
logging season is fast approaching and the operations have been suspended awaiting
report.

P Very respectfully, F. J. PARKE,

Special Agent General Land Office.

He had no personal knowledge or specific charges he could substantiate with
proof as to the cutting of green timber, but confined his charges principally to the
cost of estimating timber, which he claimed was a useless expense to the Indians, and
had been the means through which he claimed the Indians on the Red Lake had been
robbed of their timber. In reference to the charges of Indian starting fires, he
claimed that an Indian had been seen starting a fire by two other Indians whose
names were given. This charge was personally examined by Special Agent Schwartz,
and is herein elsewhere reported upon.

This was all the information to be obtained from Mr. Beauleau.

Mr. Beauleau expressed himself as strongly opposed %o the logging under the dead
and down system, and drew up and circulated petitions immediately after the log-
ging commenced last season, asking for signatures to charges of which he had no
personal knowledge.
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able to us, will be too late to log this season; that we can not stop the sale of the
pine on an estimate. All this they say, and further tell us that our wishes will not
be respected, and that they ought to own our pine, and that we should be wiped off
the face of the earth.

They have given out reports to the newspapers that the late Indian trouble was
caused by dissatisfaction with the dead-and-down system. This is not true, and
the general public around here know that it is not true, and that these reports
started from the Mississippi Valley Lumberman, a newspaper run by a nephew of
T. B. Walker, who is one of the many after our pine. This we know, as we have
many in our tribe who can and do read the newspapers and report to the rest of us.

Therefore we petition that the present system continue this winter; that the esti-
mators be called from the field at once; that only the superintendent of logging and
his assistants be employed, and that our timmber be cut by the Menominee system.

We hope the proper authorities will give ear to our petition, as we are on the
grounds and know the true condition of things, and do here say that this is a true
condition of the matter, and do urge an early decision of this matter, as the season
is advancing.

Chiefs: Na sho be tung.
May quem e wub. Naw gon nub.
Qua ku qua na be quay—Queen, Ca ca cun.
Naw gon nib. Antoine Bellanger,
Tribesmen: Ke ka ko gwan.
Wab e sha since. A wash e geshick.
Ka da ge quana ash. Be she ence.
Cow e tiash. Be dwa wa ga bo.
May quem me wan gay., Me sa ba.
May quem e pe nace. Way me sho me sing,
I en tub. Na ton wash.
Wege ma ke ke tue. Asho we guen.
Sce bon ga. Sha bo ke ga ho.
Jim. Ka ge ga as e gay.
Jim. Way mit e gosh.
Win de go pe na ce, Tib is co ge schiek.
Me shue ke we nep. Cow e tiash No. 2.
Ken ne wa. Ka ba ga bo.
Ka ba ge min. A won e be tung.
Way sha wa scho gwa na ash. Ba ba dab wa me dunk,
William. Way jon e mish kung.
Wabis kege wa neb. Num Ainse.
Weg ma e be tung. Na nop e ge shick wit.
O bim way way geshick (Geo. Reese). Ben Fairbanks.

STATE OF MINNESOTA, County of Cass:

I, May quim me won gay, being first duly sworn, do on oath depose and say that
I am a fvll-blood Winnibigoshish Chippewa Indian; that I personally know the
Indians whose signatures are hereto attached; that said Indians are of the tribes
ag stated in this petition; that said petition was explained to them and they knew
the contents thereof at the time their names were attached thereto; that they
directed that their names be signed to said petition.

MAY QUIM ME WON GAY (his x mark).
Subscribed and sworn to before me at White Earth, Minn., this November 16, 1393.

H. H. SCHWARTZ,
Special Agent, General Land Office.
Witness to signing by x of May quim me won gay, Joseph A. Morrison.
STATE OF MINNESOTA, County of Cass:
I, Joseph A. Morrison, being first duly sworn, do on oath depose and say that I am
a competent person to interpret English and Chippewa; that I liave acted as Gov-
ernment interpreter for the Indian Commission; that I know personally May quim
me won gay; that he knew the contents of the above petition and the contents of
the above affidavit made by him before he swore thereto; and that he directed that
his name be signed thereto; that I correctly interpreted said affidavit to him; that
he is head spokesman for his tribe.
Jos. A. MORRISON.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this November 16, 1898, by .Joseph Morrison,
known to me personally.
H. H. SCHWARTZ,
Special Agent, General Land Office.

We, the undersigned Winibigoshish, Cass Lake, and Bowstring Indians, having
seen in the newspapers and having heard from various sources that it is being reported
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ExamiT H.

INDIAN RIGHTS ASSOCIATION,
Philadelphia, November 30, 1898.
Hon. Corxrrius N. Buiss,
Secretary of the Interior, Washington, D. C.

Dear Sie: Inclosed please find copy of a letter from George Davis, a Chippewa
Indian of the Winnibigoshish Reservation, Minn.

Mr. Davis urges, apparently with great force, that under proper restrictions the
right should be accorded the Indians of that reservation to log their dead and down
timber, as they did, with great profit to themselves, last winter. He states that
this logging netted his people about $40,000, and that the total amount of money
bandled at White Earth, as a result of the logging, was over $150,000. He says
further:

“This fall we all have good, warm clothing, plenty to eat, and have good, new, com-
fortable houses, with stoves and windows, and everything to cook with. In fact, we
are in the best shape we have ever been. Knowing all this, you can possibly imagine
with what sorrow and dismay we have heard that the logging has been stopped for
this winter. We believe we know what has caused this. * * * Itis a well-known
fact that the Minneapolis lumber ring, composed of Meyerhauser, T. B. Walker,
Shevlin, Carpenter, and others, are opposed to the cutting of this timber by the
Indians under any conditions. What they want is to have our timber estimated, as
is being done now and for which we are paying, then to have it sold by the acre in
40-acre tracts on this estimate, the purchaser getting the land as well as the timber.
These estimators estimate only the green, growing pine; all of the dead and down
timber is not estimated, and the purchaser gets this for nothing. A very large per-
centage of our pine is either dead or down, but withal very valunable, so valuable
that we ought not to be hoodwinked into giving it to a lumber ring, some of whose
members have more wealth individually than our whole tribe. That this is what
they are trying to bring about is made no secret here; the cruisers for these concerns
have been all over our reservation and have estimates of the timber and description
of the laud. They have already gained possession of a large portion of the Red
Lake Reservation by this same scheme by which they are now trying to get ours.”

Mr. Davis turther states:

“During the last month we have sent two petitions to the Secretary of the Interior
urging that the logging be permitted this winter, and stating our case as best we
could.”

He sums np his request as follows:

“ First, the logging of dead and down timber to be allowed to go on this winter.
Second, the adoption of some plan of logging for us like or similar to the Menominee
plan. Third, the Government estimators called from the field at once.”

I write to ask whether something in the line of these suggestions may not be
granted by yonr Department in the interest of these poor peoplet

Respectfully,
HERBERT WELSH.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
Washington, D. C., December 10, 1898.
The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

Sir: The office has received, by Department reference, a letter of November 30,
1898, from Mr, Herbert Welsh, corresponding secretary of the Indian Rights Associa-
tion, with headquarters at Philadelphia.

Mr. Welsh states that he incloses a copy of a letter to him from George Davis, a
Chippewa Indian of the Lake Winnibigoshish Reservation, Minn., which relates to
the cutting of timber by Indians of the White Earth Agency under existing laws
autborizing the Secretary of the Interior to grant authority for the sale by Indians of
dead timber standing or fallen on both the reserved and ceded timber lands in Min-
nesota. :

By Department indorsement on this letter I am directed to comsider the matter
and make full reply to the writer, with the following remarks added: *The applica-
tion for authority to cut and bauk dead timber on the White Earth and Red Lake
reservations is now under consideration, and in the face of complaints that have been
made authority can not be granted until the Department is satistied by thorough
investigation that the timber has not been killed for the purpose of procuring the
authority, and that there was no abuse of the authority granted last seasou.”

On examination of Mr. Welsh’s letter it is indicated that the communication to
which ke refers has application solely to the timber operations on the ceded lands.
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That part of the letter which is a quotation from the communication from Mr. Davis
shows clearly that Mr. Welsh’s correspondent did not have under consideration any
timber operations on the reservation, as, for instance, he states that Meyerhauser
(Weyerhauser?), T. B. Walker, Shevlin, Carpenter, and others are opposed to the
cutting of timber by Indians because they want the same sold by the acre in 40-acre
tracts on estimate, and on page 2 the third recommendation is that the Government
estimators be called from the field at once.

There is no law for the sale of timber on reservations on estimate, and there are
no estimators appointed to make estimate of reservation timber. Thereis, however,
a law for the sale of timber on ceded lands, and estimators are appointed for the
purpose of estimating the quantity of timber, so this matter appears to apply exclu-
sively to the nonreservation lands which are under the jurisdiction and control of
the Commissioner of the General Land Office, to whom I recommend it be referred.
The same is herewith returned.

Very respectfully, your obedient servant,
W. A. JoNES, Commissioner.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
GENERAL LAND OFFICE,
Washington, D. C., December 22, 1898.
Mr. HERBERT WELSH,
1305 Arch sireet, Philadelphia, Pa.

Siz: I am in receipt, by departmental reference, of your letter of November 30,
1898, in which you quote from a letter from one George Davis, a Chippewa Indian of
the Winnibigoshish Reservation, Minn., and state that Mr. Davis urges that under
proper restrictions the right should be accorded the Indians of that reservation to
log their dead and down timber as they did with great profit to themselves last
winter, when the logging netted his people about $40,000, and that the total amount
of money handled at White Earth as the result of the logging was over $150,000.

I note that you quote Mr. Davis as saying: ‘“This fall we all have good warm
clothing, plenty to eat, and have good, new, comfortable houses, with stoves and
windows, and everything to cook with. In fact, we are in the best shape we have
ever been. Knowing all this, you can possibly imagine with what sorrow and dis-
may we have heard that the logging has been stopped for this winter.” He then
charges that a lumber ring in Minneapolis is responsible for the stoppage of logging
operations, stating that they want the timber estimated and have it sold in 40-acre
tracts, the object being to get the timber and the land. He protests that only green
and growing pine is estimated, the dead and down not being estimated, and that the
purchaser gets the latter for nothing. He requests that the logging of dead and
down timber be allowed to go on this winter, and that the same plan of loggiug be
adopted for them as is in use by the Menominees, or one similar, and that the Gov-
ernment estimators be called from the field at once. )

In reply, I have to state that the logging of dead and down timber on the Chip-
pewa reservations in Minnesota is provided for in the act of June 7, 1897 (30 Stat., 90),
and that the rules and regulations governing logging operations have been formu-
lated in accordance with the provisions of said act.

I am pleased to note that Mr. Davis states that the logging operations were con-
ducted last season with such profit and benefit to the Indians.

The logging operations were temporarily suspended this winter, owing to the
recent outbreak among the Indians in question, but the Department has authorized
the continuance of logging this season, and contracts are now being examined in
this office and confirmed.

The rules and regulations have been framed with a view of giving all Indians who
desire to work an opportunity to do so, and at the same time secure payment for
their labor, and to protect them from excess of charges for supplies, etc.

Under these regulations great care will be taken to prevent the cutting of any
green timber.

All Indians who desire to work, or to enter into contracts to log, should make
application to the superintendent of logging, Mr. R. H. Rosa, at White Earth, Minn.

The estimation of the green and growing timber and the disposition of the lands in
the Chippewa reservations in Minnesota are provided for by the act of January 14,
1889 (25 Stats., 642). The estimation of the timber on these lands and the sale of the
pine lands are made in accordance with the provisions of said act. The estimators
seem to be doing their work faithfully, and reports from all sources sperk well of
the present corps of estimators in regard to their honesty, intelligence, and industry.

Under existing law the estimation of the timber and the disposition of the lands
will continue.

Very respectfully, F. W. MONDELL,
Assistant Commissioner.
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The green timber cut for roadways shall be used, as far as suitable and practicable,
for boomsticks. In case any green timber is unnecessarily cut by any logger, you
or your assistants will seize his tools, and the logs cut by them, and stop, summarily,
the operations under his permit or contract. You are cautioned not to allow more
green timber for boomsticks than is intended to be used for that specitic purpose.

The green timber so cut for roadways and boomsticks shall be scaled and accounted
for separately for each legal subdivision npon which the same may be found, and
there shall be deducted from the amount paid for such green timber $3 per thousand
feet, which shall be paid as a net sum to the Indian agent, to be credited to the
Indian fund, and not to be disposed of under the regulations providing for the dis-
position of the proceeds arising {rom the sale of dead and down timber.

You or your assistants will personally inspect and verify the scale of all such green
timber. The amount of such green timber so cut shall be reported by you to this
office, by the legal subdivision of land on which it may be found and as soon as
ascertained.

This office will seek the authority to have appointed, under the supervision of
yourself and assistant superintendents, parties at $50 a month, to mark each tree in
the area to be logged under each camp, one such party to be appointed for each
camp. Itshall be their duty, under the supervision of yourself and assistant super-
intendents, ® mark with a sharply defined and distinet mark, to be made with a
brand or with axes, the style thercof to be adopted and reported by you immediately
on the approval of the contract, each tree at the butt and below the point where the
log is to be cut therefrom. When you are notified of the appointment of such a
person, you will select an honest and capable man, have him sworn in, and instruct
him as to his duties, and have your assistants to constantly supervise and report on
his efficiency and work. You will see that your assistants are constantly in the
field among the camps, and require frequent and full reports from them at least
weekly, and at the same time visit the camps, and give them as sharp a supervision
as you can.

Yourself and your assistants will keep a proper record of all your official acts, let-
ting such record show the whereabouts of each of you each day.

You will at any time before the confirmation of a contract by this office receive
and consider any bid accompanied by a contract and responsible bond, if such bid
be higher than the bid already received.

You will instruct your assistants to see that no waste is occasioned in cutting the
timber by leaving merchantable timber in any log or top. In case of any such
waste you or they will have full authority, and it will be your duty, to cause such
waste to be scaled, so as to ascertain the amount of merchantable timber, and to
charge the logger with the 15 per cent due the Indian tund thereon, as it logged. In
cage it would damage ordinary growing timber to have such waste remain on the
ground, you will stop the operations of any logger refusing to remove same. Your-
self and assistants are to exercise strict supervision over all scaling.

You will require the timber to be scaled in the same manner as green timber is
scaled, so that the full amount of the timber, good and bad, in the log may be charged
for, and not allow it to be scaled back of the sap.

Yourself or your assistants are authorized to inspect the books of any logger at any
time for the purpose of seeing that no excessive charge is made to the Indian laborer
for supplies furnished him. Yourself and assistants have the same authority to
inspect the books of the contractor, to see that no excessive charge is made to the
Indian logger, and you have full authority to stop the operations under any contract
and to cause the Indian agent to refuse to pay the amount due on any contract in
case the contractor should refuse an inspection of his books.

After the Indian agent shall have assumed control of the proceeds of the sale, as
provided in paragraph 8 of the logging regulations of August 26, 1898, and before he
shall divide and pay the net proceeds, as in said paragraph provided, it shall be the
duty of him and yourself to personally inspect the books of the Indian logger, and
ascertain if any false or excessive charge is made by him aguaiust any Indian laborer,
or if any amount is still due such laborer, in which case it shall be the duty of the
Indian agent to withhold any sum found justly due said laborer and to pay the same
to such laborer.

It shall also be the duty of yourself or the Indian agent to persoually inspect the
books of each contractor, and to ascertain if any false, excessive charge is made by
him against any Indian logger and if any amount is still due such logger, iu which
case it shall be the duty of the Indian agent to deduct from the supply bill any
amount found so falsely or excessively charged against said logger and only pay the
amount justly due the contractor. In determining the justness of the charge of the
contractor you will have regard to the intelligence of the Indian, the market price
of the article, and a fair profit to the contractor. Where the Indian is intelligent
and fully capable of managing his affairs, you will have special regard for that fact.

If you have cause to believe that any party applying or who has applied or been

S. Doc. 70 5
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REPORT OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INDIAN AFFAIR3 AS TO
LOGGING ON THE CHIPPEWA INDIAN RESERVATIONS IN MIN-
NESOTA.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
Washington, January 17, 1899.

The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

Sir: I am in receipt by your reference for report of a copy of Senate
resolution as follows:

¢ Resolved, That the Secretary of the Interior is hereby directed to
furnish to the Senate information derived fromn reports of special Indian
agents and Indian inspectors relating to the estimating of timber and
the cutting of dead and fallen timmber on the Chippewa Indian reserva-
tions in the State of Minnesota, both on the diminished and ceded res-
ervations, together with a copy of the rules and regulations adopted
for the cutting of dead and fallen timber on said reservations.”

Pursuant to your directions, I inclose herewith copy of all regulations
that have been prescribed by the President to govern logging on the
diminished Chippewa reservations in Minnesota since the passage of
the act of February 16, 1889 (25 Stats., 673), and by the Secretary of
the Interior since the passage of the act of June 7, 1897 (30 Stats., 90).
These regulations are contained in reports from this office to the Secre-
tary of' the Interior and in reports from the Secretary to the President,
made at various dates from year to year.

In a report dated September 21, 1898 (copy inclosed), the office sub-
mitted regulations which it was proposed should be preseribed by the
Secretary under the lust above-mentioned act to govern logging during
the present season on the said diminished reservations. The authority
necessary to put these regulations in force was granted by the Secre-
tary on December 6, 1898, but for reasons shown by copy of letter of
November 15, 1898, to Special Agent Jenkins, directing him to investi-
gate timber operations on the diminished reservations last year, and a
copy of his report herewith, this authority has not been promulgated,
and consequently no logging is being done on the diminished reserva-
tions during the present season.

The only other report with respect to this timmber matter which falls
within the call of the Scnate resolution is that of Inspector J, George
‘Wright, dated December 31, 1396.  This report and the papers which
accompany the same are printed in Senate Document No. 83, IFifty-fifth
Congress, {ivst session, copy of which is inclosed for convenient reference.

Very respectfully, your obedient servant,
W. A. JonEs, Commissioner.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
Or¥ICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
Washington, Octlober 9, 1889.
The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

Sir: In reply to a letter of July 19, 1889, from B. P. Shuler, esq., United States
Indian agent, White Earth Agency, Minn., asking that authority be granted under
the provisions of the act of FFebruary 16, 1889 (25 Stats., 673) for the Indians of
White Earth, Red Lake, and White Oak Point reservations to cut and market the
dead and down timber on their respective reservations during the approaching log-
ging seasou, this office, by letter of August 5, 1889, directed him to furnish certain
information relative thereto, as follows, viz:

“1, Have any of the Indians killed, burned, or girdled any of the green standing
timber. or started fire in the woods?

€2, Under what arrangements do you propose to have the logging carried on dur-
ing the coiing season, so that the requirements of the act will be strictly complied
with?
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ing school a reasonable length of time each year, unless in the opinion of the agent
some good reasons exist in special cases, which are sufficient to exempt particular
persons from this requirement. Otherwise, every Indian on the reservation, not
well employed, should be permitted and encouraged to engage in the work, and no
favoritism shall be shown by the agent in his management ot the husiness.

Third. A reliable and otherwise properly qualified white man to be detailed, if any
sucl can be spared from the agency employee force, or if no regular agency employee
is available, then to be appointed by authority of the Seeretary of the Interior, and
to be paid a reasonable salary from the proceeds of sale of the logs for such time as
service may be actually necessary, whose duty it will be to go into the woods with
the loggers and superintend and direct their labors, to the end that no green or grow-
ing timber may be cut, and that no live trees are d:unaged in any manner so as to
cause them to die that they may be marketed under the provisions of the act in
question, and to inspect the scaling of the logs.

Fourth. With the exception of a superintendent provided for by the preceding
item, and in cases where persons of sufficient knowledge and skill for foremen and
blacksmiths can not be found among the Indians, all white labor to be excluded from
the reservation.

Fifth. One-half of the cost of scaling tobe paid for by the loggers, and one-half by
the purchaser of the logs.

Sixth. The logs shall be cut and banked or otherwise made ready for sale by the
Indians, under the supervision of the superintendent and direction of the agent, at
such place or places as he shall direct, and shall be sold at public sale to the highest
bidder, either by auction or by calling for sealed proposals, at the discretion of the
Secretary of the Interior, in such lots as shall be most expedient, and under the
personal direction of the agent, for cash, after at least two weeks’ notice by publica-
tion in newspapers at the places where the nsual markets for logs exist, and where
best calculated to give notice; also, by such other means as shall give greatest

ublicity.
P Seventh. No sale of the logs to be valid until approved by the Commissioner of
Indian Affairs.

Eighth. Ten per cent of the gross proceeds derived from the sale of the logs to go
to the stumpage or poor fund of the tribe, from which the old, sick, and otherwise
helpless may be supported.

Ninth. All expenses of sale, such as advertising, telegraphing, one-half the cost of
scaling, and 10 per cent of the gross proceeds of the sale for the stumpage or poor
fund to be deducteéd, and the net proceeds remaining to be divided and paid by the
agent to the individuals or compaunies of the tribe in exact proportion to the scale of
logs banked by each.

These regulations are similar to those adopted to be observed in the logging opera-
tions by the Menominee Indians of the Green Bay Agency, Wis., with the exception
that inregulation 3 hereof, in addition to the other duties thereby required of the
white man to be appointed to superintend and direct the work, he will be required
to inspect the scaling of the logs, and that regulation 4 excludes all white labor from
the reservations, with certain exceptions.

Agent Shuler’s letters of July 19 and September 16, 1889, in relation to this matter
are herewith inclosed.

Very respectfully, your obedient servant, T. J. MORGAN,
Commissioner.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
IWashington, October 11, 1890.
The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

SIR: Upon the receipt of a report of August 4, 1890, from Agent B. P. Shuler,
White Earth Indian Agency, Minn., asking to be advised whether the ‘““Indians can
be allowed to cut dead and down timber this year on the White Earth, Red Lake,
and White Oak Point reservations,” and whether the operations will be conducted
under the same regulations as were prescribed last season, this office informed him
under date of September 11,1840, that a new authority from the President for the
Indiaus to log on their reservations this season will be necessary before they can be
allowed to do so, and that in order that the President may be advised of the ability
of the Indians on the reservations named to do this logging, and whether it is
desirable that they shall be permitted to do so, it was necessary for him to report:

“Iirgt. Whether any of the Indians on the reservations named have killed,
burned, or girdled any of the green standing timber, or started fire in the woods
since the last logging season.

““Second. In case any of the trees have been killed as stated, whether you can fix
the blame on the persons guilty, so that they may be discriminated against, and
those who acted in good faith to be allowed to log.
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Reservation, permission might be given those who remain to log on their reserva-
tions, but the propriety of such action is rather questionable for the reason that
such permission might intfluence the election of some of the Indians, who would
otherwise remove, to remain where they are.

As it is not seen how it would aid Mr. Rice, in the removal and settlement on the
White Earth Reservation of those Indians entitled and willing to go there, to
authorize the cutting of dead and down timber on the Leech Lake, Winnibigoshish,
and Mille Lac reservations by the Indians thereon; as it is reasonable to believe
that such authority would rather retard their preparations for and delay their
removal than otherwise, and in view of the fact that the Fond du Lac Reservation
of the La Pointe Indian Agency, Wis., was excepted from the authority recently
graunted for logging dead and down timber on certain reservations of that agency,
because the Inidians of that reservation may, under the said Chippewa agreement,
elect to remove to the White Earth Reservation, I would not recommend the grant-
ing of authority for the Indians on the reservations of the White Karth Agency
named to do logging this season.

There appears, however, to be no reason why this anthority should not be granted
for the Indians entitled to be on the White Ilarth and Red Lake reservations to log,
their status not being liable to change, and I would recommend thut steps be taken
to secure Executive authority for the Indians entitled to be upon the White Earth
and Red Lake reservations to cut and bank dead and down timber from their
respective reserves during the current fiscal year, and to sell the same for their own
benetit at the proper time, in accordance with the provisions of the act of Congress
approved February 16, 1889 (25 Stats., 673).

As to Agent Schuler’s recommendation that the regulations to he prescribed to
govern the logging operations of the Indians this season, if authority therefor is
given, shall contain a provision under which anyone wishing it can enter into con-
tract for the sale of his timber in advance, so that he may be better enabled to
secnre supplies at fair prices, I have to say that I am opposed to the inauguration of
any system of contracts with white men, and especially any contracts not open to
competition under which logging may be done on the reservations named. The
Indians should be taught self-reliance, and the Government should not be required to
go security for their debts, as would necessarily be the case, to a certain extent,
it they weve permitted to log under such contract as the agent recommends.
Althongh in view of the tact that the Chippewas occupy a more sparsely settled
country, which may prevent them from getting credit, it may not be entirely fair to
compare their sitnation with that of the Menomonee Indians in Wisconsin, it may
not be impertinent to say that the latter Indians carried on extensive logging oper-
ations last season under the same regulations, with slight moditications, as were in
force on the White Earth, Red Lake, and White Oak Point reservations in Minne-
sota, and it is understood that many of the Menomonees secured large advances on
the faith of the proceeds from the logs they expected to cut during the season. So
far as I ami aware, there are no reasons why the Chippewas can not secure the supplies
necessury to enable them to carry on logging under the authority that may be
granted them for that purpose on their individual assurance that payment therefor
will be made out of the proceeds of the logs they may cut; especially when it is
reniembered that by regulation 9 of last season all moneys paid for logging were
payable first to the United States Indian agent, and no fear could be entertained
that the Indian logger would surreptitiously disposc of his logs in order to avoid
the payment of debts contracted for supplies. The United States should not, how-
ever, by approving any contract or otherwise, assume responsibility for the liabili-
ties of the Indians engaged in logging on the White Earth or Red Lalke reservations,
though it ought to advise the Indians when receiving their money to pay their just
debts.

Inasmuch as the President, October 16, 1889, approved regulations submitted by
the Department on the recommendation of this otfice for this purpose, I suggest the
adoption withont modification of these regulations to govern the logging operations
of the Indians on the White Earth and Red Lake reservations this season, which
regulations the agent says worked very satisfactorily, and are as follows, viz:

1. That each Indian who engages in the work of preparing for market the dead
and down timber on his reservation during the current fiscal year shall provide his
ownlogging outfit and supplies.

2. No Indian to be allowed to log who has children of school age not attending
school a reasonable length of time each year, unless, in the opinion of his agent,
some good reasons exist in special cases which are snfficient to exempt particular per-
sons from this requirement; otherwise, every Indian on the reservation not well
employed should be permitted and encouraged to engage inthe work, and no favor-
itism shall be shown by the agent in his management of the business.

3. A reliable and otherwise properly qualified white man to be detailed, if any such
can he spared, from the agency cmployee force, or if no regular agency employee
is available, then to be appointed by authority of the Secretary of the Interior and
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Concurring in his views, I have the honor to request that authority be granted the
Indians on the Red Lake Diminished Reserve and on the White Earth Reserve,
Minn., to cut and dispose of the dead and down timber during the current fiscal
year under the following rules and regulations:

“First. That each Indian who engages in the work of preparing for market the
dead and down timber on his reservation during the current fiscal year shall provide
his own logging outfit and supplies.

““Second. No Indian to be allowed to log who has children of school age not attend-
ing school a reasonable length of time each year, unless, in the opinion of his agent,
some good reasons exist in special cases which are sufficient to exempt particular
persons from this requirement; otherwise every Indian on the reservation, not well
employed, should be permitted and encouraged to engage in the work, and no favor-
itism shall be shown by the agent in his management of the business.

“Third. A reliable and otherwise properly qualified white man to be detailed, if
any such can be spared from the agency employee force, or, if no regular agency
employee is available, then to be appointed by authority of the Secretary of the

. Interior, and to be paid a reasonable salary from the proceeds of the sale of the logs
for such time as service may be actually necessary, whose duty it will be to go into
the woods with the loggers and superintend and direct their labors, to the end that
no green or growing timber may be cut, and that no live trees are damaged in any
manner 8o as to cause them to die that they may be marketed under the provisions
of the act in question, and to inspect the scaling of the logs.

“Fourth. With the exception of a superintendent provided for by the precedin
item, and in cases where persons of sufficient knowledge and skill for foremen an
blacksmiths can not be found among the Indians, all white labor to be excluded from
the reservations.

“Fifth. One-half of the cost of scaling to be paid for by the loggers and one-half
by the purchaser of the logs.

¢Sixth. The logs shall be cut and banked or otherwise made ready for sale by the
Indians, under the supervision of the superintendent and direction of the agent, at
such place or places as he shall direct, and shall be sold at public sale to the highest
bidder, either by auction or by calling for sealed proposals, at the discretion of the
Secretary of the Interior, in such lots as shall be most expedient, and under the per-
sonal direction of the agent, for cash, after at least two weeks’ notice by publication
in newspapers at the places where the usual markets for logs exist, and where best
calculated to give notice; also by such other means as shall give greatest publicity.

‘‘Seventh. No sale of the logs to be valid until approved by the Commissioner of
Indian Affairs.

¢“Eighth. Ten per cent of the gross proceeds derived from the sale of the logs to
go to the stumpage or poor fund of the tribe, from which the old, sick, and otherwise
helpless may be supported.

“Ninth. All expenses of sale, such as advertising, telegraphing, one-half of the cost
of scaling, and 10 per cent of the gross proceeds of the sale for the stumpage or
poor fund to be deducted, and the net proceeds remaining to be divided and paid by
the agent to the individuals or companies of the tribe in exact proportion to the
scale of logs banked by each.”

I have the honor to be, very respectfully, your obedient servant,

JoHN W. NOBLE, Secretary.
{Indorsement.]

EXECUTIVE MANSION, October 17, 1890.
Approved:
BENJ. HARRISON.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
Washington, December 18, 1894.
The PRESIDENT® -

T have the honor to submit herewith a communication dated 13th ultimo, from the
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and its inclosures, setting forth the fact that in the
past three years fires and cyclones have destroyed on the Red Lake Indian Reserva-
tion, Minn., between 10,000,000 and 15,000,000 feet of timber, and on the White
Earth Reservation in said State some 14,000,000 feet.

The Commissioner recommends that this dead and down timber be logged and
sold under the provisions of the act of February 16, 1889, viz:

““That the President of the United States may from year to year in his discretion,
under such regulations as he may prescribe, authorize the Indians residing on reser-
vations or allotments, the fee to which remains in the United States, to fell, cut,
remove, sell, or otherwise dispose of the dead timber standing or fallen on such res-
ervatiou or allotment for the sole benefit of such Indian or Indians. But whenever
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there is reasonable cause to believe that such timber has been killed, burned, gir-
dled, or otherwise injured for the purpose of securing its sale under this act, then in
that case such authority shall not be granted.”

and he submits the following regulations governing the disposal of said timber:

“«Tirst. The Indians of the White Earth and of the Red Lake (diminished) reser-
vations in Minnesota shall be authorized to cut and bank saw logs from the dead
timber standing or fallen on said reservations, the same to be sold on the bank in
the spring of 1895, to the highest bidder or bidders, either at public auction or by
sealed proposals, in the discretion of the Secretary of the Interior, and after due
advertisement: Prorided, Thatany Indian or combination of Indians on said reserva-
tions may, on proper showing of their inability to furnish their own logging ontfits
and supplies, and with the approval of the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and on
the recommendation of the agent, enter into a contract or contracts with any
responsible person or persons to cnt and bank any specitied quantity of timber at a
given price per thousand feet, such responsible person or persons being required to
give bond in a sufficient penalty stipulating for the faithful performance of the
obligations of such contract, the careful observance of the intercourse laws,” ete.

“Second. A reliable and otherwise qualified white man to be detuiled, if any such
can be spared from the agency employee force, or to be appointed by authority of
the Commissioner of Indian Affairs (for each reservation), and to be paid a reason-
able salary from the proceeds of sale of logs for such time as his services may be
actually necessary, whose duty it shall be, under the direction of the agent, 1o go
into the woods with the loggers and superintend and direct their labors to the end
that no green or growing timber may be cut, and that no live trees are damaged in
any manner so as to canse them to die that they may be marketed under the provi-
sions of the act of February 16, 18843, and algo to inspeet the scaling of the logs.

“Third. With theexception of asuperintendentoneach reservation provided for by
the preceding regulation. and in case wlere persons of sufficient knowledge and skill
for foremen and blacksmiths can not be found among the Indians, all white labor
shall be excluded from the reservation.

“ Fourth. One-half of the cost of scaling shall be paid by the Indian loggers and
one-half by the purchaser of the logs.

“Iifth, No sale of logs nor contruct for the sale of logs shall he valid nntil thesame
is approved by the Commissioner of Indian Affairs.

¢“Sixth. Ten per cent of the gross proceeds derived from the sale of the Jogs shall be
paid to the agent, to be used by him under the direction of the Commissioner of
Indian Afiairs for the support of the old, sick, and otherwise helpless members of
the bands.

‘“Seventh. All expenses of sale, such as advertising, telegraphing, one-half the cost
of scaling, salary of superintendent, and 10 per cent of the gross proceeds of the sales
shall be deducted by the agent, and the net proceeds remaining shall be divided and
paid by him to the individuals or companies of the tribe in exact proportion to the
scale of logs banked by each: Provided, That all moneys paid by any purchaser of
timber on account of such timber shall be paid to the agent in trust for the Indian
logger or loggers, and no snpplies, nor money in lieu of supplies, shall be furnished
by any contractor to the Indian loggers without the knowledge and consent of the
agent, or the superintendent of logging, if the agent shall authorize him in writing
to give such consent.

‘““Eighth. The agent for the White Earth Agency shall have power toprescrihe such
rules and regulations not inconsistent with these regulations as he may deem proper
and necessary to thoroughly protect the interests of the Indians and the Government
in the premises.”

As this timber will be lost to the Indians if not cut and sold, and as this logging
will give them work which they much need, I have the honor to recommend that
authority be granted for the cutting and sale of the dead and down timber on the
Red Lake and White Earth reservations, under the regnlations prescribed by the
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and that anthority therefor be indorsed hereon.

I have the honor to be, very respectfully, your obedient servant,

HOKE SMITH, Secretary.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
Vashington, September 11, 1895.
The PRESIDENT:

Under Executive anthority of December 24, 1894, the Indians of White Earth and
Red Lake reservations, in the State of Minnesota, were permitted to cut and market
their dead and down timber in accordance with the provisions of the act of Fehruary
16, 1889, and under the following regulations:

¢Firgt. The Indians of the White Earth and of the Red Lake (diminished) reser-
vations, in Minnesota, shall be anthorized to cut aud bank saw logs from the dead
timber standing or fallen on said reservattons, the same to be sold on the bank in the
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The Commissioner’s letter'and the accompanying papers show that there is a large
quantity of timber of this class on the White Earth Reservation that might be
advantageously put on the market by the Indians, and I have the honor to recom-
mend that authority be granted to dispose of this timber under the following regu-
lations, and that your authority be indorsed hereon:

I'irst. The Indians of the White Earth Reservation in Minnesota shall be author-
ized to cut and bank saw logs from the dead timber, standiug or fallen, on said
reservation, the same to be sold on the bank in the spring of 1897 to the highest
bidder or bidders, either at public auction or by sealed proposals, in the discretion
of the Secretary of the Interior, and after due advertisement: Prorided, That any
Indian or combination of Indians on said reservation may on proper showing of their
inability to furnish their own logging outfits and supplies, and with the approval of
the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and on the recommendation of the agent, enter
into a contract or contracts with any responsible person or persons to cut and bank
any specified quantity of timber at a given price per thousand feet, such responsible:
person or persons being required to give bond in a sufficient penalty stipulating for
the faithful performance of the obligations of such contract, the careful observance
of the intercourse laws, etc.

Second. A reliable and otherwise qualified white man to be detailed, if any such
can be spared from the agency employee force, or to be appointed by anthority of
the Commissioner of Indian Affairs (for the reservation) and to be paid a reasonable
salary from the proceeds of sale of logs, for such time as his services may be actually
necessary, whose duty it shall be, under the direction of the agent, to go into the
woods with the loggers and superintend and direct their labors to the end that no
green or growing timber may be cut, and that no live trees are damaged in any
manmner, so as to cause them to die, that they may be marketed under the provisions
of the act of February 16, 1889, and also to inspect the scaling of the logs.

Third., With the exception of a superintendent on the reservation provided for by
the preceding regulation, and in cases where persons of sufficient knowledge and
skill for foremen and blacksmiths can not be found among the Indians, all white
labor shall be excluded trom the reservation.

Fourth. One-half of the cost of scaling shall be paid by the Indian loggers and
one-half by the purchaser of the logs.

Fifth. No sale of logs, nor contract for the sale of logs, shall be valid until the
same is approved by the Commmissioner of Indian Affairs.

Sixth. Ten per cont of the gross proceeds derived from the sale of the logs shall
be paid to the agent, to be used by him under the direction of the Commissioner of
Indian Affairs for the support of the old, sick, and otherwise helpless members of
the bands.

Seventh. All expenses of sale, such as advertising, telegraphing, one-half of the
cost of scaling, salary of superintendent, and 10 per cent of the gross proceeds of
the sales shall be deducted by the arent, and the net proceeds remaining shall be
divided and paid by him to the individuals or companies of the tribe, in exact pro-
portion to the scale or the logs banked by e .ch: Provided. That all moneys paid by
any purchaser of tilnber, on account of such timber, shall be paid to the agent in
trust for the Indian logger or loggers, and no supplies, nor money in lieu of supplies,
shall be furnished by any contractor to the Indian loggers, without the knowledge
and consent of the agent, or the superintendent of logging if the agent shall author-
ize him in writing to give such consent.

Eighth, The agent for the White Earth Agency shall have power to prescr’’ - such
rules and regulations not inconsistent with these regulations as he ui. deem
proper and necessary to thoroughly protect the interests or the Indians and the Gov-
ernment in the premises.

Very respectfully, ‘WM. H. S1ims, Acting Secretary.,

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS,
Washington, October 29, 1897.
The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

SIrR: By a provision contained in the act of June 7, 1897 (Public, No. 3, p. 31), the
Secrctary of the Interior is given authority to permit the Indians in the State of
Minnesota to cut and sell dead timber, standing or fallen, on reservations in that
State whether unallotied or allotted, and also to cut and sell for their own Dbenefit
dead timber, standing or fallen, on ceded lands held by the United States to be sold
for their benefit as follows:

‘““The Secretary of the Interior may, in his discretion, from year to year, under:
such regulations as he may prescribe, authorize the Indians residing on any Indian
reservation in the State of Minnesota, whether the same has been allotted in severalty
or is still unallotted, to fell, cut, remove, sell, or otherwise dispose of the dead
timber, standing or fallen, on such reservation or any part thereof, for the sole-
benefit of such Indians; and he may also in like manner authorize the Chippewa.
Indians of Minnegota who have any interest or right in the proceeds derived from
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the sale of ceded Indian lands or the timber growing thereon, whereof the fee is
still in the United States, to fell, cut, remove, sell, or otherwise dispose of the dead
timber, standing or fallen, on such ceded land. But whenever there is reason to
believe that such dead timber in either case has been killed, burned, girdled, or
otherwise injured for the purpose of securing its sale under this act, then in that
case such authority shall not be granted.”

The Commissioner of the General Land Office has taken up the matter of the sell-
ing of the dead timber on the ceded Chippewa lands in Minnesota, and has prescribed
regulations to govern the same, which have been approved by you. Itseems now
that the Indians of the White Liarth and Red Lake diminished reservations were
under the impression that the regulations prescribed by the General Land Office
would apply as well to permit the disposition of the dead timber on said diminished
reservations as on the ceded portions of the Chippewa lands; and that in view of
this impression many of the Indians, especially on the White Earth Reservation,
have made large preparations, intending to enter into the logging business during
the approaching season. )

The matter was first brought to the attention of this office by a telegram dated
Oectober 23, 1897, from Mr. R. M. Allen, agent of the White Earth Agency, in which
he asks the following question:

‘“Has authority been granted to sell dead and down timber on diminished reserva-
tions? Superintendent Rosa does not understand that his instructions include the
diminished reservations.”

To this reply was made by this office October 23, 1897, as follows:

‘*Replying to your telegram this date, Superintendent Rosa is right. His instruec-
tions do not include dininished reservations of Red Lake or White lLarth.”

I have also received a letter of October 20, 1897, from W. F. Campbell, who states
that many of the Indians, in anticipation of authority to engage in logging on the
White Earth Reservation, put up about 500 tons of hay, and some have even gone
so far as to make logging camps. He states that there are from 15,000,000 to
18,000,000 feet of dead timber on these reservations that should be logged this winter,
if the Indians are to obtain any benefit from the timber.

Pending the consideration of this communication, Hon. Frank M. Eddy left at this
office a telegram received by him from Mr. B. L. Fairbanks, an Indian on the White
Earth Reservation, as follows:

‘¢ Will you please see the Commissioner of Indian Affairs and see that the Indian
loggers on the diminished White Earth Reservation have permits forwarded to the
Indian agent, at once, to cut dead and down timber? About fifteen of us have com-
menced building camps and cut roads, thinking that authority had been issued, but
tind wrong instructions issued to R. H. Rosa, superintendent of logging, only covers
timber on the ceded land. We have been to considerable expense, and parties who
will purchase our logs are getting impatient and may result your () not being able
to sell, and also result in about 15,000,000 feet that should be cut becoming worth-
less if left for another year. You can see the importance of our getting to work cut-
ting it [at] once if we are to do anything this year. Please answer.”

The effect of the provision contained in the act of June 7, 1897, is to relieve the
Department of the necessity, in case it should deem it expedient for the Indians to
engage in logging on reservations or allotments in Minnesota, of applying to the
President for executive anthority for the purpose, under the act of February 16, 1889
(25 Stats., 673), and to enable the Department to grant this authority itself.

The Indians of the White Ilarth Reservation were granted anthority by the Presi-
dent on Septemnber 24, 1896, for the sale of dead and down timber during the season
of 1896-97, and regnlations were prescribed to govern this entting under said author-
ity. In the course of the season it was discovered by Agent Allen that some of the
loggers had, in the temporary absence of the logging superintendent engaged in
superintending the cutting in other places, cut quite a quantity (about 200,000 feet)
of green timber. These camps were immediately closed by order of this office on the
discovery of this violation of the regulations, and Agent Allen was instructed that
they would not be permitted thereafter to engage in logging on the reservations, as
a punishment for their violation of the regulations.

I have the honor, in view of the foregoing, to recommend that authority be granted
for the Indians of the Red Lake and White Earth diminished reservations to engage
in the logging of dead timber, standing or fallen, on the unallotted lands of said
reservation during the logging season of 1897-98, and also that the following regu-
lations to govern these operations be prescribed by the Department, said regulations
being the same as those prescribed by the President to govern the operations ef the
Indians in the logging of dead timber during the last season, except that no authority
is granted for the parties who violated the regulations last year to participate in the
logging during this season, viz:

First. The Indians of the White Earth and Red Lake diminished reservations in
Minnesota (except Scott Goodwin, Samuel Mooers, and Ne bah o say quay) shall be
authorized to cut and bank saw logs from the dead timber standing or fallen on said
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In view of all the circumstances as reported by Agent Allen and as shown by the
correspondence herein referred to or quoted, it seems to me that it would be wise to
grant the authority desired by the Indians.

I inclose, besides Agent Allen’s report above mentioned, Mr. Campbell’s letter, the
telegrams from Agent Allen and Mr. Fairbanks being quoted herein.

Very respectfully, your obedient servant,
W. A. JoNks, Commissioner.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
Washington, October 30, 1897.
The COMMISSIONER OF INDIAN AFFAIRS.

Sir: I have cousidered your letter of the 29th instant, in the matter of cutting
dead timber, standing or fallen, by the Indians of the diminished White Earth and
Red Lake reservations, Minn.

In accordance with your recommendation, authority is hereby granted for the
Indians of the White Earth and Red Lake diminished reservations to engage in the
logging of dead timber, standing or fallen, on the unallotted lands of said reserva-
tions during the logging season of 1897-98, under the regulations prescribed by the
President governing logging operations last season, which are hereby adopted for
this year’s work, except that no authority is granted for the parties who violated
the regulations last year and cut green timber to participate in the logging during
this season.

The inclosures to your letter are herewith returned.

Very respectfully, TaHOS. RYAN,
Acting Secretary.

The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR.

Sir: According to instructions contained in your communication of the 1st
instunt, I have the honor to report the result of my investigation relative to the
logging operations under the control of the agent of the White Earth Agency, Minn.

I have cavefully investigated the logeing transactions, both on the ceded and
diminished reservations, and find they are carried on according to the manner
prescribed by the regulations.

The total amount of money received by the agent from the fifty-one logging camps
on the ceded and diminished reservations prior to July 1, 1898, was $363,900.31; of
this amonnt $243,7565.07 came from the ceded reservation, and $103,809.98 was from
tlie diminished reservations. Allof the latter has been disbursed. Of the $243,755.07
received from the ceded reservation $227,419.81 has been paid to the Indian logging
camps, see Kxhibit A, BB, C, D, E, and I, which show the total amount disbursed so
far on both the ceded and diminished reservations, leaving a balance of $16,335.26
still dne the logging canips of Jolin Bonga, Bay shay cum ig, Mark Burns, Folstrom
& Morrison, and Charlotte Weaver, ol the ceded reservations.

Before the agent could settle with and pay the above Indian logging camps he
was directed by the Ccmmissioner of Indian Affairs to deposit this money in the
Treasury of the United States by letter under date of June 2, 1898,

I find that the manner of keeping the books and accounts relating to all logging
transactions are plainly and legibly kept, vouchers are retained for all time checks,
supply, and scalers’ accounts, and cash paid. I found but few errors, and no doubt
the agent will be called npon by the Indian Office to explain them.

One matter I think should be corrected; that is, some of the sheets that contain
the condensed statement of an Indian logger’s account was not on a page of the
book in which the accounts were kept, but on a sheet of paper fastened into the
book with McGill fasteners, and can be detached and another sheet substituted in
its place. This does not occur in but a few cases. It seems to have been the custom
of former agents. I called Agent Sutherland’s attention to this fact, and he prom-
istﬂi to correct this fault in the future. The only other errors I found were as
follows:

Exhibit E, E. L. Warren, ceded reservation, in making the voucher the item of
amount paid for scaling shows $176.92 as the amount paid to the scaler, the full
amount charged for scaling being charged, while the voucher should show $88.46,
one-half that amount, or half scale, which was the amount actually paid, and the
voucher should show the amount paid the Indian logger to be $22,430.89, the amount
paid him, instead of $22,342.43, the amount reported as paid him.

Exhibit F, Nellie Lydick’s account, ceded reservation, shows but two accounts on
the voucher. There evidently should be three, as the scaler’s statement on file in
the agent’s office calls for three lots of logs scaled, and the number of feet of lumber
reported by him is as follows: 39,140 feet, 2,668,700 feet, and 2,210,960 feet, making
a total of 4,918,800 feet. The two accounts on the voucher call for 2,250,100 feet
and 2,668,700 feet, a total of 4,918,800 feet. The total number of feet seems to be
correct, as that is the same amount reported by the scaler, but the total number of
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logs reported to have been banked by the scaler does not seem to agree with the
number of logs reported banked on the voucher.

The only cash error I have discovered was in Exhibit ¥, John Lyon’s account,
ceded reservation. Inhisaccount the amount of scalage deducted was $162.88. The
amount that should have been deducted, as per the scaler’s bill, is $142.87, difference
of $20.01, which amount should now be on eposit in the Second National Bank at
St. Paul. This amount should [(be] paid pro rata among the Indians of camp. This
$20.01, now in the bank, and the $16,335.26, now in the Treasury of the United States,
making a total of $16,355.26, is the amount still remaining to be disbursed.

The agent has no logging money in his hands at this time, except the $20.01 above
mentioned, and does not expect to have any during the current quarter, and probably
will not have any until new contracts are made later in the year.

I think it would be wise in the future when contracts are made to cut lumber on
the ceded reservations that the Indian laborers be protected in the same manner as
they are on the diminished reservations. On the diminished reservations the Indian
labor is paid first and the supply accounts afterwards, so if there be a loss it is
deducted from the supply accounts on the ceded reservations. The Indian laborer
does not receive his pay until the supply accounts are all paid. In case of loss
(which is not unusual) the Indians are obliged to take what is left, in many instances
as little a8 50 cents on the dollar. In some cases as low as 36 cents on the dollar has
been paid.

Very respeetfully, ARTHUR M. TINKER,
United States Indian Inspector.
WHITE EARTH AGENCY,
White Earth, Minn., August 20, 1898.

ExHIBIT A.

Stump-
age, 10
and 15 per| Soal-

Num- . cent de- | age, | Amount
Reser- Number of | Price |Total value i :
H Name of oontractor. | ber of ducted, jone-half| paid con-
vation, logs. feet. per M.} of logs. | .o 50" de. | tractor.
perin- |ducted.
tendent’s
salary.
Ceded .| H.S. Van Nett........ 1, 656 275,070 | $5.00 | $1,375.35 | @$206.30 | $7.63 | $1,161.41
Dim ...[ Paul Villebrun ....... 4,592 798, 800 5.00 3, 994. 00 431.35 | 20.72 | 3,541.93

2,200 261, 190 5. 00 1,305.95 | @195.89 7.28 | 1,102.79

998 200, 670 5.00 1,003.35 | @150.50 5.77 847.09
2,571 434,410 5.00 2,172.05 234.58 | 11.61 | 1,925.86
3,390 423, 760 5,00 2,118.80 | @317.82 | 11.35 | 1,789.63
Dim ...] Roy & Beaulieu 3,349 423, 140 5.00 2,115.70 228.49 | 11.32 | 1,875.88
Ceded .| Wm. V. Warren . 6,755 766, 410 5.00 3,832.05 | @574.80 | 19.96 | 3,2387.29

b N1] 7Y (R PR P ) (R, 17,917.25 [2,339.73  95.64 | 15,481.88

Ceded .| Pat Perrault....
Ceded .| Alex. McKenzie
Dim ...| Rogers & Sloan.
Ceded .| Chas. E. Leith ..

@ No salary of superintendent. b Total stumpage, $2,273.49; total salary of superintendent, $66.24
ExHiBIT B.

Stump-
age, 10
and 15 per| Scal-

Num- . cent de- | age, | Amount
‘gﬁgﬂ Name of contractor. | ber of Nuﬂle):r of Eni‘? T?g'll: a:ue ducted, |one-half| paid con-
- logs. - per A &8- | and su- | de- | tractor.
perin- |ducted.
tendent’s
salary.
Dim ...| Pah omb way we dum
0RO e 14,781 | 2,257,490 | $5.00 | $11, 287.45 |$1,219.03 | $79.00 | $9, 989, 42
Dim ...| Fairbanks & Warren.| 19,392 | 2,919,940 5 00 | 14,599.70 | 1,576.76 | 102.19 | 12,920.75
Dim ...| Louiza Louzon Lynch | 15,469 | 2,279,370 5.00 | 11,396.68 | 1,230.83 | 79.76 | 10, 086.09
Dim ... Mary Andrews Hod-
[ 0 . 6, 335 846, 420 5.00 4,232.10 459.06 | 20.61 | 3,743.43

11.696 | 1,767,180 5.00 8,835.90 954.27 | 61.85 ;| 7,819.79
1, 514,310 5.00 7,571. 56 817.72 | 52.99 | 6,700.84

Dim ...| Fairbanks & Uran
Dim ... Heury Selkirk. .

Dim ...| Perraunlt Bros.. . 415, 790 5.00 2,078.95 224.52 | 14.55| 1,839.88
Dim ...! Uran & McDougall .- 14 754 | 2,036,550 5.00 | 10,182.75 11,099.73 | 71.25 | 9,011.76
Ceded .| Pemberton Bros ......|........ 675, 870 5.00 3,376.85 | ¢506.52 | 18.95 | 2,851.38

0T Y ) e 73, 561. 93 b8, 088,44 | 510.16 | 64,963.34

a No salary of superintendent. b Total stnmpage, $7,525; total salary of superintendent, $563.44
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Exmisrr C.
Stamp- | Scal-
Num- . Amount
Reser- Number of| Price |{Total value| age, 15 |age,one{ ~;
vation,| Name of contractor. ligr s° f ‘oot per M.| of logs. | per cent half de- l;a{;%tc:;_"
gs- deducted.| ducted. ‘
Ceded .| Margaret Gilbreath ..| 8,484 | 1,200,630 | $4.25 | $5,102.68 | $765.40 | $42.00 | $4, 295,28
Ceded .| Lizzette Sherer....... 10,292 | 1,229,290 4,2 5,224.48 783.67 | 43.01 | 4,397.80
Total..... eosanc|encsacaceacacacccns]nancannn 10,327.16 | 1,559.07 | 85.01 | 8,693.08
ExmisiT D.
Stumpage S
cal-
Number | Number of| Price | Total value| 224 80~ |as0'ope | Aount
Name of contractor. perin- : paid con-
of logs. feet. per M.| of logs. |4 Gantigl lcllﬂl.llé'tgg tractor.
salary. .
Pug ue nay ge shy & Co ..... 17,923 | 2,459,930 | $5.00 | $12,299. 65 [$1,404.96 | $59.98 [$10, 834.71
Gumeaun & Morrison.... 11,587 | 1,513,150 5.00 7,565. 75 856. 57 (a) 6,709.18
W.R.Spears .co...... 16,388 | 3,106,080 5.00 | 15,530.40 | 2,329.56 | 119.11 | 13,081.73
Ogay bay gwin abeak 5,079 837, 850 5.00 4,189.25 493.92 | 43.68 | 3,651.65
Josette How ......... 4,020 535, 400 5.00 2,677.00 401.55 | 12.28 | 2,263.17
Serephine Neddeau .. 2,948 257,700 5.00 1,288.50 134. 60 (a) 1,153.90
000 - AR R R PR (R 42,550.55 |b5,621.16 | 235.05 | 37,694.34
aNo salary of superintendent. Scale bill paid direct toscaler by loggers and contractors.
b Total stumpage, $5,271.16; total superintendent’s salary, $350.
ExHiBIiT E.
Stamp-
age, 15
and 10
Reser- Number | Price | Total value | per cent Scalage, | Amount
vation. Name of contractor. of feet. | per M. of logs. |deducted, one-half | paid con-
deducted. tractors.
salary of
superin-
tendent.
Ceded..| Warren & Fairbanks....| 5,846,350 [ $5.00 $29,231.75 1$4,384.76 | $109.556 | $24,737.44
Ceded..| E. 1. Warren.c..ee-....- 5, 298, 670 5.00 26, 493.35 | 3, 974. 00 176. 92 22, 342,43
708, 230 5.75 4,417.32 662. 60 22. 66 3,732.06
879, 380 5. 00 4,396. 90 395.71 (@) 4,001. 19
1, 326, 696 5.00 6,678.77 995. 02 (@) b, 683. 75
Ceded.., Warren & Bonga........ 2, 108, 330 5.00 10,541.65 | 1,581.24 52.70 8,907.71
Ceded..| Bonga & Diek........... 872,100 5.00 4, 360. 50 654.10 25. 00 3,681.40
Ceded..| Roy Bros.........c..a.. 866, 720 5.00 4, 330. 60 649. 59 23.85 3,657.16
Ceded..| Albert Fairbanks...... 657, 500 5.50 3,616.25 542. 43 26. 00 3,048.82
Ceded..| On ah e gwonay beak....| 2,916,100 5.00 14, 580.50 | 2,187.08 98.36 1, 295. 06
Doded- - Fairbanks & Warren.....\{ ; 830000 b .50 | 10,627.32 | 1,251.20 | 6214 |  9,313.98
B N2 7:) P cemefeancen --| 119,274.91 (17,277.73 596.18 | 101, 401,00

a Scale paid direct to acaler by loggers and contrastor.

8. Doc. 70 6
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the amount of 48,919,946 feet, which was sold at an average of $4.78 per
thousand. There were thirty-two camps in operation, and the percent-
age due laborers in the camps after settlement was 88% per cent.,

On the diminished reservation there was cut and banked 22,262,950
feet, which was sold at $4.96% per thousand. Sixteen camps were in
operation, and the laborers were paid 95% per cent of the amount due
them upon settlement of the camps’ indebtedness.

Abstracts A and B herewith give in detail the names of parties oper-
ating camps, Indian loggers, number of logs banked in each camp, num-
ber of feet banked, price per thousand, total value of logs, stumpage,
scalage, gross amount paid contractors or Indian loggers, per cent of
labor paid, and (on the diminished) salary of superintendents.

So far as it was possible to ascertain, these accounts have been prop-
erly and accurately kept, with two exceptions, which were plainly cler-
ical errors, viz: Tirst. In the account of I'. C. Bolin, contractor, who
bought 879,300 feet of logs of E. .. Warren, Indian logger, it is found
that Mr. Bolin paid to Agent Sutherland $3 per thousand for the said
logs, a total of $2,638.14, he having already paid $2 per thousand in
supplies for labor, ete., as allowed. By error the agent computed 15 per
cent of the $2,638.14 (or $3 per thousand) for stumpage, when he should
have taken 15 per cent of $4,396.90, this last amount being the total
value of the logs at $5 per thousand, making a discrepanecy of $263.82,
Second. In the account of James Fairbanks, Indian logger, and George
F. Porter, contractor, the agent makes a clerical error of $100 in deduct-
ing 15 per cent stumpage from said account, making another discrep-
ancy of $100; in all, $363.82, which nearly accounts tor the discrepancy
shown on last page of inclosure 49624 herewith, submitted by the
General Land Office.

No serious objection could be found to the system of accounting
employed by the agent nor the manner in which the accounts of the
various camps were kept. The trouble found was rather in the man-
agement of the camps and in the system itself.

Under the present plan of conducting logging operations for cutting
the so-called ‘“dead and down” timber on these reservations, any
Indian is permitted to enter into contract with responsible persons to
establish logging camps on agreed tracts, to purchase necessary outfits,
employ men, build roads, and proceed to cut and bank the timber from
said tracts for market. Superintendents of logging are placed in the
timber on ceded portions of the reservation by the General Land
Office, and on diminished portions by the United States Indian agent.
These superintendents are supposed to visit the various camps and to-
designate such trees as are ‘‘dead and down,” permitting the cutting only
of timber so designated. Logs cut from these tracts are hauled to the
nearest lake or river banks, where they are scaled by an expert scaler,
appointed by the State surveyor-general, and agreed upon by all inter-
ested parties. No complaint was made concerning the manner or
accuracy of the scaler’s work., Thelogs as scaled on the bank are then
sold, the purchase price being paid into the hands of the United States
Indian agent, who proceeds to settle the indebtedness of the camps,
the claims against same having been presented to him during the
progress of the operations and charged by him against each camp as
presented.

Owing to inability of many of the camps to pay out, and as under
the rules the laborers’ claims were the last to be paid, scores of Indians
working in the camps did not receive the wages they expected. This
was one source of serious complaint on the part of the Indians.
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bermen in the Northwest will tell you that there is practically no dead
and down merchantable timber on these reservations and that the cut-
ting of so-called “dead and down” is a farce, and my observations and
investigations bear out the statement.

I would most emphatically recommend the suspension of all logging
of dead and down timber, for the following reasons: First, that the
present systemn is unsatisfactory and cumbersome; second, that under
this system both the Government and Indians are losing thousands of
dollars annually; third, that green timber is being cut and wasted
under false pretenses; fourth, that the Indians are being so plainly
defranded that they are greatly dissatisfied, and their discontent is
assuming serious proportions.

The Indians are, however, desirous of having timber operations
resumed on a basis of common sense and common honesty. They
favor the selling outright of all their pine timber at not less than 32
per thousand for Norway and $3 for white, as it stands, or the putting
in of mills by the Government under the Menomonee plan. Either, I
think, would be practicable and result satisfactorily to both Indians and
Government.

¥* * * * * * *

As per your verbal request I made a general inspection of agency
affairs, their management, condition of Indians, etc.

I find much dissatisfaction among the Indians that is excusable, and
that may be easily remedied. One of the principal complaints is the
inability of the agent to attend, personally, to all the business ot the
reservation. This can not be done with the different bands so widely
scattered and with roads impassable the larger part of the year. No
agent has as yet been able to give satisfaction in this respect since the
agencies were consolidated. I would therefore urge that a regular
bonded agent be placed at Leech Lake in charge of the Indians there,
and that the Indians of Cass Liake be also put under his charge.

Another complaint is that mixed-bloods anhd ¢ squaw men” are given
equal opportunities on the reservation with full-blooded Indians, if not
advantages over them, While this is not true in tact it is nevertheless
true that many of the mixed-bloods and ‘“squaw men” are constantly
stirring up strife, and, being better educated and generally keen busi-
ness men they get the best of every deal that a full-blood may risk with
them. Something should be done at once to rid the full-bloods of this
unfair competition. Only such as have a preponderance of Indian
blood should be recognized as Indians. The law should be changed,
and until changed there will be constant and serious annoyances aris-
ing from it.

The Indians complain that the Chippewa Commission, which, from
Jauuary, 1889, till July, 1897, paid out of their funds over $22,000 per
annum in salaries alone (and about $10,000 per annum since that time),
has outlived its usefulness, and that its business should be terminated
at an early date.

They complain that some $300,000 to $400,000 has been expended
from their funds for timber estimating that has been of little or no
benefit to them; that, in fact, nearly all of this vast sum was wasted,
and they are held up in ridicule as the victims of such extravagance.

They also complain that under the Chippewa Commission allotment
act strange Indians from other parts of the State and from Wisconsin,
many of whom have already received benefits from pine lands, are per-
mitted to come among them and that they are compelled to share with
all such.
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Statement showing the amounts that should have been realized under the contracts for
cutting dead and down timber on the Chippewa reservations in Minnesota, estimated
Srom the scale bills and reports of the superintendent and Indian agent that full amount
had been paid, and from the price named in the contracts.

Name. Amount. Name. Amount.
Jobn Warren and William Bouga . $10,541.65 || B. L. Warren .......ococouvivaeianans $26, 493. 35
Josette How.. PO 2,677.00 (| Alex McKenzie 1, 003. 35
Jane Fairbanks .-oovooomooonooroos 1,514.57 || John Bonga ... 3, 698. 90
Nason & Smith_ .. .. ... . 3,085.43 || C.E.Leith...coceioumiiiinannaaa., 2,118.80
William Lyons «ceeeenienemnaaaoaaaoon 3,912.81 || Al Fairbanks ... 3, 616.25
John Lyons «oo.ooooiiiiiiii oo 8,680.07 || P. Bonga and Chas. Dic 4, 360. 50
Warren & Fairbanks...........o..o0 3,769.69 | E.L. Warren and B. L. Fairbanks. 29, 231.75
William Fairbanks........ ... ... 6,034.75 || Louis and J08. ROY ceeveunenn .- 4, 330. 60
Nellie Lydiek .coo.oviiianineinaaas 21,467.43 || H. S. Vannette... R 1,375.35
Morrison & Folstrom.. .............. 2,791.35 || Mark Burns...ceceememenocnuo.. .| 15,153.97
Lizzette Sherer....................... 5,224.48 | W. V. Warren ...coeceeeeaeiaininn. 3,832.05
Maggie Seelye..ceenoiiiieninaaa... 28,955.60 || M. Galbreath ........................ 5,152, 68
Nebenet tic coeueeeeeieeeannaio. 4,579.88 || Bay Shah Kah Mig .................. 4,226. 65
E. L. Warren.cee.eeeeeeaeeenneaaeanan 4,417.32 | E.L. Warren ........................ 4, 396, 90
H. Taylor «ouciiieiaicnaaiaciacanns 3,756.15 || N. B.and J. B. Pemberton ........... 3,376.85
Pat Perrault cceeveeeooeeuecaeeennnas 1,805.95 || Charlotte Weaver . 1, 276. 50
W.R. Spears..c......oioiaiiiaaiann. 15,515.05 || Serephine Neddeau..coeeooveuneannn- 71.30
Onah Egwon Aybeck. 14, 580. 50 —
Clara Ducette .oeecevur caemaiannanann 6,633.48 Total ..... eeemeeieccasaeamenaan 264, 058. 94

Statement taken from the account of Indian Agent Sutherland, rendered June 30, 1898,
as to logging operations on Chippewa ceded lands, Minnesola.

EXHIBIT A.
Amount
Value of | Stumpage .
Name of contractor. logs. 15 per cent. Scalage. %?;gt‘é(t’-lsl:
H.S. Vannette . .oceeeeemmonimmemicni e, $1, 375.35 $206.30 $7.63 $1,161.41
Pat Perrault... 1, 305. 95 195. 89 7.28 1,102.79
Alex. McKenzie . 1,003.35 150. 50 5.77 847.09
Charles E. Leith . 2,118.80 317. 82 11.35 1,789. 63
Wm. V. Warren. coeeceicaecieiiieeiiiccea e e 3, 832. 05 574, 80 19. 96 3,237.29
B 9635. 50 1, 445.31 51.99 8,138.21
EXHIBIT B.
Pemberton Bros ............. cenreamaanee cereanecneean $3,376.85 $506. 52 $18.95 $2,851.38
EXHIBIT C.
Margaret Galbreath ........... ceeeeceaceanas ceses-l $5,102. 68 $765. 40 $42.00 $4,295. 28
LiZett Sherer «cceeeenieeeeiiiccienarcnennacceann. 5,224.48 783.67 43.01 4, 397. 80
Total ..... eeseccanacncnaen cavacenceaane eevee--.| 10,327.16 1, 549. 07 85.01 8, 693. 08
EXHIBIT D.
W. R. Spears $15,530.40 | $2,329.56 $119,11 | $13,081.73
Josette How. 2, 677. 00 401.55 12.28 2, 263.17
Serephine Neddeau (on both diminished and ceded
lands).eceeccena.. S 115. 00 17.25 [iceencennnns 1,153. 90
Total ...... secesccmssacmacratacsaccanacmncanes 18,322, 40 2, 748.36 131.39 4,798.80
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The following assistant superintendents have filed expense accounts for the

amounts opposite their names:

H. G. HamaKer .. .co oot i ca tiacca ceeccacace ceecanceeacecaccceanan $40. 50
SR T 1 T 0 232.77
R. €. MeCure « o oo o iiee i e et e eiceac e eemm——————— 212. 30
D. W. Arnold ... oo et ciiaecceacaccsenaaaaa 60.00
John A. Henderson ..... ... iiiiieaacaaaceaaaeccaacaacccecsaacenanaaaas 172.50

1 718.07

Grand total, due superintendent and asssistants, $1,447.76.

This must be deducted

from the 15 per cent fund, and leaves a balance of $36,183.68 to the credit of the
Indian fund, on deposit at the Second National Bank as above stated.

Indian agents’ | HECHRRSE,
accounts for . :
tracts which have
fourth quarter, been reported as
1898, shows aid iu};‘ull and
Jamps. amounts depos- ahich were the Difference.
ited in Treasury | o0 S que a8
on unsettled log- shown by soale
gln‘g 10 amPS, 88 | hillg am&lr con-
ollows: tracts.
Bay shay cumig . - cocovommeean e $2, 535,99 $4,226.65 $1, 690. 66
Jobn Bonga ....... 2,219.34 3, 698. 90 1, 479. 56
Mark Burns.......... 8,022. 68 15, 153. 97 7,131.29
Folstrom & Morrison 2,791.35 2,791,385 {oeeennnaaann
Charlotte Weaver. 765. 90 1, 276.50 510. 60
B0 7 16, 335. 26 27,147.37 10, 812,11
Amount paid on settled contracts, as shown by accounts in the Indian
L0 5T $237, 013. 04
Amount paid on unseftled contracts, as shown by accountsin the Indian
L0 T 16, 335. 26
Amount due on reported unsettled contracts, as estimated in the Land
L6 10, 812.11
Total ..o e ieeeieeeeeeeeeee e 264, 160. 41
Amount apparently overpaid. ... ... ol il $84. 83
Errors to balanee ... .. .. iieiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeaea.... 16,64
101.47
True total under contracts ... ... ... ..l iieiiinii . 264, 058. 94
Amount realized from sales of logs on skids in the woods, which seems
to be independent of all other payments.................. e 32, 509. 28
Grand total which should have been received, exclusive of error
0f F16.64 . . i e iiiiciceaaicenaaaaas $266, 568. 22

Under date of October 30, 1898, Indian agent reports that he has deposited in bank,
as the 15 per cent fund, $35,544.62; that the unsettled accounts, when settled, will
yield to said fund $4,072.08, which is 15 per cent of $27,147.20. Our account shows
that this last figure is practically correct, being, in fact, $27,147.37. Indian agent
further reports, October 30, 1843, that the gross sale amounted to $265,263.29. Our
account shows that this should be, exclusive of the supposed error, $266,568.22. Fif-
teen per cent of the total amount just above shown should yield $39,985.23. The
Indian agent’s report of October 30, 1898, shows #39,616.70. His account to the
Indian Ottice, showing, as stated, a 15 per cent fund of $35,181.16, seems to be an
error, as the amount, $237,013.04, should yield $35,551.96, giving an error of $370.80
against the Indian agent, which, if added to the amount above shown, $39,616.70,
will yield $39,987.50, or $2.27 more than seems to be due from him to that fund, so
that he seems to owe the 15 per cent fund $368.53. From the total 15 per cent (und of
$39,985.23 should be taken the expenses of superintendent and assistants, $1,447.76,
which would leave a net fund of $38,537.47.

WaITE EARTH, MINN., January 21, 1898.
Hon. JOHN SUTHERLAND,
United States Indian Agent.
SIr: Under instructions from you I visited the various logging camps on the reser-
vation with a view to determining which camp, it any, was illegally cutting green
and growing timber, it having been reported by several parties as having occurred.
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ABSTRACT C.—List of employees—Continued.

Ka ke gay o say (I).
Dah guin (I).

Vetell be Lizette (I).
Elic Gurneau (I).

Dan Meehan (I).
Henry Fitch (W).

Sah bun (I).

Fred Clerk (I).
Francis Gurnecau (I).
Kah she be quay (I).
Bah shah bosh kuh we ne nee (I).
Oke mah wah che web (I).
Cus ska Jar (I).

Be tah we ke shig (I).
Antelle Lessette (I).
Joseph Lessette (I).
Heg gah bow (I).

Guo. Lizzie (I).

Wein zie (1).

Jos. Clark (I).

Tib ish conse (I).
Henry Studburnee (W),
Gay she ash (I).

Ah ke wen zie (I).
Fred Clark (I).

Ed. Hayes (W).

Louis Gurnean (I).
Kah she bo quay (I).
Wali say ke shig (I1).
Chas. Kah Jah (I).

Bah shah bosh kah we ne nee (I).
May she kay we ga how (I).
Be tah we ke shig (I).
Joe Lizette (I).

Joe Roy (I).

Louis Sletdham (I).
Peter McAndrews (W).
Tom Oleson (W).

Wm. Randall (W).

Sah Bwon (I).

O che bwery (I).
Weinzie (I).

Neg gah bow (I).

Wah be be she kee (I).
John Baptiste (I).
Black Bird (I).

Joe Smith (I).

O dah wance (I).

Dan Kivney (I).

Wah be be nais (I).

J. W. Watson (W),
Adam Clyde (W).
Thos. Jefferson (I).
Geo. English (I).

Tib bish coonse (I).
John Torcot (W).

Geo. McNeiee (W),
W.A. Tyber (W).

C. W. Morrison (I).
May mah che gah bow (I),
Johs Wilber (I).

Jas. Kelly (W).

Moshe ke nance (I).
Jas. Cameron (I).
Antoine Delone (I).
Thomas Jones (I).
Ben Sharp (I).

John Labine (I).

Frank Murphy (W).
Jerry Weltel (W).
Mike Laveck (I).
Peter Wettles (I).
Louis Morand (1).
Charles Yomell (I).
Thomas Hibey (W).
Frank Overmiller (W),
George Conncll (I).
Olaf Quilly (W).
James McMillin (W).
John Boadman (W).
Lewis Carold (I).

H. G. Iverson (W).
Fraunk Carold (I).

Ed. Erickson (W).
Engene McCarty W).
William Kells (W).
Amus Big Bird (I).

I. J. Labarge (W).
Samuel Dickerson (W),
Louis King (I).

Little Frenchman (I).
Bazil Lawrence (I).
Hah o che char qnay (I).
Gwona ay sung (I).
John George (1).

Me mence (1).

Francis Lawrence (I).
Ann duso ding (I).
Red Rustee (1).

Bay shar nar quot (I).
Ann ah quet (I).

John Lah na aube (I).
Caw caw kenee (I).
William Prentice (I).
Lewis King (I).

Hary S. Kiffington (W).
Levoy Ganneau (I).
Irnie Laburge (I).
Malcom Campbell (I).
Frank Richard (8).
John Boye (8).

Steve Ford (W).
James Campbell (W),
Chas. Summer (I).
John Spears (I).

E.D. Campbell (W),
Valve Static (I).
James Troy (W).

U. A.Tayler (W).
John Gurman (I).
Wm. A. Arson (I).

Gay be che quin ace (I).
Henry Cullahan (W).
Ke chu o ge mah (I).
Geo. Reynolds (W).
Joe LaBlanche (I).
Theodore Floun (I).
Chas. Simonson (W),
Nelson Accless (W).
Wallace Pease (W).
J. L. Hickey (W).
Jeremiah O’Keeffe (W),
John J. Tyrrne (W).
Ben Racklift (W).
George Welte (W),
A.D. Root (W).
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ABSTRACT C.—List of employees—Continued.

Bruno Lutchue (I).
Joseph Wilson (I).
John Leach (8).
John Devine (1),
Jim Grundy (I).

Jim Elick (I).

Jolhn Villebrun (I).
Charley YFineday (I).
Willie De Marre (I).
Paul De Marre (I).
Mecadie La Claire (I).
Jno. Turpin (1).

C. Villebrun (I).

P. Villebrun, jr. (I).
A.De Marre (1).

Saul De Marre (I).
Bellie Woods (W),
David Brown (W).
T. McDonald (I).
Fred Healey (W).
Ageline Villebrun (I).
Ind. Martinson (W).
John Harrington (W),
Louis Mickbery (W),
Charley Fineday (I).
John Villebrun (I).
Paul Villebrun, jr. (I).
Ole Landberg (W).
John Ketchum (I).
Tom MeDonald ().
George Perrault (1).
Mary Stevens (W).
John Wickbery (W).
S.J. Thoers (W).
James Buuker (I).
Henry Beaulien (I).
Ma gee ga bow (I).
T.C.MecDonald (I).
J. H. Rietan (W),
Otto Miller (W).
John Stevens (W).
Lesmer Perrault (I).
Leo Henry (I).

Jos. Flamont (I).
Mary Perrault (I).
Gabe Saice (I).

P. Beauchamp (I).

J. Van West (8).

E. A.Kay (W).
Madeline Perrault (I),
A. H. Froshaug (W).
Theo. Lee (W).
Romain Perrault (I).
J. E. Perrault (I).
John Fairbanks (I).
Jack McLean (3).
Robert Beaulien (I)
Gay bay be tung (I).
Jack Papyan (I).
King Bird (I).

Jack Sulvan (I).
John Rowley (I).
Chas. Donly (W).
Christ Northmess (W).
‘Wm. Wade (I).
Henry Northmess (W),
Chas. Gardner (I).
Jim Ahyahbunce (I).

George Benson (W).
A. G.Johnson (W).
Julius Johnson (W),
Martin Erdal (W).
Peter Fossom (W).
Chas. Wade (I).

‘Wm. Sloan (I).

Chas. Durant (I).
Frank Wade (I).
A.T. Leith (I).

John Allen (W).

Ash quay gwon nabe (I).
Henry La Prarie (I).
Albert Thompson (I).
Wm. Bramette (I).
Robert Roy (I).
Mary Roy (I).

Hugh Thompson (I).
Aut. Detour (I).
Mark Hart (I).

Jack Sullavan (W),
Frank Perkins (W).
Knub Bergete (W).
Fred Bellum (I).
Frank Saice (I).
Theodore Bellefenille (I).
Jonas Bellefenille (1).
John Legone (I).
John Borstad (W).
Jas. Hackenbroeht (W),
Fred Belluud (I).
Augst Cort (W).

Luo Bushaw (1).

Jas. Defendefor (\W).
Kilberg Borstad (W).
Frank Perraunlt (I).
Ed. Belaund (I).

Ole I'rosen (W).
Johm Kleepe (W).
Julius Bergersou (W),
Jas. Willeocks (W).
Frank Spry (1).

Geo. Smith (I).

Peet Bushaw (I).
Robert Belamd (1),
S. Duseth (I).

Luo. Litche ().

Joe Lyetennass (W),
S. Desantts (W).
Coles Saice (I).

Chus. Vece (1).

Steve Albertson (W),
D. D. Tunner (\W).
W. 8. North (W).

J. Anderson (W).
Gus Anderson (W),
F. Brig (W).

S. H. Shoes (W).

H. S. Halenson (W),
John Varty (W).
Peter Perrault (I).

L. Beanchawyp (I).
Frank Michaund (I).
T. R. Vezenau (I).

F. Lane (W).

E. Leljewell (W).

E. Ennerson (W),
Alex. Bain (W).
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Agency is the authorization by the President of the sale of the timber,
under existing treaty and law, to a contractor who is required to give
bond and to erect mills on the reservations and to pay tor the timber
not less than certain stated prices, according to the quality and char-
acter of the timber purchased, the entire transaction of logging and
milling the timber being conducted under the supervision of the agent
and regulations prescribed by the President to govern the work.

I inclose herewith a blank form of contract in force on the Bad River
or La Pointe Reservation, on page 2 of which is reprinted the regula-
tions presecribed by the President to govern in this matter. It will be
observed that in regulation No. 1 the President prescribes the minimum
prices for whieh the timber can be sold.

This contract is used in the case of sale of timber by the allottees on
this reservation. The authority of the President to permit the sale of
timber on the unallotted or tribal lands of the reservation extends only
to the dead timber standing or fallen thereon, and is found in the act
of February 16, 1889 (25 Stats., 673). The minimum price for timber of
this character is $2 per 1,000 feet on the stamp.

Of course it must be understood that in the case of the Chippewas
of Minnesota, should Congress anthorize thie adoption of a plan similar
to the La Pointe plan (the Indians consenting), it would not conform
precisely to the Lia Pointe method, but in its general features it would.
The timber would be sold on actual measurement made by scalers—one
employed by the Government aud one by the purchaser—the timber
not to be removed until paid for; mills would be established on the
reservations, or near by, so that the Indians could obtain profitable
employment not only in cutting the timber in the woods, but in its
manntacture at the mills as well. Moreover, the Indians would get pay
for their dead timber, which would be an item of great importance to
them.

The plan in operation on the Menominee Reservation of the Green
Bay Agency is that authorized by Congress in the act of June 12,1890
(26 Stats., 146), whereby the agent is permitted to enter into contract
with the Indians of the reservation to log and bank not exceeding
20,0¢:0,000 feet in one year of timber on that reservation. In thespring
the timber is advertised and sold to the highest responsible bidder.
The expense of logging is limited by the act to $75,000 for any one
year.

By both of these plans the Indians have been given employment
during the logging season, and at La Pointe the allottees who have
sold their timber have been enabled, a great many of them, to improve
their allotments by establishing thereon comfortable homes and other
necessary buildings. At La Pointe, in addition to the employment
given the Indians during the logging season, the contractor has been
required,under the regulatwm to give Indians employment, around his
mill, according to their quallﬁcatlons This would be a part of the
plan applied to the Chippewas in case of a change as proposed.

It seems to me that if Congress would authorize the adoption of the
La Pointe plan, with such modifications as would be necessary to meet
the conditions on the various reservations in Minnesota, with the con-
sent of the Indians, the greatest benefit would result therefrom to the
Indians, and the United States would be assured of such returns from
the timber as would enable it to reimburse itself the sums already
expended under the act of January 14, 1889 (25 Stats., 642), under
which the transactions have been made and some sales accomplished.

By this plan, as stated by Inspector Wright and as indicated above,
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Sec. 24, T. 150, R. 35, SW, of NW,, reported at 65 M, was found to
contain by one examiner (Ayres) 865 M, and by the other (M¢Guigan)
700 M (the difference being due to difference of opinion in regard to
defective timber). Subsequently with two men I personally tallied the
calipering and measuring of each tree on this traet, and found 1,611
trees which it was computed would make 902 M feet of luinber, as shown
on list submitted herewith marked ¢“A”.

This tract was subsequently revisited by myself with Mr. A. Doug-
las, chicf of corps of estimators, and his foreman, Mr. J. C. Harmon,
who examined same and reported 650 M.

It will be noticed there is a large difference found in many of the
tracts reported in this township.

Atter remaining in this locality one week, I moved east to T. 150,
R. 32, where I also remained one week, examining tracts in the samne
wanner, and where even greater discrepancies were found, as shown
by reference to Exhibit A.

Lot 1 (4.97 acres), sec. 5, T. 149, R. 33, reported as containing 46 M,
has no pine timber thereon, subsequently seen by Chief Douglas.

SW. of SE. sec. 32, T. 150, R. 33, reported at 11 M, all Norway,
was found to contain by Ayres 222 M, and by McGuigan 205 M, almost
all white pine.

All trees on this tract were subsequently measured with calipers,
and tallied by myself, and found to contain 338 trees, which it was com-
puted would make 295 M feet of lumber.

SE. of SE. same section, reported at 135 M, Ayres found 361 M and
MeGuigan 383 M. Iiach tree on this tract was subsequently measured
with calipers, tallied by Special Agent Parke, found to contain 513 trees,
which it was computed would make 421 M feet of lamber.

These two tracts were also revisited with Mr. Douglax and examined
by Foreman Harmon, who, being aware that I had measured each tree,
though not knowing the result, counted trees and reported 306 and 470
M, respectively.

As above stated, in each of these and all other instances where both
men examined and reported on same tracts it was done by each sepa-
rately and alone on different days, and as neither had any knowledge
of the other’s report nor that I intended to measure trees on any par-
ticular tract until they had completed the same, it is reasonable to
believe that their estimates are conservative, as in each of these
instances and on others generally Mr. Ayres reports more than Mr.
MeGuigan, while both are considerably below actual amount found by
measuring.

I'rom this locality I moved to Red Lake and from there had several
tracts in T. 150, R. 32, examined, and in section 2 found several tracts
reported at from 11 to 15 M white pine, to contain no white pine, but
from 200 to 275 M Norway, and on the NE. of SE., sec. 2, reported as
agricultural, to contain 450 M Norway. These were also revisited
with Mr. Douglas and his foreman.

While engaged in this work, I forwarded by Special Agent Parke a let-
ter to Mr. Douglas, copy herewith marked ¢B,” inviting him to proceed
there, but received reply by telegram from Mr. Parke that he would
await me at Thief River IFalls.

While en route from Red Lake to Fosston, I also examined several
tractsin T. 147, Rs. 37 and 38, T. 148, Rs. 35 and 36, and found differences
as noted on inclosed list.

The NE. of SE., sec. 1, T. 147, R. 38, and lot 7, sec. 6, T. 147, R. 37,
classed as agricultural, were also visited by Mr. Douglas and examined
by his foreman with me, who reported 17 or 18 M, respectively.
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In many instances it will be noticed by reference to the list submitted
large discrepancies exist in regard to quantity of white pine and Nor-
way reported.

In sec. 24, T. 148, R. 36, NW. of SE., reported at 457 M, 50 M being
Norway, balance white, one of my men (McGuigan) reports 760 M, of
which one-half is Norway.

I submit field book of Mr. Ayres marked “C”, with his sworn state-
ments marked “D”. Also field book of Mr. McGuigan marked ¢ E,”
and lis sworn statement marked ¢ F.”

On completing the examinations of the tracts submitted, and on my
arrival at FFosston I wired Mr. Douglas, chiet of examiners, requesting
his presence there with his foreman, at which time I informed him of
the result of my work. As he insisted I was mistaken, and in view of
the fact that a vumber of the examiners were waiting for me to give
them an opportunity to be heard in reference to charges against their
personal conduet, and as he elaimed their work was correet-1 insisted
upon his accompanying me to several of the tracts examined, with his
foreman as herein above stated, and which required a week’s time, Red
Lake being 65 miles from the railroad.

When shown several tracts which his foreman examined and con-
firmed my reports, he was very much surprised and failed to explain in
any manner.

I subsequently held an examination of such estimators as were wait-
ing for me at Crookston. Each was examined separately in presence
of Special Agent Parke.  Mr. Douglas was invited to be present, but
preferred to let each testify alone. All evidence, however, was subse-
quently read to him.

Mr. Finney, one of the examiners waiting, learning that I had found
some diserepaneies in his work, informed Special Agent Parke he had
accepted another’s figures on the tracts in question, without himself
personally examining them, and reported tliem as his own. He then
left for his home without seeing me.

I submit herewith testimony of those examined as follows: Mr. A,
Douglas, chief examiner, mnarked “G”; Mr. R. A. Reid, assistant chief,
marked “H”; Mr. J. C. Harmon, foreman, marked «I1”; Mr. 1. C.
Richmond, marked «“J7”; Mr. Asa Bodkin, marked “K?”; Mr. E. L.
Lovell, marked “L”; Mr. B. I. Carr, marked “M”; Mr. W. G. Stevens,
marked “N7”; Mr. W. W. Wolf, marked “0O”; Mr. John McQuillan,
marked “P7”; Mr. P. H. Conway, marked «“Q”; Mr. T. H. Beaulieu
(mixed-blood Chippewa), marked “R” (with testimony of Harmon and
others replying to charges of Beaulieu attached thereto).

The testimony in briet is as follows:

By A.Douglas,chief: Therewere some thirtyexaminers employed,and
prior to the springof 189+ all were caimnped together, thereafter working in
crews of three men, each crew camping together and doing their own
cooking. Each crew of three men were to examine and report on each 40-
acre tract. His headquarters were at Thief River Falls, about 100 miles
from where examiners were employed, being directed to be located at
nearest telegraph station. He did not consider it his duty to person-
ally inspect work of men in woods, leaving that to the foreman and
assistant chief, he consolidating and forwarding reports as received.
He issued no instruections except those from the Hon., Commissioner S.
W. Lamoreux, dated May 11, 1893, which each man had or saw. He
did not consider all employed competent and experienced estimators ot
timber at time they began work, being informed by 13 that they had,
and by 18 others that they had no previous experience as estimators
prior to their appointment; that all were assigned to work when they
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Others state they might have, and did take, reports from others with-
out themselves examining them. (See testimony of Bodkin, Carr, Con-
way, Beaulien, Wolf, Stevens, and McQuillan.)

Messrs. Richmond and McQuillan claim they did not alter their
original e\tllll'LtEb when comparing with others.

In sec. 24, T. 150, R. 35, where I find large dx\orepanme% reported on
by Messrs. Lodkm. Lovell, and Dowd, Messrs. Bodkin and Lovell state
they can not explain it except that they reported and examined all
tracts to the best of their ability; that there must have been some
mistake in reference to SE. of N'W,, reported at 65 M, while I find 782
M; that it was some of their first work and that Mr. Dowd at that
time did not pretend to know anything about timber,

In sec. 5,T. 149, R. 33, reported at 45 M, where I find no pine,
reported on by Mr. err who states he has 110 excuse to offer and that
it must have been a mistake. Mr. Stevens, who also reported on same,
stateg he was after supplies at that time and took Mr. Carr’s figures.
On others reported by Mr. Carr he states difference must have been
due to carelessness or lack of judgment in estimating.

In the NIL. of NW., sec. 18, 147, 37, reported at 25 M, I find 75 M,
reported by Mr. Carr, who states he has 75 M on his field book, and, if
reported different, was an error in copying.

On other tracts, Mr. Stevens states either hie or my men are mistaken,
though in some places, where adding estimates together, others may not
have reported what they saw.

In sec. 20, T. 143, R. 35, and sec. 15, T. 149, R. 35, where large dis-
crepancies were found, Mr. Wolf, who reported on them, states that in
his opinion it was while he was sick and accepted others’ reports.

In regard to statements made by My. T. 1I. Beanlieu, considerable
latitude should be allowed for same in view of the fact that, though
making positive statemeunts, they were afterwards withdrawn wlen con-
fronted by those accused. (See statements of Mr. Harmon and others
attached to hisstatement.) He acknowledges aceepting others’ reports
on sec. 2, T. 150, R. 32, and not seeing them himselt, on which large
dlsuepanme\ are found, one 40 acre tr(u t being classed as agriculture
containing 450 M Norway; others reported at 11 M white, coutaining
no white and about 200 M Nor way.

Mr. Conway also acknowledges not seeing secs. 3, 10, and 15, T. 150,
R. 32, but accepting Mr. Staey’s report (a former member of the corps),
who informed him he had examined those sections, which also included
those furnished Mr. Beaulieu.

Other examiners seen also c¢laim that when absent from duty it was
for the purpose of obtaining supplies, or on leave, or that their pay was
deducted therefor.

The testimony of all show that the chief’s headquarters were a con-
siderable distance fromn where work was carried on; that he consoli-
dated and forwarded reports as received, sometimes visited camps.
That the assistant chief remained in woods, receiving and forwarding
reports, accepting them as correct when identical or near together, both
depending on the foreman to see that work was properly done. The
foreman gathered reports from different crews and helped assistant
chief, which consumed his entire time, and that he was not instructed
to ascertain correctness of work, and, owing to large territory required
to travel to gather reports, he could not have done so. Kach crew of
three men worked and camped together in ditterent localities; that no
tests were made of their work, and not known as a fact whether each or
any of them personally examined every tract reported on or how work
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From statement of William R. Spears (see Exhibit X), also of Patsy
Needham (see Exhibit Z), it appears other parties had lands examined
before purchased. Mr. Spears also states that in the winter of 1893
and 1894 Mr. I’. Meehan, who has made large purchases, quoted from a
book in his possession the estimates as being then made by Govern-
ment’s examiners, and that they were too high and would not be sold.

Mr. Meehan,in a subsequent sworn statement to me, states he does
not remember such conversation.

1t is also represented that a Mr. Staples, chief of former corps of
examiners, purchased large tracts on the day of sale and has continued
to do so at intervals since, both in his own and other names.

A large quantity of dead and down timber was found within the ter-
ritory traveled, for which no returns are provided.

It is also noticed all pine without reference to kind or quality or
accessibility is offered at the same price.

It may be questioned if many tracts difficult of access and remaining
unsold will be disposed of at estimates and price placed upon them.
Trespasses are also liable to be made on such tracts by parties cutting
on adjoining ones.

Being directed to state the cost of entire work to date, also what, in
my opinion, should have beeu the cost, I have the honor to state:

It appears from the record that up to the present time the total cost
of examination of these lands, which includes four townships on the
White Earth Reservation, has been $151,290. The testimony, however,
shows the work has been much delayed for want of surveys and plats.

Irom statements of experienced estimators submitted, an average of
at least five 40-acre tracts located south ot Red Lake containing more
or less timber could be examined by one man each day; and from state-
ments of Mr. George Ralph, of Crooskton, Minn., who has had Govern-
ment contracts for surveying and subdividing these lands, fifteen whole
and four tractional townships north and west of Red Lake, which were
examined and reported on by these estimators prior to the present year,
could all be examined within a period of thirty days by one man (see
his sworn statement, Exhibit A 5), and that it would require one man
from twelve to fifteen days to examiue each of the towunships reported
on by these estimators during the present year.

From these estimates the work of examining the whole should not
exceed $52,000 it to be examined by three competent different men,
provided they were not delayed for want of necessary plats or by any
other cause, as follows: Timber lands southeast and north of Red Lake,
aggregating about twenty-one whole townships, requiring one man one
hundred days for each township, would require seven men about one
year, at cost of about $13,000. To examine each tract by three men
would cost 839,000, and for three foremen in charge of examiners and
one superintendent for one year at $1,800 per annum each, making
$7,200, or a total of $46, 200 tor examination of all timber land; and for
examination of agricultural lands west and north of Red Lake, examined
prior to the present year, $1,000; making a total ot $47,200 for work
done up to the present year; and $4,000 for townships examined during
the present year, and allowing $800 for time lost, would make an aggre-
gate of $52,000.

In regard to time required for examination of the above agricultural
land, 1 would refer to statements made by Mr. Ralph (Exhibit A 5); also
statement of Mr. R. Kittleson, marked ¢“A 6.’

From statements of men, as submitted and above referred to, the
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES UNITED STATES,
Washington, D. O., January 9, 1897.

Maj. J. GRORGE WRIGHT,
Indian Inspector, Washington, D. C.

Sir: I desire to state that I do not feel that it is necessary for me to
make a supplementary report in connection with yours. I stated to the
honorable Commissioner of the General Land Office that I had read
every word of your report and revised it with you; that I was present
when all the statements by the cstimators and others were made, and
I knew that everything had been done in the fairest and most impar-
tial manner. I do not see anything more I could say, as I believe you
have covered the ground thoroughly, and I would only reiterate what
you have said.

Very respectfully, F. J. PARKE,
Special Agent, General Land Office.

Total examinations made.

Sec- | Town- Reported Reported
No, tion. | ship. Range.| Found. (sold). No.| Found. (not, sold).

1 4 147 37 70 51
2 5 147 37 319 194
1 18 147 37 76 28
2 19 148 35 172 118
2 20 148 35 864 136
1 30 148 35 127 71
1 24! 18| 36| 760 457
1 33 148 37 12 83
1 1 149 33 47 28
1 6 149 33 59 14
1 5 149 1 2 46

cmae 1 149 B4 feenirmemaeieea e aaan
1 7 149 33 59 18
4 2 150 32 950 52
1 11 150 32 11 10
2 15 150 32 52 35
2 31 150 33 240 74
2 32 150 33 570 146
4 33 150 33| 1,720 1,416
7 34 150 33 | 1,260 445
3 19 150 35 243 107
1 20 150 35 100 7
2 21 150 35 190 42
2 23 150 35 691 76
8 24 150 35 | 3,590 1,157
1 29 151 32 67 100
1 30 151 32 12 18
1 31 151 29 85 65
2 32 151 32 187 147
1 6 149 33 90 15
1 6 149 33 40 20
1 6 149 33 200 71

61 12,472 M. 5, h47 M.
24 4,799 4,088

85 17,271 M. 9, 635 M.

Comparative work of two estimators where same tracts were examined on respective dates.

[Section 23, township 150, range 35.]

Ayres MecGuigan
(Nov. 22). (Nov. 18).

368 M 450 M
354 M 325 M
386 M 495 M
Total.eueeeuanennn e e aeaaan 1,128 M 1,200 M

S. Doc. 70——8
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

. See- | Town- Estimate| Estimate
Parts of sections. tion shi Range.| Area. | by first |by second Remarks.
U p- corps. corps.
N. W. M feet. | M feet.
12 147 37 40 1 1 | Classed as agricultural.
13 147 37 26. 96 25 3 Do.
13 147 37 36. 62 20 2 Do.
14 147 37 40 13 12
17 147 37 40 20 5 Do.
17 147 37 40 15 2 Do.
17 147 37 40 23 41
17 147 37 40 10 1 Do.
17 1497 37 40 27 0 Do.
17 147 37 29.25 13 2 Do.
18 147 37 40 208 177
18 147 37 40 112 73
18 147 37 40 197 127
18 147 37 40 50 40
18 147 37 40 70 28
18 147 37 38. 02 113 102
18 147 37 38.37 15 10
18 147 37 40 28 9 Do.
18 147 37 38. 62 20 10
18 147 37 40 32 15
18 147 37 40 40 45
19 147 37 42.80 15 0 Do.
19 147 37 39.40 150 55
19 147 37 11.22 30 10
1 147 38 40 10 5 Do.
1 147 38 41. 50 28 25
1 147 38 40 28 0 Do.
1 147 38 40 22 7 Do.
1 147 38 40 30 5 Do.
1 147 38 40 55 45
1 147 38 40 16 5 Do.
3 147 38 40.25 12 10
3 147 38 40, 09 18 6 Do.
3 147 38 29.44 33 14
11 147 38 40 12 0 Do.
11 147 38 40 20 5 Do.
11 147 38 32.23 8 10
11 147 38 40 13 20
12 147 38 40 48 25
12 147 38 40 40 53
12 147 38 40 13 15
12 147 38 40 15 5 Do.
12 147 38 40 33 20
12 147 38 40 8 15
12 147 38 40 42 102
12 147 38 40 22 20
12 147 38 40 37 7 Do.
12 147 38 40 27 20
12 147 38 40 10 5 Do.
12 147 38 40 17 8 Do.
13 147 38 40 40 17
13 147 38 40 18 2 Do.
13 147 38 40 77 25
13 147 38 38.14 27 5 Do.
13 147 38 39.82 13 0 Do.
13 147 38 12.80 10 0 Do.
13 147 38 40 27 0 Do.
13 147 38 40 17 0 Do.
13 147 38 40 50 10
13 147 38 40 88 35
14 147 38 39. 36 72 20
24 147 38 40 180 77
24 147 38 25.71 22 30
24 147 38 19.75 12 5 Do.
4 148 33 27.26 10 9
4 148 33 11 5 3
4 148 33 48.10 22 16
5 148 33 40 15 9 Do.
6 148 33 37.26 10 11
6 148 33 40 11 7 Do.
6 148 33 37.62 30 22
6 148 33 37.60 20 16
7 148 33 38.21 25 19
7 148 33 39.40 30 29
7 148 33 39. 40 15 13
7 148 33 40 25 20
7 148 33 38.37 33 42
7 148 33 39.39 20 22
7 148 33 40 24 21
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

! |
N Estimate | Estimate
Parts of sections. Si(n- E‘{E’D' Range.| Area. | by first |by second Remarks.
: P corps. corps.
N. Ww. M feet. | M feet.
8 1438 34 40 80 221
8 148 34 40 90 160
8 148 34 39.65 30 22
8 148 34 40 95 475
8 148 34 40 28 18
9 148 34 35.35 50 25
9 148 34 40 17 13
9 148 34 40 20 30
9 148 34 40 47 40
9 148 34 40 25 30
9 148 34 40 53 123
9 143 34 40 50 20
9 148 34 40 18 4 1 Classed as agricultural.
10 148 34 15.75 20 3 Do.
10 148 34 40 63 3 Do.
10 148 34 40 23 12
10 148 34 40 20 9 Do.
11 148 34 40 20 2 Do.
11 14 34 40 15 2 Do.
11 148 34 10 12 2 Do.
11 148 34 40 22 0 Do.
11 148 34 46. 60 14 4 Do.
12 148 34 40 13 3 Do.
12 148 34 40 15 10
12 148 34 40 10 0 Do.
12 148 34 40 10 0 Do.
12 148 34 40 12 7 Do.
12 148 34 40 52 16
12 148 34 40 33 5 Do.
12 148 34 40 25 3 Do.
3 148 34 40 23 9 Do.
13 148 34 4 17 0 Do.
13 148 S 40 48 12
13 148 34 40 115 95
13 148 34 40 11 0 Do.
13 148 34 40 27 0 Do.
13 148 34 20,60 5 10
13 148 34 40 90 13
13 148 34 40 11 0 Deo.
14 148 34 39.20 21 2 Do.
14 148 34 40 30 10
14 148 34 40 25 11
14 148 34 40 21 0 Do.
14 148 34 40 10 3 Do.
14 148 34 40 22 5 Do.
14 148 34 40 33 19
14 148 34 40 160 139
15 148 34 40 23 23
15 148 34 40 30 26
15 148 34 40 55 12
15 148 34 40 38 28
] 148 34 40 10 10
15 148 34 40 10 2 Do.
17 148 34 40 85 111
17 148 34 40 315 721
17 148 34 406 148 310
17 143 34 40 52 201
17 143 34 40 200 400
17 148 34 40 338 300
17 148 34 40 120 310
17 148 34 40 182 350
17 148 34 40 185 310
17 148 34 40 330 600
17 143 34 40 123 225
17 148 34 40 10 6 Do.
17 148 34 40 60 148
17 148 3 40 107 245
17 148 34 40 7% 51
17 148 34 40 185 250
18 148 34 40 7 110
18 148 34 37 250 200
18 148 34 40 112 100
18 143 34 40 93 160
18 148 34 39. 85 152 300
18 148 34 31.61 57 25
18 148 34 30. 86 75 50
18 148 34 40 65 50
18 148 34 40 108 60
18 148 34 31.36 72 125
18 148 34 32.96 185 150
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Compartson of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

Estimate Estimate
Parts of sections. tsi(e)i‘ Tm_vn» Range.| Area. by first |by second Remarks.
. | ship. p
corps. corps.
N. w. M fert. M feet.

13 149 33 20. 60 22 61
13 149 33 46.75 19 73
13 149 33 39.50 23 20
13 149 33 40 17 18
13 149 33 19.75 7 5
14 149 33 40 38 31
14 149 33 40 23 26
14 140 33 40 14 39
14 149 33 39.40 28 36
14 149 33 40 48 66
14 149 33 40 35 15
14 149 33 40 25 30
14 149 33 40 35 29
14 149 33 40 22 26
14 149 33 40 80 78
14 149 33 40 58 110
14 149 33 40 32 29
14 149 33 40 30 25
14 149 33 40 23 43
14 149 33 31.25 17 28
14 149 33 32.63 27 20
15 149 33 40 30 5 | Classed as agricultural.
15 149 33 40 15 6 Do.
15 149 33 40 32 10
15 149 33 40 18 14
15 149 33 40 40 79
15 149 33 40 43 51
15 149 33 40 150 42
15 149 33 40 85 15
5] 149 33 10 80 57
15 | 149 33 40 125 72
15 149 33 40 35 10
15 149 33 40 60 13
15 149 33 40 70 78
17 149 33 40 40 55
17 149 33 40 135 83
17 149 33 40 112 40
17 149 33 40 122 80
17 149 33 40 140 100
17 149 33 34.50 23 18
17 149 33 53.25 100 60
17 149 33 40 13 15
17 149 33 40 11 0 Do.
17 149 33 40 38 15
17 149 33 40 12 0 Do.
17 149 33 40 23 10
18 149 33 40 20 25
18 | 149 33 46.75 22 0 Do.
18 149 33 40 97 110
18 149 33 43.60 77 220
18| 149 33 43.77 75 60
18 149 33 40 50 50
18] 119 33| 38.82 15 15
18 149 33 15.76 20 2 Do.
18 149 33 40 15 0 Do.
18 149 33 40 10 8 Do.
18 149 33 40 12 10
19 | 149 33 40 10 21
19 149 33 40 16 0 Do.
19 149 33 40 11 10
19 149 33 40 11 5 Do.
19 149 33 40 22 5 Do.
19 149 33 24.15 10 0 Do.
19 149 33 40 11 10
20 149 33 40 22 10
20 149 33 40 0 17
20 149 33 40 12 7 Do.
20 149 33 40 19 0 Do.
20 149 33 40 20 10
20 149 38 40 11 15
20 149 33 40 11 12
21 149 33 40 37 24
21 149 33 40 25 24
21 149 33 40 28 31
21 149 33 40 27 39
21 149 33 40 100 15
21 149 33 40 17 53
21 149 33 40 25 31
21 149 33 40 37 24
21 149 33 40 80 83
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

. | . | :
Estimate' Estimate
Parts of sections. ﬁgg' "Eg‘i‘m' Range.| Area. | by first |by second| Remarks.
: p. . corps. | corps.
N. Ww. M feet. | M feet.
13 149 34 - 38.75 212 48
13 149 34 40 362 28
13 149 34 40 468 38
13 149 34 40 25 20
13 149 34 40 2 10
13 149 34 40 18% 15
13 149 34 40 20 20
13 149 34 40 11§ 22
13 149 34 40 215 43
13 149 34 40 28% 63
13 149 34 40 26% 21
13 149 34 40 48% 40
13 149 34! 40 313 20
14 149 34 40 58% 75
14 149 34 40 105 88
14 149 34 40 40 42
14 149 34 40 162 48
14 149 34 40 15 27
14 149 34 40 30 42
14 149 34 40 13% 10
14 149 34 40 134, 62
14 149 34 40 183 30
14 149 34 40 15 27
14 149 34 40 153 16
14 149 34 40 21§ 6 Classed as agricultural.
4| 149 34| 40 113 18
14 149 34 40 283 40
14 149 34 40 18 6 Do.
14 149 34 40 1541 14
15 149 34 35.75 21 29
15 149 34 39.50 25 49
15 149 34 40 20 10
15 149 34 40 26 12
15 149 34 39. 80 103 5 Do.
15 149 34 40 13 0! Do.
15| 149 34 40 31 5 Do.
15 149 34 40 1838 15
15 149 34| 40 364! 19
15 149 34 40 482 10
15 149 34 40 83 10
15 149 34 40 163 32
15 149 34 40 31% 19
15 149 34 40 31% 20
15 149 34 40 283 20
15 149 34 40 312 10
3 17 149 34 40. 69 70 71
NW.NE 17 149 34 40. 69 25 25
SW.NE 17 149 34 40. 69 33 21
J 17 149 34 40. 69 108 40
17 149 34 40. 69 11 ‘ 0 Deo.
17 149 34 40. 69 30 25
17 149 34 40. 69 18% 15
17 149 34 40. 69 18 | 13
17 149 34 40.70 36 11
17 149 34 40,70 213 19
17 149 34 40.74 33 16
17 149 34 40.74 31 18
17 149 34 40. 7 116 260
17 149 34 40.70 31 152
17 149 34 40.74 40 21
17 149 34 40.74 55 | 35
18 149 34 40 363 30
18 149 34 40 25| 0 Do.
18 149 34 40 15 16
18 149 34 40 333 1
18 149 | 34 40 50 | 0 Do.
18 149 34 43.12 363 11
18 149 34 43.06 8% 15
18 149 34 40 3% 21
18 149 34 40 8% 16
18 149 34 42.96 213 15
18 149 34 43.11 43% 26
18 149 34 40 35 19
18 149 34 40 31% 16
18 149 34 40 13% 16
18| 149 34| 40 48} 1
18 149 34 40 33% 2
19 149 34 40 633 40
19 149 34 40 88} 78
19 149 34 40 483 65







TIMBER ON

THE

CIHIPPEWA INDIAN

RESERVATIONS.

O
(9 1Y

Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reserralion, etc. ~Continued.

)

Estimate ‘Estinmre
Parts of sections. tsxg: ’1;‘1)1‘{"' Range.| Area. | by tirst by second Remarks.
. P- COTpS8. corps.
N. Ww. M feet.
SW.NE....ccca.... 28 149 34 40 35
CNIS . 28 149 34 40 30
A 28 149 34 40 12
v 28 149 34 40 28
28 149 34 40 45
28 149 34 40 10
28 149 34 40 15
o3 149 34 10 23
28 149 34 40 32
28 149 34 40 0 Classed as agricultural.
23 149 34 40 7 Yo.
29 149 34 10.76 6 | Do.
29 149 34 40. 76 10 Do.
20 149 34 40.76 22
24 119 34 40,79 10 Do.
29 149 34 40.76 7 Do.
29 149 34 40.76 5 Do.
29 149 34 40.76 35
29 149 34 40. 76 13
29 149 34 40.76 25
29 149 34 40.76 3 Do,
29 149 34 35.71 8 Do,
29 149 34 39. 66 15
30 149 34 40 5 Deo.
50 149 34 40 5 Do.
30 149 34 40 28
30 149 34 42.70 2 Do.
30 149 34 10 2 Do.
30 149 34 40 5 Do.
30 149 34 42,84 13
30 149 34 43.37 9 Do.
30 149 34 40 5 Do.
30 149 34 40 17
NW, 30 149 34 40 5 Do.
SW.RE 30| 149 31| 40 5| Do
NE.NE . 31 149 34 40 0l Do.
NW.NE 31 149 34 40 3 Do.
SW.NE. 31 149 34 40 5 Do.
SE.NE . 31 149 34 40 4 5 Do.
Lot 2.. 31 149 34 39. 50 B 5 ‘ De.
Lot 1.. 31 149 34 38.91 234 10 ‘
Lot 3.. 31 149 34 38.50 15 0 Do.
Lot 5.. 31 149 34 38 10 5 Do.
Lot 7.... 31 149 34 43. 68 231 5 Do.
SE.SW . 31| 149 34| 40 133 10 |
NE.SE . 31 149 34 40 15 12
NW.SI 31 149 34 40 112 51 Do.
SW.SKE 31 149 34 40 113 5 | Do.
NE.NE 33 149 34 40 13% 5| Do.
NW.NE 33 149 34 10 162 5 Do.
SW.NE 33 149 34 40 19 40 ‘
NE.NW 33 149 34 40 13% 1 Do.
NW.NW 33 149 3 40 10 6 Do.
SE. NW 33 149 34 40 142 8 Do.
Lot 2.. 33 149 34 48,156 15 12
NE. SE 33 149 34 40 10 | 3 Do.
Lot 3 33 149 34 38.20 273! 60
NW.NE 34 149 34 40 15 3 Do.
SW.NE. 34 149 34 40 183 5 Do.
NI NW 34 149 34 40 16% 3 Do.
SE. NW 34 149 34 40 124 0 Do.
SW. S 34 149 34 40 15 3 Do.
NE.NW 35 149 34 40 5 10 l
NW.NW 35 149 34 40 113 7 Do.
SW.NW. 35 149 34 40 10 4 | Do.
SE. NW. 35 149 34 40 11% 51 Do.
NE. SW. 35 149 34 40 11% 0 Do.
1 149 35 39.37 10 10
1 149 35 40 33 57
1 149 35 40 130 72
1 149 35 38. 96 17 5 Do.
1 149 35 38.55 67 62
1 149 35 40 28 25
1 149 35 40 87 35
1 149 35 40 17 7 Do.
1 149 35 40 43 11
1 149 35 40 167 88
1 149 35 40 277 246
1 149 35 40 162 | 108
1 149 35 40 40 70
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Comparison of cstimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

Estimate| Estimate
Parts of soctions. l Lsi?)(x‘; 1 ’I;rgvn Range.| Area. | by first |by second Remarks.
l : | D. Corps. CcOorps.
N. Ww. M feet. | M feet.
NE.SE ... 15 149 35 40 17 28
NW.SE. . 15 149 35 40 2 13
. 149 35 40 38 50
| { 149 35 40 32 42
. | 149 35 40 14 11
.- 149 35 40 258 133
- 149 35 40 18 21
149 35 40 133 117
J 149 35 40 16 10
- 149 35 40 15 15
149 35 30. 89 37 50
149 35 40 52 20
149 35 40 13 10
149 35 40 33 25
140 35 40 70 150
149 35 40 174 240
149 35 40 60 100
149 35 40 68 74
149 3 40 15 5 Classed as agricultural.
149 35 40 167 131
149 35 40 9 101
149 35 40 63 63
149 35 40 367 570
t 149 35 40 72 114
149 35 40 40 57
149 35 40 115 75
149 35 40 150 123
149 35 40 333 363
149 35 40 392 530
149 35 40 43 77
149 35 40 107 90
149 35 40 116 205
149 35 40 75 167
149 25 40 75 105
149 5] 40 38 22
149 35 40 18% 175
149 35 ! 40 125 180
149 35 40 58 62
149 35 40 103 57
149 35 40 35 50
149 35 40 125 60
149 35 40 50 30
144 35 40 5 10
149 | 35 40 170 125
149 | 35 40 1 193
149 35 40 65 100
149 35 40 78 93
149 35 40 12 10
49 35 40 200 10
149 3 40 0 57
| 144 35 40 11 200
149 35 40 40 53
149 35 40 33 50
149 351 40 28 23
149 35 40 22 40
149 35 40 18 27
149 35 40 15 15
149 35 40 37 48
149 35 10 28 43
149 35 40 13 20
149 35 40 27 38
149 35 40 10 15
149 35 39.30 52 97
149 35 39.75 12 & De.
149 35 +0 9 32
149 35 15.55 2 5
149 35 42.45 20 17
149 35 40 12 0 Dao.
149 35 40 15 5 Doa.
149 35 40 25 25
149 35 33.90 13 10
149 2 27.15 12 0 Do.
149 35 40 13 0 Do.
149 35 40 12 10
149 35 40 13 0 Do.
149 35 40 0 22
149 35 40 0 10
149 35 40 0 15
149 35 40 60 75
149 35 40 B 13
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.— Continued.

| “ Estimate! Bstimate
Parts of sections. tsif::- '1;?)?"' Range.| Area. | by tirst Dy second Remarks.
: | P corps. corps.
I N. W. M feet. M feet.
27 149 36 40 37 14
27 | 149 36 40 20 15
27 149 36 | 40 10 2 | Classed as agricultural.
27 149 . 36 40 42 18
27 149 36 40 20 15
27 149 36 40 32 17
27 149 36 40 17 9 Do.
27 149 36 40 13 2 Do.
28 149 36 40 0 13
28 149 36 40 22 ‘11
28 149 36 40 22 19
29 149 36 40 17 24
29 149 36 40 17 10
29 149 36 40 33 6 Do.
29 149 36 40 40 42
29 149 36 40 15 3 Do
29 149 36 40 137 210
29 149 36 40 77 95
29 149 36 40 18 18
29 149 36 40 173 405
29 149 36 40 32 132
30 149 36 40 25 23
30 149 36 40 35 35
30 149 36 40 40 53
30 149 36 40 38 32
30 149 36 40 47 53
30 149 36 40. 66 18 17
30 149 36 30.59 20 24
30 149 36 40 43 42
30 149 36 40 62 55
30 149 36 | 39.10 62 68
30 149 36 38. 66 58 68
30 149 36 40 47 49
30 149 36 40 55 63
30 149 36 40 37 37
30 149 26 40 65 59
30 149 30 40 42 43
31 149 36 40 17 9 Do.
31 149 36 40 40 47
31 149 36 44 47 82
31 149 36 31.50 15 14
31 149 36 40 263 168
31 149 36 38.71 47 16
31 149 | 36 39.09 53 28
31 149 36 40 255 223
31 149 36 31.15 12 4 Do.
31 149 36 39. 47 13 19
31 149 36 39,43 0 10
31 149 36 40.15 15 3 Do.
32 149 36 40 18 5 Do.
32 149 36 40 38 53
32 149 36 40 20 15
32 149 36 40 18 5 Do.
32 149 36 40 14 5 Do.
32 ! 149 36 40 20 22
32 149 | 36 40 157 164
32 149 36 40 17 6 Do.
32 149 36 40 12 10
33 149 36 40 18 2 Do.
33 149 36 40 53 27
33 149 36 40 37 9 Do.
33 149 36 40 17 2 Do.
33 149 36 40 17 28
33 149 36 40 35 11
33 149 36 40 15 3 Do.
34 149 36 40 18 2 Do.
34 149 36 40 11 3 Do.
34 149 36 40 16 1 Do.
7 149 36 40 15 6 Do.
34 149 36 40 10 0 Do.
34 149 36 40 16 3 Do.
35 149 36 40 11 5 Do.
35 149 36 40 10 1 Do.
1 149 37 41.15 15 0 Do.
1 149 37 40 10 0 Do.
1 149 37 40 15 0 Do.
1 149 37 34,50 20 0 Do.
1 149 37 40 30 0 Do.
1 149 37 40 15 0 Do.
1 140 i ] 23 0 Do

8. Doc. 70——10
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

Estimate | Estimate
Parts of sections. tsigfx- "ETJYH Range.| Area. | by first by second Remarks.
. p- corps. | corps.

N. Ww. M feet. | M feet.
NE.SE.auu.. PO 30 149 37 40 15 0 | Classed as agricultural,
NE. &L, 32 149 37 40 15 10

5 32 149 37 40 15 15
33 149 37 40 26 15
33 149 37 43. 40 10 5 Do.
33 149 37 19.25 22 25
33 149 37 39. 50 10 15
33 149 37 24.10 10 10
33 149 37 40 15 10
33 149 37 40 67 65
33 149 37 40 82 110
33 149 37 40 138 12
33 149 37 40 60 70
33 149 37 40 23 25
33 149 37 40 33 15
34 149 37 40 35 10
34 149 37 40 212 200
34 149 37 40 117 *150
34 149 37 40 12 ] Do.
34 149 37 40 27 5 Do.
34 149 37 40 37 50
34 149 37 40 38 50
34 149 37 40 85 50
34 149 37 40 70 45
34 149 37 40 27 45
34 149 37 40 550 | 600
34 149 37 40 357 510
3 149 37 40 258 275
34 149 37 40 433 425
35 149 37 40 10 8 Do.
35 149 37 40 140 112
35 149 37 40 10 0 Do.
35 149 37 40 20 32
35 149 37 40 117 125
35 149 37 40 273 390
35 149 37 40 110 74
35 149 37 40 250 126
35 149 37 40 30 48
35 149 37 40 33 14
35 149 37 40 0 16
35 149 37 40 30 20
35 149 37 40 18 26
35 149 37 40 25 39
15 149 381 40 175 83 .
22 149 38 24.70 0 i0
22 149 38 37.10 11 14 .
22 149 38 39.70 9 11
22 149 38 15. 50 10 10
22 149 38 44.85 10 5 Do.
25 149 38 40 15 1t
25 149 38 40 0 26
25 149 38 | 40 13 5 Do.
25 149 38 40 108 106
25 149 38 40 90 8
26 149 38 40 6 15
26 149 38 38.60 23 45
26 149 38 40 31 55
26 149 38| 40 43 45
26 149 38 40 105 95
27 149 38 38. €0 13 7 Do.
27 149 38 25.25 13 7
27 149 38 32.75 11 11
32 149 38 40 11 3 Do.
32 149 38 40 10 2 Do.
34 149 38 40 25 11
34 149 38 40 18 0 Do.
35 149 38 40 12 5 Do.
35 149 38 35.30 10 7 Do.
1 150 32 27.83 10 10
2 150 32 40.90 15 15
2 150 | 32 40. 87 10 10 Do.
2 150 | 32 40 12 11
2 150 | 32 40 15 14
2 150 32 40. 84 10 10 Do.
2 150 32 40. 81 12 12
2 150 32 40 12 12
2 150 32 40 12 12
2 150 32 40 10 10
2 150 32 35.95 16 15
3 150 32 40 § 10
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

Parts of sections.

Sec-
tion.

Estimate | Estimate
1;(1)1"1’;1% ‘ Range.| Area. by first |by second;
I corps. corps.
N. w. M feet. | M feet.
150 33 40 142 35
150 33 40 105 21
150 33 40 50 4
150 33 40 71 13
150 33 40 98 20
150 33 40 85 23
150 33 40 208 94
150 33 40 98 52
150 33 40 207 53
150 33 40 275 65
150 33 40 233 45
150 33 40 268 106
150 33 32. 65 192 61
150 33 36.35 188 36
150 33 40 135 94
150 33 40 105 48
150 33 40 100 51
150 33 40 63 96
150 33 40 93 10
150 33 40 83 | 21
150 33 40 32 14
150 33| 40 118 | 32
150 33 40 120 45
150 33 40 45 13
150 33 40 72 | 10
150 33 40 163 67
150 33 40 107 90
150 3 40 110 26
150 33 40 173 69
150 33 40 210 72
150 33 40 50 15
150 33 40 97 30
150 33 40 32 20
150 33 40 22 8
150 33 40 32 5
150 33 37.59 30 20
150 33 38.16 27 | 13
150 33 40 18 4
150 33 40 14 4
150 33 38.74 27 15
150 33 39.31 47 21
150 33 40 22 6
150 33 40 10 5
150 33 40 12 4
150 33 40 30 19
150 33 40 18 1
150 33 40 16 8
150 33 40 30 34
150 33 40 13 0
150 33 40. 05 25 15
150 33 40 6 10
150 33 40 16 0
150 33 42,20 21 3
150 33 40 41 1
150 33 40 39 61
150 | 33 40 15 6
150 33 40 36 13
150 33 31 127 48
150 33 40 148 37
150 33 28. 95 90 16
150 33 22.75 33 17
150 33 40 140 56
150 33 40 60 34
150 3 40 117 46
150 33 40 103 3
150 33 40 72 35
150 33 40 187 13
150 33 40 93 6
150 33 40 40 6
150 33 40 215 144
150 33 38.95 37 13
150 33 40 108 11
150 33 40 183 135
150 33 45.60 222 180
150 33 40 277 365
150 33 30.10 253 172
150 33 40 157 247
150 33 37.25 195 119
150 33 37.80 163 219
150 33 40 228 205

Remarks.

Classed a8 agricultural.

Do.

Do.
Do.

Do.
Do.
Do.

Do.
Do.

Do.
Do.
Do.

Do,

Do.
Do.
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Comparison of estimates of pinc timber on Red Lake Reservation, ete.—Continued.

N . Sec- ‘ Town- |y, ;
Parts of sections. tion. | ship. Range.| Area.
N. w. 1
o7 ' 150 36, 40
27 150 36 10
27 150 36 40
28 150, 46 40
28 | 150 3 40
98 150 I 36 39.70
28 ‘ 150 36 40
28 150 36, 40 ’
28 150 36 ‘ 40
28 ‘ 150 36 40 |
28 150 36 40|
28 150 36 0
28, 150 36| 1510
28| 150 36 31.55 |
28 150 36 37.65
28| 150 36 40
29 150 36 40
20 150 36 40
29 150 36 40
29 150 36 40
201 150 36 10
29 150 36 40
29 150 3 40
20| 150 36 40
29 150 36 10
20 150 36 10
29 150 36 40
30 150 36 40
30 150 | 30 40
30 150 36 40
30 150 | 36 40
30 150 | 36 40
30 150 3 39. 67
30 150 36 10
30 150 36| 40
30 150 36 40
30| 150 36 40
31 \ 150 36 40
31 150 36 40
32 150 36 40
32 150 36 10
320 150 36 ‘ 40
32, 150 36 10
32 150 36 40
32 150 36 y 40
32 150 36 10
32| 150 36 40
32 150 36 40
33 150 36| 40
33 150 36 40
33 150 36| 40
33 150 36 40
5| 130 w6 | 40
33 [ 150 36 40
33 150 36 40
33 150 26 40
33 150 36 40
33 150 %1 40
33 150 36 10
33 150 36 40
30| 150 36| 40
34 150 36| 40
34 150 36 40
34 150 36 40
34 150 36 40
34 150 36| 40
34 ‘ 150 36 40
3¢ 150 36 40
34 150 36| 40
34 150 36 40
34 150 36| 40
34 150 36 { 10
3¢ 150 36 10
34 150 36 40
34 ’ 150 36 26. 10
35 150 36 40
35 1 150 36 40
35 150 36 10 |
35 150 36 40
35 150 36| 40
S, Doce, 70 11

Estimate | Estimate
by first |bysecond

Remarks.

corps. corps.
M feet. | I feet.
30 i 56
20 36
16 | 12
21 17
13 | 5
11, 15
27 | 8
11 4
15 ‘ 8
12 9
16 5
18 8
6! 6
10 5
15 10
22 | 15
10 10
22 5
20 8
29 21
75 109
15 | 10
26 134
25 1 9
1 19
10 0
20 0
21 21
12 4
17 14
35 17
11 15
22 29
22 0
67 7
31 64
35 53
28 31
9 | 10
13 2
25 0
15 4
19 0
27 16
23 10
27 0
27 0
10 0
17 25
18 7
26 7
34 13
15 10
15 5
12 21
15 14
15 0
14 8
20 4
9 15
14 1 39
23 51
34 0
23 31
54 167
12 ‘ 58
18 83
69 92
27 39
17 | 33
10 0
47 ’ 52
18 0
12 0
34 I 153
72 122
35 66
58 57
85 227
152 332

Classed as agricultural.
Do.
Do.
Do.
Do.
Do.
Do.

Do.

Do.
Do.

Do.

Do.
Do.

Do.

Do.
"Do.
Do.

Do.

Do,

Do.
Do.
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Comparison of estimates of pine timber on Red Lake Reservation, etc.—Continued.

Sec- | Town- FEstimate| Estimate
Parts of sections. tion. ship. | Tange.| Area. | by first by second Remarks.
B P- corps. corps.
N. W. M feet. | M feet.

NW.NW ... 35 150 36 40 103 196
SW.NW.__. 35 150 36 40 91 73
SE.NW.__. 35 150 36 40 118 230
NE.SwW.. 35 150 36 40 46 123
NW.SW. - 35 150 36 40 87 157
Lotl. . 35 150 36 27.65 124 155
Lot2. . 35 150 36 34,30 103 271
NE. SE. B 35 150 36 40 119 499
NW.SE.. . 35 150 36 40 92 138
Lot3....... R 35 150 36 40 174 330
SE.SE .. .......... 35 150 36 40 139 230
NE.SE............ 24 150 37 40 10 0 | Classed as agricultural.
SE.SE............. 24 150 37 40 20 0 Do.
SW.NE............ 35 150 37 40 25 10
SE.NW. ... 35 150 37 40 20 10
NW.SE............ 35 150 37 10 40 5 Do.

A,

J. G. WRIGHT, Indian Inspector, Washington, D. C.

DeAr Sir: The following statement is intended as explanation of the method
pursued in computing the amount of timber from caliper measurements, the
results of which appear in the following pages:

MEASUREMENTS.

1. The diameter of each tree was measured with calipers at breast height(about
41 feet from ground). Small trees under 14 inches in diameter were neglected
entirely. The height of representative trees was measured both on standing and
tallen timber, and three height classes established for white pine and two for Nor-
way, the classes of the former being 110, 100, and 90 feet, and those of the latter
100 and 80, respectively. While measuring the tree, the height class was esti-
mated and the tree was recorded in that class with its diameter, the diameters
being taken by two-inch differences.

COMPUTATION.

1. The volume was found by multiplying the area corresponding to the diameter
by the height and by a ‘ factor of shape,” to allow for the taper. This factor was
taken as 0.40 for both white pine and Norway pine, that is to say, the contents of
a tree are {4 of a cylinder, with the diameter measured at breast height. This
factor was found by actual measurement on numerous trees as generally exceed-
ing 0.45 for white pine and 0.50 for Norway pine, but was taken at the lower fig-
ure to insure against any extravagance.

2. Allowance was made for unused portions of the tree, namely: Bark, 10 ver
cent of volume of stem; top, 10 per cent of volume of stem. Both figures are based
on a large number of actual measurements: the latter (naturally varying with
the degree of care exercised in logging) corresponds to ordinary careful usage.

3. Allowance for saw waste has been set at 30 per cent of the total volume of the
stem for the two upper classes (white pine I and II, and Norway I and II) and at
40 per cent for Class III of white pine. These allowances correspond with those
of the better authorities on this subject, and are decidedly larger than the actual
usage of the modern mills requires.

4. Defects, such as decay and crooks, were estimated in lump, for each class at
varying proportions. This item can be said to be the only one introduced in this
calculation which of necessity remains mere estimate. The figures here used
were chosen after careful consideration of the condition of the timber and by con-
sulting the opinion of each of the men assisting in the work. They are unusually
high even for very defective stands of timber, and are believed to amply cover the
defects in these particular cases.

5. Loggers’ risk for breakage and other loss. While not a real part of an esti-
mate, it is admitted proper to enter into considerations of this kind where a great
degree of accuracy is not attainable, and lence allowance has been made for it.
The figure remains debatable, but has in reality nothing to do with measurements.
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SE, $ NW. + SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 150, RANGE 35.

{By two men and J. George Wright.]

RESERVATIONS.

165

: Contain- : . | Contain-
Diameter. Trees. ing— Diameter. Trees. ing—
No. 1 white pine: Feet, B. M.|| No. 3 white pine—Cont'd. Feet, B. M.
16 inches. .. ccecemunan.o. 2 744 22 inches 41 19, 680
18 inches.. - 2 924 24 inches. 25 14, 250
20 inches. . 21 11,952 26 inches. 11 . 260
22 inches. . - 55 38,720 28 inches. 9 6,885
24 inches. . - 98 78, 694 30 inches. 4 3,540
26 inches. . - 110 , 480 32 inches. 4 4,200
28 inches. . - 110 123,420 34 inches 2 2,320
30 inches.. - 87 11& 926
32 inches.__ - 45 66, | Total ... _____.._..... 193 93, 020
34 inches. . - 15 25,080 || Less 30 per cent defects ___ [ _______ 65,100
36 inches.. - 4 7,480 — |
38 inches. .ceunecccaaaoon 1 2,090 || No. 1 Norway pine:
16 inches. ... __.....__ 5 1,700
................... 550 574,840 | 18 inches. 30 12,060
Less 20 per cent defects..__[.______. 459, 870 20 inches. __________.___... 76 38, 520
22 inches. ... __._.._.___. 120 76, 800
No. 2 white pine: 24 inches. .. ... ... 2 69,920
14 inches.. 4 1,080 2 inches. 45 39,600
16 inches 3 1,020 28 inches. 17 7,340
18 inches 20 8,040 30 inches. 3 3,540
20 inches. . - 52 27,040 32 inches_. 1 ,340
22 inches_. . 78 , 920 ——
24 inches. . - 65 64, 600 otal . ... 389 260, 860
26 inches. . - 61 53,680 || Less 10 per centdefects _.__|..__.... 234,720
28 inches. . . 37 37,740
30 inches. . 24 28,320 || No. 2 Norway pine: i
32 inches. . .. 11 14,720 14 inches. ... ... | 5 1,000
34 inches._ . 4 6,080 16 inches. 24 6,530
36 inches. .....oeeeean - 3 5,100 18 inches. 18 6,050
20 inches. 19 7,620
Total. ..o 382 297, 360 | 22 inches. 2 11,770
Less 20 per cent defects_..__|.__..__. 237,890 24 inches. 6 3 650
206 inches. 1 700
No. 3 white pine: | 28 inches. ....occomuenooo. 1 815
14 inches 4 760 |
16 inches 22 5,610 || Total .. .. ... 97 38,135
18 inches 29 12,135 | Less 10 per cent defects ____|.__.____ 34,320
20 inches 42 16,380 ||
AGGREGATE.
Trees. | Feet, B. M.
No. 1 Wit DN o oo oo 550 459, 870
No. 2 white pine. . 382 237,890
No. 3 white pine_ _..._........_. 193 65, 100
No.1 Norway pine. 389 234,720
No. 2 Norway pine.......... e e e e e e e ’ 97 34,320
03 7 ) 1,611 1,081,900

902, 000
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SW. 1 SE. + SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 150, RANGE 33.
[Measured by two men. Tallied by J. George Wright.]
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. Contain- : Contain-
Diameter. Trees.| ~5, o Diameter. Trees. ing—
No. 1 white pine: Feet, B. M.|| No.3 white pine—Cont'd. Feet, B. M.
20 inches.....ccaveennn . 1 572 20 inches. ..., 5 950
22 inches 1 704 22 inches. .. 7 3,360
24 inches. 3 2,410 24 inches... 16 9.120
26 inches. 3 2,900 26 inches 12 7,920
28 inches_ 6 6,730 28 inches. - 1 765
30 inches. 4 3,990 30 inches. .- 6 5,310
32 inches. 6 8,840 32 inches. __ 1 1,050
34 inches 4 6,688 34 inches. .. 2 2,320
36 inches. 6 11,220 36 inches. .. 2 2,550
38 inches. 4 8,360 38 inches... 2 2,840
40 incheS..ccocrvemevennn-- 4 9,240 40 inches. ... ....o...... 3 5,010
................... 42 61, 658 Total...ooo.oooo.. 63 43,670
Less 15 per cent defects...._|........ 52,000 || Less 25 per cent defects ..._|----.... 33, 000
No. 2 white pine: No. 1 Norway pine:
22 inches. . 2 1,280 inches. ... ...oo..... 1 640
24 inches 11 8,360 24 inches 1 760
26 inches 21 18,480 28 inches... 1 1,020
28 inches 29 29, 580 30 inches. 1 1,180
30 inches 29 34,220 32 inches. ............... 1 1.340
32 inches. 41 54,940
34 inches. 28 42, 560 Total _ ..o .. 5 4,940
36 inches. 38 64,600 || Less 10 per cent defects .._.|..._.___ 4,000
38 inches. 12 22, 800
40 inches. 2 4,200 || No. 2 Norway pine:
42 inches. 1 2,300 16 inches 1 203
44 inches. . ....ooooooo.-. 1 2,520 18 inches. 5 1,880
22 inches. 2 1,024
___________________ 215 285, 840 26 inches. 2 1, 408
Less 15 per cent defects. ... |-....... 243, 000 30 inches. 1 94t
20 inches 2 802
No.3 white pine:
14 inches_ ... .. ..._.___ 1 200 Total. ..o 13 6,130
16 inches. ... . .ceeoo... 5 1,275 || Less 10 per cent defects .| ... __ 5,000
AGGREGATE.
Trees.| Feet, B. M
No. 1 White Pine «oeee. ccoe e cceeccccaucsscancnnnacaaannan ek ——— 42 52,000
No. 2 white pine .. 215 243, 000
No. 3 white pine .. 63 33, 000
No. | Norway pine.. 5 4,000
No. 2 Vorwa.y PIDC. e errrmcccrenmcnncmcaaenanacennnn e e ——————— 13 5,000
________________________________________________________________________ 338 337,000
Less 12«} per cent logger™s TSk - oo oo et e e 295,000
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Chippewa pine lands examined by Inspector Wright, etc.—Continued.

i @
. s| 218 .
i g3 & '4;'5 H
gldlslo] & 8] ¢
S e e 3 w o
Sl1E(5l8 518 ¢
ARENAREENE
Examined by Bowdra, ‘ 1
McNeil, and Wall—
Continued.
SE.1SE. . 311 150 33 114 TEW
: | 5/ Trar
8 5
[ j 9 4} 3 %
| 9 4
Examined by Fiuney, ‘
Looney, und Long. !
SW.iSE. 1. ... 320 1500 33| 214
199,
201
(i{
SE.$8SE. ... ... 320 150 33| 313
335
360)
95|
92
90
NE.3+SE. ;oo 33| 1500 33 1)%}‘0
200
185
200
NW.3SE. }ooioccaiaanan 33| 150, 33| 588
500)
485
500
SW.38E. 3 oo 33| 150, 33} 546
300
290
300
SE.318E. o 33] 150| 33| 350
250
240
250/
Examined by Harmon,
Morgan, und Patrick.
|
Lot 2 (15.60) cceeocoeae 34 150 33 9§ 3 32 9
)
25 0} 3 14
20 10
Lot 3 (8.85a)-cccocaeeane 34150, 33 3 1 22 12
8 10 i 8
10 053 { 8
0 10 9
Lot 4 3170 a) e ueaonnees 34| 150/ 33| 120 0 42 6
55, 0 4 5
5 0 4 5
30 200 3 7
Lot 5(3060a). .. ...... 34| 150 33 %() 2 42 6
20
.2){ (s 7
25 |
Lot 8 (14.15a) c.o.oo ..o 34 1500 330 7 4 3% 72
ay e 10
10 ()} 3 l{ 10
5 3
Lot938a) ccameeaeaaoon wal qm 43 5 T
4 34l 1500 53 m{ 170 (&)
105 30 6
110 30} 3 6
100] 50 8
SW.38W. 3 34 150] 33} 149 130] 4 10
110 30 3 6
110 2| 3 6
80 300 3 62
aSold. b Not sold,

Quality.

Tine.._._.
Ordinary.

Common.

Medium-. -
Common .
Medium. .
Common.
Medium. .

Common -

Common.

Medium. .
Common -
Good._...
Common.
Fine._ ...

Common.
Medium. .
Fair. ...

Common.

_! McGuigan .

Examined
by—

Ayres._ ...

| McGuigan -| 205

Harmon.__.

Ayres._.....

Harmon_._.

Ayres ... 42
A1
SR B
}Ayrcs ______ 511
} _____________________

Ayres ... 279

R

169

Total previously
reported.







TIMBER ON THE CHIPPEWA INDIAN RESERVATIONS.

Chippewa pine lands examined by Inspector Wright, etc.—Continued.

171

Examined by Wall, Long,

and Finney—Cont’d.

Lot 7 (33.40)

SE. ! NE.%.

Lot 12 (26.10) oo oemeeeeeee

Lot 13 (16.25

NE. } SE. 1.

NW.1SE. 1

)

Lot 14 (20.15) oo

SE. 1SE. 1.

Ezxamined, N. } by Dowd,
Bodkin, and Lovell; S.}

by Long,
Finney.

Lot 7 (82.50)

SW.1NE. }

Lot 6 (32.60)

Lot 5 (32.75)

Looney, and

k Section.
" Township.

|

23 150

23] 150

23| 150

23| 150

23 150

i Range.

35

35

35

35

®

aNot sold.

>
. E
o . 2
R B Quality. xanvnne( ok
APlE sl g by— AR
£ E el 2 3 |38
SRR RS £ 13
BElz |8l a g |5
325 0 b 7 | Fine...... McGuigan .| 325
%54 0 42 82/ Good _-... Ayres ... 354 7|7
250]
240 } o 3 [ P G 1 ZE RSP P a 247
250
417] 8 4 8 | Medium .| McGuigan - 425}405
386 0] 82 [ do....l Ayres ..._.. 38647
230] 5| [
210 28 { ) S S U R 0251
270) 0 5
545 5 5 7 | Good ..._. McGuigan _| 550  |._.._.
400 0
400 ol 3 5l A0 ) e a2
375 20!
152 8 4* 8 | Fair ...... McGuigan .| 160 175
188 2 42 [ - do....| Ayres _..... 1900777 =m0
140 15-..- 8
140). ... 2 P JRUETs U YA IR I als8
150| . ... R 9
8 0 4) 12| Medium_.| McGuigan . 15}17
15) Tl 4 13 ... do....| Ayres_..... 1974 =
14 22 15
0{ 100 22 15 |poeee@0 oo | e all
2 31 10
K 9 42 9| ... do....| McGuigan .| 17 |.__...
25 40 8
28 400 3 } T Y R PRI, at9
30 43} 42f 7
225, 40| 42 9 | _| McGuigan - 25oggl
287 30) 8 Ayres.__... B3 L5 S
72 40, 8
80) 420 3 7 ‘ RN T RPN IR PPN b125
90 50 7
30 0 42 6 | Medium..| McGuigan - '30} 29
26| 2 5 o do....| Ayres...... R8f T
100
100, } 0 3 6
110
167 83 42 8
162 39 4 7
160 0 4 8
375 20| 32 4
440 3| 3 4
430 30; 3 5
205 120 4 92
168 167
165 168/¢ 4 10
170 165
261 264 4 82
110, 100
105 105/p 3% 10
106/ 100
180 220/ 4% 12 | Common .| McGuigan . 400}454
178 330) 4! 102} Medium..| Ayres. 5087 ==
7 8 |oaan do ....| Harmon....| 300
79 81
79 78l 3 10 ) Fair. oo b159
80| 80,
705, 51 52 7| Good ..... Ayres...... 7t )}700
549 96| 42 9 do ....| McGuigan .| 645f°7|=="-==
4 [ . do._...| Harmon....
142! 73
140 70} 3 10} L6 Lo JPR (NSRS PR, b212
139 72
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Q. As I understand it, then, where a crew of three men working together
reported in regard to the quantity of pine on any tract, and each reported the
saie or near the same quantity, they weresaccepted as correct, and not further
examined by the foreman or anybody else?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Allexaminers were under oath, were they not?—A. Yes, the oath of office
that they took when they entered the service.

Q. Did you receive any other instructions regarding the work generally other
than those contained in the Commissioner’s circular letter of May 11th, 1893?—A.
I received a letter that I have been hunting the whole office for since this com-
menced (I presume they have a copy of it in the Land Office). Ireceived it about
the first of July, 1896, in regard to the time to be taken in the examination of pine
timber, but had received nothing prior to that time except the general instructions
of May 11th, 1893.

Q. What were the duties of the assistant chief, as you call him, and who
occupied that position?—A. I believe he had his instructions with him; his duty
was to take charge of the corps in the woods and see that theydid their work prop-
erly, etc. Hereceived the reports and consolidated them.

Q. Were those instructions given by you?—A. No, sir; by the Interior Depart-
ment.

Q. Did you furnish him any other instructions whatever’—A. No.

. Who occupied the position of assistant chief>—A. Robert A. Read.

Q. Do you know whether or not he personally examined any forty-acre tracts?—
A. T couldn't say.

Q. Did he ever report having doneso?—A. Well, he reported to me a number of
times where there was differences or discrepancies to cause doubt about the work,
that he had Harmon go over it.

Q. Have you yourself, personally, examined any of the forty-acre tracts?—A.
Yes, sir.

Q. How many?—A. 1 couldn’t say how many.

Q. Do you remember the descriptions?—A. No; I do not remember the descrip-
tions now.

Q. Your duties, as I understood you, were, then, to tabulate the reports or con-
solidate them as they came to you at your office, and forward them to the
Department, and that the foreman and assistant chief looked after the work in
the woods?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. How often did you visit them in the woods?—A. I could not say exactly; I
couldn’t say just the exact number of times. 1 used to go occasionally, whenever
I issued the checks; sometimes I took them to the camp and paid them.

Q. How often did you pay?—A. Sometimes I would get the money to pay them
every month, four months, three months; there was no regularity as to when the
money came; but I didn't take the checks up every time.

Q. Had you any reason to believe at any time that the work was not being prop-
erly performed?—A. No, sir,

Q. You did not consider it part of your duties, then, to personally examine work
of estimators, but left that to the foreman and assistant chief,while you tabulated
and forwarded reports?—A. Yes, gir.

Q. During the time that you have been employed as chief of these estimators
ha,vlfiT you been engaged or interested, directly or indirectly, in any other business?—
A, No, sir.

Q. Have you given your entire time to your duties as chief of the estimators?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were any of the estimators employed in this work appointed by you?—
A. No, sir; I never requested the appointment of but one, and that one wasn’t
appointed.

Q. You consider that all of the men who were employed were competent and
experienced examiners at the time they commenced work?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you report that fact to the Department?—A. I did not. In regard to
that, I believe they were competent, but some of them had no experience; but I
thought that they were competent to do the work with some instructions.

Q. Do you know whether or not Henry M. Allen had experience as an estimator
or examiner of pine lands before appointed?—A. I do not; I don’t think he did.

Q. Do you know whether or not Theodore Beaulieu had?—A. I do not.

Q. Do you know whether or not any of the men appointed on this work were
experienced?—A. Yes, sir; as informed by them.

. Who were they?—A. John C. Harmon, Johu McQuillan, W. D. Stephens,
B. F. Carr, W. W. Wolff, T. S. Finney, Max Rankin, J. C. Smith, N. B. Chase,
Asa Bodkin, John T. Cosgriff, Edward ¥. Lovill, John Morgan.

Q. Do you know any who are not experienced or were not at the time they

began work?—A. Yes, sir. .

S. Doec. 70 12
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Q. Were any of the men appointed as estimators assigned to work in your office
or anywhere else, except the examination of timber?—A. Only Capt. Lovell.

Q. Where was he detailed?>—A. In the office with me.

Q. Was that done by the authority of the Land Office?’—A. The Department so
instructed me.

Q. Did you receive any instructions at any time with regard to relieving men
when their services were not required?—A. No; I didn’t receive any; and then
they were reporting so much a week right along. You see I couldn’t suspend the
work when there was no maps, because they could go on and work on agricul-
tural lands, and when they received the maps, report it.

Q. Do you know whether or not one of the estimators was detained at the camp
at any time during the present year or any other time as cook for the men?—A.
No, sir: I do not.

. Have you any knowledge in regard to a man becoming intoxicated while at
their camps, or using liquor for a beverage?—A. Well, I have no knowledge of the
fact.

Q. Has it ever been reported to you that any of the men employed others to do
their work for them while they remained in camp?—A. Patsy Needham informed
me that he done three days’ work for H. M. Allen on agricultural land, but I
know of no other.

Q. Itis represented that different ones of the estimators still owe one of the
traders at Red Lake for supplies furnished them. Do youknow anythingin regard
to it>—A. I do not.

Q. Are there any other statements you desire to make to be submitted to the
Departiment in regard to this work or your connection with it>—A. I don’t know
that there is; I think not.

Q. At the time the different estimators or examiners reported to you for duty
was any test made as to their qualifications for the work to be performed by them?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it done soin all cases?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what manner?—A., With the experiences woodmen, or some of them, they
claimed that they had learned it by experience, but could not explain it; other
-experiences woodmen gave their theories and how they did the work. In the
case of new members appointed, he was assigned to work with two experienced
men, and, as a rule, became very apt in a very short time; that has been my expe-
rience. All men appointed who reported to me for duty were assigned to work at
once.

The above questions and answers by Mr. Douglas, embraced in pages 1 to 14,
inclusive, were made in the presence of F. J. Parke, special agent of the General
United States Land Office, at Crookston, Minn.

ANDREW DoUGLAS,
Chief Ex. Chippewa Indian Lands, Minn.

Sworn to before me this 17th day of December, 1896.
J. Geo. WRIGHT,
U. 8. Indian Inspector.
(Read to Mr. Douglas before signing.)

H.
Questions by Inspector WRIGHT:

RoBERT A. REID, being first duly sworn, testifies:

GQ. State your name, age, and place of residence.—A. Robert A. Reid, Eatonton,
eorgia.

Q. During what time have you been employed by the Government in connection
with the estimation of timbers on the Red Lake Reservation?—A. From February,
1894, until November 14th, 1896.

Q. In what capacity were you employed in connection with that work?—A.,
Assistaut chief of the corps.

Q. What instructions did you receive, and from whom, at the time you were
assigned to the work?—A. From the Commissioner of the General Land Office:
they were in the form of a printed circular dated May 11th, 1893; and I received
special instructions besides those. 1n the special instructions my duties were
specifically stated.

Q. What were the substance of those special instructions?—A. That I should be
in camp with the men, report upon their conduct, receive their reports, receive
their time; that was about the scope of the instructions.
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‘Were you directed to estimate any timber yourself>—A. I was not.
Did you estimate any timber yourself>—A. No, sir.

Q. You had nothing to do, then, with the estimation of the timber?—A. No, sir.

Q. Have you ever estimated timber before you began work in connection with
the Government in 1893?—A. No, sir. In connection with my duties, I also re-
ported directly to the Department as to the amount of work ahead, what was
necessary to be surveyed, and the amount estimated.

Q. During the time that you were in the woods were the men together or in
separate camps?—A. In separate camps. When I first came on the work, they
were working prairie or agricultural lands, and we were all camped together. In
the spring we moved into the timber; they were divided into crews of three, each
crew assigned to their work, the work being designated by townships, ranges, and
sections; each man instructed to carry out his instructions from the Department,
giving his individual opinion as to the amount of timber found on each descrip-
tion, not being controlled by anyone else’s opinion.

Q. Were you subject to the instructions from Mr. Douglas as chief of the esti-
mators, or did you receive all of your instructions from the Department?—A. 1
considered myself under his instructions.

Q. Did you report directly to him or to the Department?—A. While considering
myself under the chief, my instructions were to report directly to the Department;
that is, send these consolidated reports and what suggestions I had to make.

. Were the estimators or examiners engaged in the work directed to go over
each tract separately and at different times?—A. They were; they had instruc-
tions that no one was to interfere with the instructions received; but in cases
where it was practically impossible to obtain the best estimate without some one
to run the line, they were allowed to go together for that purpose, one running
the line and the other estimating timber.

. Where such was done, was the man who run the lines required to go back
and make a separate report of the amount of timber?—A. Each one was required
to make a separate report of his estimate.

Q. The instructions of the Department dated May 11th, 1893, in the printed cir-
cular,require that each one of the three must at different times examine and report
" upon each forty-acre tract?>—A. Yes, sir. I issued no instructions contrary to the
instructions of the Department.

Q. Do you know whether or not those instructions were carried out to the let-
ter?—A. No, sir; I can't say that I do.

Q. Do you know that they were not?—A. No, sir; I can't say that I do.

Q. Do you know whether the three estimators assigned to work together exam-
ined any forty-acre tract or lot at one and the same time in a body, all three of
them working together at the same time on the same tract?—A. I can’t say that 1
know it, but I am under the impression that at least two of them would be on the
?m& forty at the same time, one running the line and the other estimating the

imber.

Q. Were they directed to report the quantity of timber on each tract, without
reference to the quantity whether it was more or less than ten thousand feet?—A.
Yes, sir; they were to quote nothing less than one thousand feet. All over a thou-
sand was to be reported.

Q. Do you know whether or not when three examiners were working on any
particular tract at the same time, one going along the lines, the other through the
center or near there, that each reported what he saw, and then adding their esti-
mates together, making that the total for the forty?—A. No, sir; I do not. They
certainly were instructed not to do that.

Q. Were they so instructed in all instances?>—A. Yes, sir. As Istated before, I
issued no instructions contrary to those issued by the Department.

Do you know whether or not any of the men working together compared
(Ias(il;lmates of any particular forty-acre tracts before forwarding them to you?—A.

o not.

Q. Were they authorized by you to compare their estimates before sending them
in?—A. They were not.

Q. As I understand you, then, each man was to send in his report as his own
individual estimate of each entire forty, without reference to what either one of
the other men estimated on that particular forty?—A. Yes, sir. 'When they varied
too much, I returned them and required them to go back. Frequently, when I
forwarded the reports to the chief, he would send them back to me, with a request
that I would investigate the matter and where the discrepancy was. I would turn
them right over to Mr. Harmon, and the one I thought was in error, after investi-
gation, was required to make another examination.

Q.
Q.
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the same tract of forty acres at three different times, where there is from fifty to
six hundred thousand feet, to each find precisely the same quantity?—A. No, sir.
It can’t be done.

Q. What would you consider a reasonable difference of percentage between the
men examining the same tract?—A. It depends altogether upon what kind of men
they are.

Q. Supposing that they were experienced estimators.—A. Probably from ten to
fifteen per cent.

Q. Do you know all of the men-that were employed on that work?—A.. I used to
know them all.

Q. Please state, to the best of your ability as an experienced estimator, the names
of those employed on the work whom you would consider competent men to esti-
mate timber at the time of their appointment.—A. B. F. Carr, N. B. Chase, J. T.
Cosgrove, J. C. Harmon, John McQuillan, John Morgan, Maxwell Rankin; that
is all the men I see I could vouch for, and P. J. Conway, John C. Smith, and
W. W. Wolff.

Q. Which of the men do you know were inexperienced at the time they reported
for duty?—A. Henry M. Allen, Theodore Beaulieu, John S. Bell, Asa Bodkin,
J. L. Bowdre, Horace Bowdre, W. M. Brotherton, S. L. Childs, Robert Connor,
John E. Dowd, Thomas Finney, Charles Goodwin, Robert Hall, R. H. Long,
Robert F. Looney, E. F. Lovell, W. B. McNeill, W. W. Miller, M. Pattengill,
%;)bel}rt A. Read, E. C. Richmond, Guy Rucker, D. F. Stacy, Peter Veling, W. H.

all,

Q. What do you mean by the term ¢ inexperienced?”—A. Men that don’t know
anything about their business.

. Upon what do you base your opinion as to whether or not they were experi-
enced at that time?—A. Because they never had no information in regard to the
work; didn’t know anything about it; never had done any of it; didn’t understand
anything about lines, corners, or anything else, and some of them didn’t know the
difference between pine and spruce, or between pine and tamarack. That is what
I would call an inexperienced man.

Q. Would you have employed any of those men you say were inexperienced to
have estimated timber for you at that time?—A. No. sir.

. Q. Did any of those whom you state were inexperienced become proficient?—A.
(es, sir.

Q. Who?—A. Asa Bodkin, Capt. Lovell. Thomas Finney, R. J. Looney, E. C.
Richmond, D, F. Stacy.

Q. How long a time was required for those men to become more or less profi-
cient?>—A., Well, men that take an interest in their work, with an experienced
man with them, I should judge probably three or four or five months. If he can’t
understand the business by that time, he will never be.

Q. You do not consider they were competent at the tiine they reported for
duty?—A. No, sir; at that time there was a great deal of responsibility upon me
of placing the men and getting them started in their work. I think on the first
appointment 1 was the only man that was able to take charge at the time.

Q. Were you directed to assign these men to work with experienced men?—A.
That was a suggestion that I made to him, that one inexperienced man should
work with experienced ones, but hiim and Mr. Read, as I understand, made up the
crews themselves after we got through with the agricultural lands and went back
into the woods. They made up the crews and divided them up to suit themselves.

Q. During the first part of the present month you accompanied me to several
tracts of timber lands within the territory of where this work had been performed,
did you not?—A.. Yes, sir.

Q. You estimated the quantity of timber, of pine, on section 24, town 150-35,
the NE. 1 of the NW. £, or lot 62—A.. Yes, sir.

Q. You reported on that 300,000 teet. Do you consider that a fair or a low esti-
mate?—A. I consider that a low estimate.

Q. What would you consider a fair estimate to be sold upon that lot>—A. About
400,000.

Q. On the NW. 1 NW. 1 (or lot 5) section 24, town 150-85, you reported 600,000
feet?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you consider that a fair estimate?—A. Ididn’t go around that; I consider
that there are at least six hundred thousand feet or more.

Q. On the SE. 1 NW. 1 of section 24, 150-85, you examined and reported to me
650,000 feet. Do you consider that a fair or low estimate?—A.. I consider that a fair
estimate.

Q. On the SE. 1 SE. 1 of section 23, town 150-35, you examined and reported
160,000. Do you consider that a fair or a low estimate?—A. I[tisa fair,low estimate;
there is more timber than that there, but it is a fair estimate.
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Q. You also accompanied me to the following-described tracts, which you
examined and reported: SW. + NE. 1 sec. 2, 150-32, 190,000 feet; SE. + NW.
sec. 2, town 150-32, 210,000; NW. 1 SE. 1 sec. 2, town 150-32, 195,000; NE. 4 SE.
sec. 2, town 150-32, 700,000; SW. 4 SE. } sec. 82, town 150-33, 300,000; SE. } SE.
sec. 32, town 150-33, 470,000; NE. } SE. } sec. 1, town 147-38, 17,000; lot 7, sec.
6, town 147-37, 18,000. The abcve quantities represent the amounts estimated by
you and reported to me, do they not?>—A. Yes, sir,

Q. To the best of your knowledge and judgment, do they represent the quanti-
ties of timber on each of those descriptions named?—A. Yes, sir.

. You are now aware, are you not, that these estimates, as reported by you,
%{i er materially from those previously reported by the corps, do they not?—A.
es, sir.

Q. Would you consider that the work of the examiners, as shown by pub-
lished reports, upon which basis timber on the lands within the ceded Red Lake
Reservation was offered for sale, was reliable on the whole?r—A. Ican’t say as they
were reliable on all of them.

Q. Do you know whether or not each of the men who furnished you reports
travelled over and examined in fact each tract as reported by them?—A. No, gir.

Q. Do you know whether or not any examiner absent for any time from his
work was furnished reports by any other examiner to enable him to report work
done by him during such time?—A. I think on those agricultural lands around
the Lake of the Woods—I think some of those men who came there last was fur-
nished reports on agricultural lands by some of the crew in which they were in.

Q. Do-you know of any, or have you ever heard of any, other of the men who did
not go over the 40-acre tracts reported by them?—A. No, sir.

Q. In addition to your collecting reports from other men, did you examine tracts
yourself during the whole time you were on the work?—A. No, sir.

Q. Up to what time did you examine tracts?—A. Until the spring of 1894, after
which time I examined no tracts, except when some man in the crew was sick,
until this summer, about the first of July, when I reported, until the 14th of
November.

Q. Do you remember whether or not you estimated any timber in section 34,
town 150-33?—A. I know that I did some work in that town, but I don't remember
just where it was.

Q. Do you remember whether or not you did any estimating and reporting the
quantity of timber thereon on the following-described sections: Sections 3 and 18,
town 147, range 37; sections 19 and 20, town 148, range 35: section 24, town 148,
range 36; sections 4 to 7 and section 27, town 149, range 33: section 1, town 149,
range 34: sections 51 to 34, town 150, range 33; sections 1Y, 20. 21, 23, and 24, town
150, range 35; section 2, town 150, range 33; sections 31 and 32, town 151, range
322—A. Not to the best of my recollection. I amn pretty sure I did not.

Q. Were you absent from the reservation at any time during the time you were
employed on this work?—A. Yes, sir.

. Was your pay allowed during such time?*—A. When I was sick it was allowed.

. How many times were you away?—A. I was away three times, I guess, but
only a short tiine each time on account of sickness: my wife was in the sanitarium
at Hudson, and they telegraphed to me once that she was about to die, so I was
down there that time absent two weeks, but I had my men all placed so that I
could get away and not discommode anybody; that was in the winter of ’94-5;
and there was another time that I was away fifteen days, but I didn’t get no time
for that; that was later on.

Q. The time you refer to in the winter of '94-5, you were absent by permis-
sion of the chief?—A. Permission of the chief.

Q. During September, 1893, were you at the agency for some six or seven days,
at Red Lake?—A. No, sir: I never was at the agency for more than two nights.
and that was when I was on business.

@. Do you know whether or not some of the other examiners were away from
their work at different times at the agency for several days’—A. I know they
used to go out there Saturday evenings, and of course I don't know when they
came back.

Q. Do you know whether or not any of them were at Thief River or Fosston
for several days at a time?—A. I know some of them was out there: those that
had their families out there used to go out there every once and awhile; I don’t
know how long they remained there.

(). Did you ever see any of the estimators under the influence of liquor on the
reservation or where their camps were located?—A. I never saw but one man that
I know of.

Q. Who was that?—A. Bell.
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P.J. Conway; he and I composed the crew. Peter Veling was also assigned to
work with us, but did no work with us.

Q. How long, then, and during what period did you and Mr. Conway work
together alone without a third party?—A. It was just in that on 150-32, I think;
it may have been September or October, 1893, or may have been later: I couldn’t
state.

Q. Did you ever hear that other examiners were furnishing outside parties with
the results of their estimates or work?—A. No. It was just simply talk among
the boys that if a man kept his figures he would be suspected of doing it; that the
keeping of them would create a suspicion.

Q. Do you know whether or not such was ever done by any of the examiners?—
A. No; Ido not.

Q. Have you ever heard that such was done by any of them?—A. No; I never
have heard it.

Q. Did you work with anyone else but those you have mentioned?*—A. Yes; on
the agricultural lands I worked with so many different ones, and in the timber
country I also worked with McNeill and Conway.

Q. What instructions, and from whom did you receive them, when you began
work other than the instructions from the Hon. Commissioner of the General
Land Office, dated May 11th, 1893, contained in the printed circular letter’—A.
Well, I reported to Douglas at Thief River Falls. About all I remember was that
I was instructed by him to go into the woods, and he accompanied me there. I
was assigned to work with Capt. Lovell. In my country 1t is not surveyed off in
townships, and the lands of this country I was not familiar with the surveys.
For that reason 1 was unable to locate myself until we struck a section of land
to work.

Q. At the time you began work, what did Mr. Douglas direct you to do?—A.
He directed me to go onto each forty-acre tract and examine it carefully and
report the amount of standing timber on it.

Q. Did you ever see the instructions from the Hon. Commissioner of May 11th,
1893, contained in a printed circular pamphlet, addressed to the examiners of the
Chippewa ceded land of Minnesota, which I now show you, prior to the time or at
the time that you went to work or at any time since?—A. Nothing of that kind
was sent e or shown me when I first went onto the work, but I got it from some
of the rest of the boys.

Q. Did you personally go over every forty-acre tract of timber on which you
furnished reports’—A. I may not have done so; but, as a rule, I have done my
work all the way through this.

Q. How did you report in reference to forty-acre tracts of timber on which
you reported, but which you did not personally go onto?—A. If I did such a thing,
some other member of the corps gave it to me. I have taken some other member
of the corps’ reports.

Q. During the time that you worked with Mr. Lovell and Mr. Dowd did all
three of you go together on cach tract which you examined and reported upon, or
did you go separately, each man alone?>—A. We were together.

Q. That was invariably done, was it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Please describe how you did the work with those other two men on each
forty; that is, whether you all went together in a body or whether each one of
you went over a certain part of a forty, to the best of your recollection.—A. Gen-
erally, where timber was thick and even throughout the forty, we would measure
off from one to three acres in the forty, count and approximate the quantity of
timber in the trees standing within that limit, and then approximate the balance
of the forty-acre tract on that basis. Other places, where it was not thick, we
would count the trees. We all three of us went together over the entire forty.

Q. That was the general custom and the manner in which you did the work
generally during the time you have been engaged on the work and with the differ-
ent men you have worked with?—A. Yes, sir; and they did it in the same manner.

Q. After completing a forty-acre tract, did you compare your estimates to see
how you stood?—A. Yes; we compared and made up our minds before we left it
how much we would all three report on that forty.

Q. Did you generally find that you were pretty near together, or were there
wide differences at some times in your figures?>—A. 1 only knew one time when
there was a wide difference. .

Q. After each man had figured up the total on a forty, how much difference did
you generally find between the three of you and how did you adjust any differ-
ences?—A. If there was a difference between us on a forty we would stay on that
ground and talk about it until we came to some agreement as to the quantity of
that timber and all three report the same.
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any timber for the purpose of defrauding the Indians or anybody else?—A. I did
the work to the best of 1y ability for the benefit of all concerned.

Q. Do you know whether or not at the time those forty-acre tracts were exam-
ined, Mr. Dowd, who was then working with you, also examined each one of them
personally?—A. I don't know whether he did all of them or not; he did not know
anything about it, and didn’t claim to, so he cut no figure in the estimation.

Q. At the time those tracts were examined, it was some of your first work, was
it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you been absent fromn the reservation on pay during the time you have
been engaged on the work?—A.. Yes; I have.

Q. During what time and how long. to the best of your recollection?—A. I think
for forty or thirty days at one time. I think it was along in June, 1894.

Q. By whose authority were you then absent>—A. I think Reid told us we could
go home at that time.

Q. Who went with you at that time?—A. I think Childs did; we were both gone
about the same length of time; also Looney and Long, but I don’t know when
they came back.

Q. Do you know whether or not reports were submitted of your work during
the time you were then absent?—A. I don’t know whether they did or not.

Q. During that time that you were away, who worked in your place on that
crew?—A. No one. I was at that time working with McNeill and Morgan.

Q. Do you know whether or not during the time that you were working with
McNeill and Morgan—do you know if each went onto every forty-acre tract they
reported, or accepted yours or each other’s returns®>—A. As well as I remember,
they went with me.

Q. Were you absent fromn the reservation at any other time on pay besides the
one you have mentioned?—A., Yes, sir.

Q. About when and for how long, to the best of your recollection?—A. I think
in November, 1893. I went home for only a few days and returned. It was a
very short visit.

Q. How long did it take you to go and come from your home?—A. Three nights
and two days each way.

Q. Were you absent from your work at Red Lake Agency for a nuinber of days
at a time?—A. No, sir; I never went there unless when we were moving through
there.

Q. Were you at Fosston?>—A. If I was, I was passing through there or after
provisions. I never stayed there, nor any other place around the reservation,
except I had some business that called me there.

Q. Do you know of any other examiners that were away from duty on pay for
a number of days at a time?>—A. I don’t know anything about that.

Q. Do you know of any of the members of the different crews you were work-
ing with being absent at different times for a number of days at a time? Was Mr.
Lovell away several days at a time while you were working with him?—A. Not a
day that I remember.

Q. Was Mr. Dowd away?—A, Well, he went in to the agency.

Q. How often did he go to the agency and how long did he remain there each
time?—A. Well, he went up Saturday and returned Sundays. He never stayed
there.

Q. Do you know of Mr. Stacy being away?—A. I don’t know whether he was or
not during the time he was with me.

Q. Do you know whether or not McNeill or Morgan were away from their work
any length of time while you were working with them?—A. While we were work-
ing they were not. I think McNeill left when I did. When we were in the
crew together we all three of us did the work; none were absent.

Q. Have you ever seen any of the estimators under the influence of liquor at the
camp?—A. I don’t know whether I have or not.

Q. Have you ever seen large quantities of liquor brought tothe camps?—A. No,
sir.

Q. Do you know of anyestimators employing any outside persons to do any part
of their work for them while they remained in camp?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever employ any one to do any of yours?—A. No, sir.

Q. Since you have been on duty the present year, could you have performed
more work than you did do?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. What was the cause of your not doing more?—A. [t was on account of the
surveys.

Q. During the time that you have been engaged heretofore on the work could
the work have been done faster than it has been done on the whole?>—A. We could
have done more work if they had had more land surveyed.
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Q. While you were with Mr. Stacy and Mr. Hall as a crew, did you examine
each forty together at the same time?—A. Well, we was in the same forty at the
same time, generally.

Q. When all three of the crew were working on a forty at the same time, in
what manner did you proceed with the work of estimating?—A. We generally
run the lines from the corner of the subdivision, and then go through the forty
and count the trees.

Q. Were you all three together or in different parts?—A. Sometimes in different
parts. Each man put his own estimate. That is the way I did, I know, and Mr.
Stacy did the same, I think.

Q. Where you and two others were examining the same forty at the saiue timne,
travelling through it some distance from each other, did each man estimate what
he saw on that road he travelled, and after going through the forty take the figures
gfdthe other men and add them together?’—A. I think not; at least Stacy and I

id not.

Q. Did you do it in that manner while working with any of them?®—A. I might
have on some occasions, but I don’t remember. I know there was some men who,
when they first came there, did not have much of an opinion about timber, and 1
had to teach them the duties the best I could and keep them with me; but I
always made my own estimates of a forty when I was on it, without regard to
anyone else’s opinion.

Q. You made your estimates for the entire forty in each case?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Without accepting anyone else’s figures for any part of it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not every man working with you did the same?—
A. I do not.

Q. Do you know they did not?—A. No, sir.

Q. After completing a forty-acre tract did you compare your estimates with
those of the other men?—A. Yes; I think we generally compared them.

Q. What was done when there was a wide difference’—A. Well, the chief exam-
iner would have it reviewed by the foreman.

Q. Did you in any instances, in comparing your estimates, where there was a
difference, compromise them or alter them so they would be near together before
sending them in?—A. I think it is likely it was done.

Q. Were you authorized to compare estimates?—A. I don't remember as we
was, sir; it seemed to be the only practical way to do anything.

Q. How many instances do you know where the foreman went over a forty-acre
tract after your crew had reported upon it>—A. I think he went over for my crew
about two forties; that was to settle a difference between me and Stacy.

Q. The instructions of May 11th, 1893, provide that each one of the three men
should at different times examine and report upon each forty-acre tract; that is,
that each man should go upon and estimate by himself each forty-acre tract; that
was not done in your case’—A. I do not think so.

Q. Did you have ever any conversation with the chief or assistant chief with
regard to those instructions>—A. I don't remember.

Q. Did you always examine and report upon the timber upon each of the tracts
estimated by you to the best of your ability?>—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did anybody,either directly or indirectly, ever offer you any money or other
considerations to make a low estimate upon any tract?—A. No; nobody ever did,
either directly or indirectly.

Q. Did you examine lot 6 of section 24, township 150, range 35?—A. I did.

Q. According to the published reports of the work on that lot, there was 159,000
reported. I have examnined the same and find 454,000. How do you account for
that?—A. I account for it in this way: I made the best estimate I could, and did
the best I could.

Q. On lot 5 of section 24-150-35, reported examined by you, reported 212,000, I
find 700,000, Can youmake explanation?—A. I don’t think it is there. I counted
the timber to the best of judgment.

Q. In the SW. + NW } of section 24-150-35, reported as being examined by you,
and 281,000 reported, I find 556,000. Can you explain that in any way, sir?—A.
The same way.

Q. In the SE. } NW. 1, examined by you, is reported at 65,000, while I find
782,000.—A. Well, I remember that as being a good forty of timber, and I know
that if it is reported in that book 65,000 there is a mistake somewhere. It is my
recollection that we put four or five hundred thousand on that forty. Iknow we
did. Ttis a fine forty of timber. The only statement I can make is that it must
have been a mistake in copying, or somewhere, because I distinctly remember esti-
mating on that forty. At that time we were estimating only down to ten inches
at the small end. That is my recollection. No timber measuring less than ten
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Q. Did you examine and report the quantity of timber upon lot 2, section 4,
town 149-33?—A. I don’t know that. I run that line through there.

Q.fDo you know whether or not you reported any of section 4?>—A. I reported
all of it.

Q. On lot 2, reported at 117,000, I find in the neighborhood of 300,000. How do
you account for that?—A. I have no way of accounting for it, unless probably the
man that run the line didn't put in the timber that he saw.

Q. You only reported, then, on what you saw on one line?—A. Sometimes one
man would run through the middle and the other two on the line. It was not
often that we worked that way, and what each man saw we added together to
make the aggregate on the forty.

Q. On lot 1 on section 4, town 149-33, there is 62,000 reported. I find about
240,000. How do you account for that>—A. I have no way of accounting for it,if
I was in that timber. I have no excuses to offer for any mistakes I have made,
unless it was carelessness.

Q. Lot 3, section 5, town 149-33, reported at 31,000, I find §2,000. How do you
account for that?>—A. I have no way of accounting for it. In fact, {don’t remem-
ber about those sections; but I reported themn because they are on my book.

Q. On the NE. 1 SW. 1 of section 6, town 149-33, I find 14,000 reported, while I
find 59,000.—A. My recollections are that that is small timber in there.

Q. On lot 1, section 6-149-33, reported at 15,000, I find 90,000; lot 3, in the same
section, 6-149-33, reported at 71,000, I find 200,000,—A. I remember very well of
examining that land and running, those lines.

Q. Did you examine those above named with others at the same time, each
doing a portion, or each doing it alone?—A. Each one alone. I calculated that I
gave it a good, fair estimate.

Q. In section 7, town 149-33, the NE. } SW. 1, reported at 18,000, I find 59,000.
How do you account for that?>—A. Well, sir, I think that your men have got that
estimated too high. I was over that forty two or three times.

. On the NW. ] SE. ! of section 24, town 148-36, reported at 457,000, my man
finds 760,000, and reports one-half white and one-half Norway.—A. He is either
mistaken in that estimate or I am.

Q. You report only 50,000 Norway: my man says half and half.—A. There was
only about one forty on that section that was half and half. and that was the SE. }
SW. 1.

Q. On the NW. L NW. 1, sec. 24, town 148-36, reported at 427,000, Mr. Meely,
at the agency, who states under oath that he was with a party of ten other men
examining timber for Mr. Horton, that he found upon that forty 900.009.—A.
In that forty there is a vacant space of four or five acres on which there is no
timber. Itis a little to the south of the center. I went in myself and looked it
over.

Q. It would appear a little singular, however, that on forties where my men
report much more titmber than previously reported they are almost invariably
sold, while forties adjoining, almost the same, are not sold.—A. It is a little
singular.

Q. On the SW. 1 NE. I sec. 27, town 149-33, I find about 60,000 white pine classed
as agricultural.—A. Yes, sir: it is agricultural land here on iny book; I examined
that myself. I examined that. and I can’t tell you to-day where there is a pine
tree standing on that forty.

Q. What quantity did you report on it?>—A. I didn't report anything on it.

Q. What quantity did you report on the SE. $ SW. [?—A, I reported it agri-
cultural.

Q. Did you report no timber there whatever?>—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What quantity did you report on the SW. § SE. }*—A. I reported ten thou-
sand.

. Did you examine those forties alone, or did you examine a portion of them
and the other examiners the other portions?—A. No, sir; I went alone.

Q. Do you know whether or not the other examiners went upon the forties or
took your figures?’—A. I wouldn't swear positively.

Q. On the SW, 2 SW. } of sec. 4-149-33, classed as agricultural, I find about
30,000.—A. Well, I have no way to account for anything of that kind, except purely
carelessness of my part.

Q. On the SE. 1 SE. { of sec. 4-149-33 I find about 20,000. How do you account
for that?>—A. No way to—no excuses to make only carelessness; if I reported no
timber on any forty that has timber on it, I didn't see the timber, that is all; it
isn’t ignorance, because I know enough to estimate a piece of timber.

Q. What, if any, instructions did you receive when you first began on the work
other than the instructions from the Commisioner of the General Land Office, dated
May 11th, 1893?—A. My instructions from the chief was to do this work carefully
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morﬁ days at a time?—A.. Don’t remember of any places that I was away from the
work.

Q. Do you know whether or not Mr. Bell was absent from duty any length of
time while working with you?—A. Mr. Bell was shot in the foot and was laid up
for a time, I think about two weeks, in September or October, 1894.

. Do you know of any other of the examiners being absent from duty unneces-
sarily for several days at a time?>—A. I do not.

Q. Did you see any of the estimators under the influence of liquor at their
camps?—A. No, sir.

NQ. Did you ever see any large quantities of liquor brought to their camp?—A.

o, sir.

Q. Do you know of any of the estimators employing others, outsiders, to do any
part of their work for them?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever employ anyone to do yours?—A. No, sir.

Q. Since you have reported for duty the present year, where have you been
employed?—A. Lake of the Woods and War Road River.

Q. Were all the estimators employed working that vicinity?—A. To my knowl-
edge, they were.

Q. What work was done up there by you?—A. The work that was given to us
to do. We finished different townships.

Q. Did you have all the work you could do at that time?—A. No, sir; we did
not have. We could have done much 1nore.

Q. For what reason were you delayed?—A. On account of the surveys: the plats
not furnished us.

Q. Do you know whether or not during that time or any other tiine that any of
the examiners were retained in the camp as cooks?—A. No, sir; I never heard that,
they was.

Q. In the country embraced west and north of Red Lake, all or nearly all of
which is agricultural land, how much, in your opinion, can an examiner go over
and report on as to the quantity of pine tiinber each day?—A. A section a day.

Q. Have you any other statement you desire to make in regard to your con-
nection or work of estimating while engaged in this work on the Red Lake Reser-
vation?—A. I don’t know that I have, sir; I think your questions have covered the
ground pretty thoroughly.

Dated Crookston, Minn., December 18th, 1896.

W. D. STEVENS.

Sworn to before me this 18th day of December, 1896.

J. GEo. WRIGHT,
U. S. Indian Inspector.

O.

Questioned by Inspector WRIGHT.

WiLLiaM W. WoLFF, being first duly sworn, testifies as follows:

Q. State your age and place of residence.—A. Motley, Morrison Co., Minn. My
age is fifty-eight years.

Q. How long have you been employed by the GGovernment, in the estimation of
timber on the Red Lake Reservation?—A. I think I went to work December 3rd,
1894, and until the 14th of November.

Qi) In what capacity were you employed?—A. In the capacity of estimator of
timber.

Q. What were your duties in that capacity?—A. To go on there and estimate the
timber in the most practicable way and to the best of my judgment.

Q. What experience had you prior to the time of your appointment as an esti-
mator of pine timber?—A. It is a business I have followed all my lifetime. I
worked ten days for Farnham & Lovejoy, Minneapolis. The firm is conducted by
J. J. Howe, of Brainerd, Minn.; also I have worked for H. B. Morrison, of Motley,
Minn.; it was in the estimation of timber which he was to buy on my estimates.
The last winter I worked for him, either six or seven years ago this winter, I esti-
mated about six or eight millions.

Q. What have you done since that?>—A. IThave beenlumbering; I estimated and
run a lumber camp for T. B. Walker, also for H. C. Akeley Lumbering Co., of
Minneapolis, in estimating, running camps, and driving logs.

Q. Was the timber which you estimated for these parties bought upon your
estimate alone, or was it also examined by other parties?—A. Texpectit was exam-
ined by others, but I was the last to go over it.
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estimating timber before the time they came onto this work?—A. I don’t think
they claimed any experience; I don’t remember whether they informed 1ne or not.

Q. Would you have considered them competent estimators at that timer—A,
‘Well, not very competent.

Q. During the time you were with them the timber was estimated in practically
the same manner?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not either one of them accepted your reports for
any tract without themselves examining it?—A. I don’t know that they did.

Q. With whom else did you work after thatP—A. With Morgan and Allen from
that time up to July of this summer.

Q. Do you know whether or not either of those men at any time employed any
other man to do their work for them?—A. No; not during the time they were
with me.

Q. The three of you examined the timber in about the same manner you have
described?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. On the SE. L SW. } sec. 1-149-33, reported at 95,000, I find 120,000; while
that difference I would not consider unreasonable, it is noticed that my men
report 48,000 of Norway, while the previous report shows no Norway reported.
Have you any recollection of examining that?>—A. I examined it; but I can’t
recollect anything about the quantity or quality of the pine. I will state that I
examined them and reported them to the best of my judgment, knowledge, and
belief, as I did in all other tracts of tiinber which I examined.

Q. Were you ever approached by anyone, or ever offered or paid any money,
or offered or received any consideration for the purpose of making a low estimate
on pine which you examined?—A. No, sir.

@. Was any such proposition ever made to you by anybody?—A. No, sir.

Q. Were you ever asked or requested by anybody to make a low estimate of the
timber in order that it should be sold?—A. No; but there was some talk had about
the subject, and us fellows living in the lumbering district, knowing that while
the better quality of pine could be sold at a full estimate, knew that Norway in
like manner could not be sold; and we therefore estimmated it with a view of sell-
ing it. ’

Q. That might account for some differences which I find existing some Norway,
might it not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you informed by any of the other examiners other than those men-
tioned who were engaged on the work that they had no previous experience in
estimating timber?—A. I might have heard it in a general way; I may have, but
I don’t remember.

Q. In the timber south of Red Lake, where you have been working, including
all townships, how many forty-acre tracts could a man, in your opinion. examine
and report on each day on an average>—A. Oh, he might report on four, maybe.

Q. Have you been absent from the reservation on pay during the time you have
been engaged on the work?—A. I think I was once or twice.

Q. If so, when and how often, and for how long each time to the best of your
recollection?—A. I went home in July, 1891—some time in the earlier part of the
month—and was back in the woods the 30th of July; and then for election, 1894,
I was gone maybe two weeks: don’t remember just the time, but a short time;
and I think I went home in May of 1895. I went home about the 15th or 20th of
%\lilay, I think. We were suspended the 21st of May, so I was only off a few days

en,

Q. Were you at Red Lake Agency or at Fosston or other adjoining towns for
any number of days at a time while on pay?—A. I was at Red Lake Agency once.

Q. Do you know of any other of the examiners being absent from duty unnec-
essarily for several days at a time?—A. No; I don’t know.

Q. Did you ever see any of the estimators under the influence of liquor at their
camp?—A. Partially.

Q. Who?—A. Ithink I saw Morgan once.

Q. Did you ever see any large quantities of liquor brought to their camp?—A. I
heard of it, but I don’t know that I ever saw it.

Q. Since you have been on duty this present year where have you been em-
ployed?—A. Near Lake of the Woods.

Qi\IDid you have during the time you were up there all the work you could do?—

. No.

Q. Why were you delayed?—A. Because we didn't have any work; waiting for
plats, maybe.

Q. During the time that you were employed on the work prior to this year have
you had all the work you could do?—A. No, sir; during the spring of 1895 we were
delayed somewhat for surveys and plats.
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tract, did you compare your estimates before they were sent in?—A. In the first
glace we didn’t do it, and a great many errors occurred; and afterwards we did
o it.

Q. What was done when there was a wide difference?—A. It so happened in our
crew that we didn’t have a very wide difference.

Q. In what manner did you compare your estimates?>—A. By asking one another
what we had.

Q. Where you were different, did you compromise your estimates in order to
have them compare favorably?—A. I don't know; Idon’t remember except on one
or two occasions when we were very widely apart. I don’t know whether or not
the other men did.

Q. Were you authorized to compare estimates>—A. We were cautioned by the
chief to look out to see that there were no wide differences, otherwise they would
be returned for correction.

Q. You inferred from that that you were thereby permitted to compare esti-
mates, did you, in order to see that there were no great differences?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not any other examiner with whom you worked
did not go over the forties with which they reported with you but accepted each
other's figures?—A. Yes, sir.

@. Who?—A. Mr. McNeill, and Mr. Veling on one occasion.

Q. On how many occasions do you remember that Mr. McNeill did>—A. Idon’t
recall. None of the others did that I now remember.

Q. Do you know whether or not any other examiner besides those in yourcrew
went over any forty-acre tract upon which you reported, subsequently, for the
purpose of testing the accuracy of your reportst—A. No, sir; I don't know.

Q. The instructions of May 11th, 1893, provide that each one of the three men
should at different tiines examine and report on each forty-acre tract; that is,
that each man should go onto each forty-acre tract alone and by himself; such I
understand you to say was not done?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with the chief or assistant chief in
regard to those instructions?—A. Yes, sir; one tine.

Q. What was the substance of that conversation?—A. Well, we had the in-
structions we had received, and we talked it over with the chief, and we came to
the conclusion that the work could not be as well done by each man going sepa-
rately as for all to go the same time; that was with the chiet.although Ireceived
no instruction to do the work that way.

Q. Did you examine and report the quantity of timber on all tracts examined
to the best of your judgment and ability?—A. Yes.

QNWPre you ever requested by anybody to put a low estimate on the timmber?—
A. No, sir.

Q. Did anybody, either directly or indirectly, ever offer you any consideration
to make a low estimate upon any tract>—A. No.

Q. Did you examine lots 5 and 6 of section 19, town 150, range 35>—A. I can’t
remember.

Q. On the above tracts the records shows 16,000 and 18,000 reported, while I find
57,000 on each; and on the NE. } SE. } and the NW. { SE. + and the SE. + SK. } in
the same section and township I find 234,000 pine which is classed as agricultural
land. Do youknow anything about them?—A. No, sir; 1 can’tcall to mind that 1
do; I may have been there, but I can't recall just now that I was; and about that
same time I was laid up by sickness.

Q. During the time you were so laid up you accepted the reports of the other
men, did you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What size trees did you estimate, the small end at the top?—A. About six or
eight inches.

Q. Have you been absent from the reservation on pay during the time you have
been engaged on the work?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. During what time and how long?—A. Icouldn’t state just how many times
now.

Q. How long was the longest time you were absent that you remember with-
out having your time deducted?—A. On one occasion 1 remember of having been
away about sixty days; but at that time we were allowed sixty days’ leave of
absence; I was sick at the time.

Q. Were you at Red Lake Agency for a period of five days the first part of July,
1893, and again four days in September, and five days in October, each at one
time; and if so, for what purpose were you detained there so long?—A. To the
best of my recollection. in July, 1893, we were there several days while moving
camp and awaiting papers from the office, and other times we were there several
days for the boat to go to another locality; also waiting for papers from the chief.
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‘;linée they began work for the Government?—A. Some of them had and some
ad not.

Q. How do you know which had or had not?>—A. From their expression to me.
Mr. Connors, of Atlanta, told me that he was an ex-railway conductor, and he
said he had never had any experience, and, in fact, had never seen a pine tree
until he came out there.

Q. Who else’—A. In June, 1893, I met Chief Douglas at Fosston, and Messrs.
Looney, Long, Veling, Conway, and one or two others; they were wholly unpro-
vided with anything pertaining to a woodsman's work, and they told me this in
very expressive language, that they were very glad to meet me up there and to see
me, as they had never had any experience in the woods and didn’t know aunything
about their duties, and asked that I instruct them what I knew about estimating
timber. They had no compass; in fact, not the first thing to guide them in woods-
man’s work., Iinformed them as best I could what I knew about estimating, etc.

Q. What instructions and from whom did you receive them when you began
work?—A. I got my instructions from Mr. Douglas.

Q. Did you receive a circular letter dated May 11th, 1893, from the Commissioner
of the General Land Office in regard to the manner in which the work should be
done?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever see a copy of a circular letter, dated May 11th, 1893, from the
Commissioner of the General Land Office addressed to the examiners of the Chip-
pewa lands?—A. I think not.

Q. You never read or saw the paper which I now show you before, or a copy of
them?—A. No, sir; I never have.

Q. What instructions did you receive from Mr. Douglas when vou reported for
duty?—A. That Mr. Harmon, who was foreman of the corps, would instruct us
as to our dutiesin the timber.

Q. What instructions did you receive from Mr. Harmon?—A. Well, that we
were to go over each forty and estimate the tiinber on there and report it as agri-
cultural or timber lands, and if there was timber on there, to estimate the amount
of it.

Q. What timber were you to report, and what were you not to report?—A. The
growing timber, white pine and Norway.

Q. Were you given any instructions as to how the work was to be done on each
forty-acre tract’—A. No, sir; not specifically.

Q. What general instructions were you given?—A. That we were to go upon
the lands and examine it, and if there was timber upon it, to report it as timber
lands, and if not, as agricultural lands.

Q. Were you to report all pine timber found on each forty withoutreference to
the quantity?—A. If my memory serves me right, the first two years 1 think we
reported everything, and the last two years 1 think we were told if it did not
exceed ten thousand we were to report it as agricultural.

Q. Did Mr. Douglas give you any instructions whatever?>—A. No; but he told
me repeatedly not to put too high an estimate on the lands, because if you do it
will not be sold.

Q. To whom did youmake your reports of each forty-acre tract you examined?—
A. To John G. Harmon, who was foreman, and when he was absent Mr. Conway,
Mr. Long, and finally to Mr. Read after he became assistant chief.

Q. Did you personally go over and examine every forty-acre tract of timber on
which you furnished a report>—A. No, sir.

Q. How did you report in reference to those?—A. Figures were furnished us by
other members of the corps.

Q. What do you mean by “us "?—A. To myself and the gentlemen who were
with me.

Q. To whom were they furnished and by whom were they furnished?—A. They
were furnished to Mr. Finney and Mr. Connors at divers times by Mr. Conway
and Mr. Long.

Q. Who furnished them to you?—A. Mr. Conway and Mr. Long.

Q. Were you authorized to accept reports from other parties instead of exam-
ining the lands yourself>—A. Yes, sir.

Q. As you were under oath to perform faithful service and were directed to go
upon the lands and report standing timber there, why did you neglect to do that
and accept reports of others instead?—A. I obeyed the orders of my superiors.

Q. Who was that?>—A. Mr. Harmon; and it seemed to be the general established
rule in the corps.

Q. Did you so report that fact in writing to the chief?—A. No, sir.

B Q(.l Why did you not do so?—A. Ireported the facts as they existed to Major
aldwin,
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ment from the Commissioner—this circular letter of instructions, dated May 11th,
18937—A. To the best of my knowledge I did not.

QYDid you receive some papers from Mr. E. K. Fulton, whom you succeeded?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you also receive his copy of instructions from him?—A. No, sir.

Q. Did you advise the Hon. Commissioner of the General Land Office what
papers Mr. Fulton had turned over to you?—A. No, sir.

Q. Your letter of appointment, dated May 19th, 1893, states that Mr. Fulton had
been directed to turn over all papers in your (his) possession over to you,
including his copy of instructions and directing you to advise the Commissioner
of the date Mr. Fulton turned the papers over to you?—A. 1 did that, sir, if I
remember right.

Q. Did you state that Mr. Fulton did not turn over his copy of instructions?—
A. I can't say that I mentioned that.

Q. Were there any other reports furnished to you by the foreman, or any other
examiner, covering timber on tracts which you were to examine, and which you
accepted and reported on without personally examining those tracts?—A. Yes,sir.

Q. Please state any and all descriptions so furnished to you on which you based
your reports and did not personally examine.—A. I got some figures from Mr.
McQuillan for township 150, range 34. I can not now state for what sections.
Also in agricultural lands in the following townships: Mr. Long give e minutes
of agricultural lands in township 154, range 30. In the reports for townships 155,
156, 157, 158, ranges 36, 87, 88, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, which are mainly agricultural
lands, if I remember right, the reports were combined and divided among the dif-
ferent crews comprising the corps.

Q. During what months of what year were you camped up there>—A. We were
there from December 15th, 1893, to April, 1894. From May 21st, 1894, to July 30th,
1894, I was absent without pay, owing to sickness.

Q. Did you personally examine any of the tracts in the townships above named
while camped there that winter?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you personally examine all those on which you reported>—A. No, sir.

Q. Whose reports did you accept then?—A. Got some from Mr. Long, who was
acting foreman of the corps.

Q. In that section of the country, for how many forty-acre tracts did you accept
others’ reports and not personally examine, and what were the descriptions, if you
remember them?—A. I think in township 156, range 39; township 154, range 30;
in which, I think, we got four sections. That is all I remember.

Q. Do you know whether or not the other members of your crew persnnally
examined those tracts?—A. No, sir; they did not.

Q. Do youknow where Mr. Long obtained his estimates of those tracts?—A. Yes,
sir; he stated to me that he had gone over the lands.

Q. During the time that you were north of Thief River Falls, during the winter
of 1893 and 1894, were you all camped together®>—A. Yes, sir.

Q. What portion of the time was required by you to inake the examinations
1v;v‘hich you did?—A. Practically no time was required, there being practically no

imber.

Q. With the exception of the tracts you have named as not examined by your-
self, did you personally examine all others on which you reported?>—A. To the best
of my knowledge, I have, sir.

Q. Did you personally examine and report on section 19, town 150, range 85>—A.
Yes; with the exception of those I stated Mr. McQuillan had given me.

Q. Did Mr. McQuillan give you any figures for sections in township 150, range
357—A. No, €ir.

g. ‘Who was working with you at that time?>—A. Mr. Conway and Mr. Veling,
and also Mr. Bowdre.

Q. In lot 6, section 19, town 150, range 33. you report 12,000, you say, the aver-
age of the three examiners being 18,000. T have examined that lot and find 57,000
there. On lot 5, in same section and town, the average of the three examiners is
16,000. You say you have reported 18,000. I also tind 57,000 on that lot. On the
NE. { SW. } the average of the three examiners is 73,000, while I find 129,000.
Have you any recollection of examining those forties?>—A. Idid this work, I know,
personally and conscientiously.

Q. On the NE. } SE. } how much timber did you report?>—A. Five thousand.

Q. My man reports 60,000 there.

Q. On the NW. 1 SE. + how much did you report?—A. Eight thousand Norway.

Q. My man reports 143,000. On the SE. 1 SE. } how nuch do you report?—A.
2,000 white and 4,000 Norway.

Q. My mar reports 31,000. Have you any recollection of those tracts?—A. I
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Q. What size did you estimate trees at the small end at the top?—A. Ten inches,
I believe, was the small st

Q. You stated, 1 believe, that when you first began the work that you were
instructed by Mr. Harmon to go over each forty and estimate the timber on there,
and report it as agricultural or timber land, and if there was timber on there to
estimate the amount of it?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the time Mr. Harmon informed you that it was not necessary to go to
section 2, town 150, range 32, did you call his attention to the instructions he had
previously given you, that you were to go on each forty-acre tract and examine
it?—A. If T am not mistaken, we had some conversation in relation to that.

Q. What was its nature>—A. That the estimators ought to go on the land and
see for themselves.

Q. What was Mr. Harmon’s reply?—A. To the best of my recollection, it was
this: The spring opening out early, and the ice becoming bad upon the lake,
making it treacherous for transportation, and that as long as those parties,
referring to Mr. Conway, had the figures, that it was useless to go up there, and
to get the figures from Mr. Conway.

Q. Do you or do you not consider yourself responsible for the accuracy of any
reports which you make and sign your name to and forward to the Department?—
Afﬁ I don’t consider myself responsible when I act under the orders of my superior
officer.

Q. If you did anything that was wrong upon the advice of anybody else, do you
consider that you would be thereby relieved from responsablhty"’—A I did not
think that this was wrong.

Q. You were instructed on the first, as all were, to go upon each tract and
examine and report upon it, and if you made any reports to which you signed
your name and forwarded to the Department, you assume responsibility therefor?—
A. No, sir; no more than the dictation of my superior officers in the matter.

Q. If the timber was incorrectly reported, then, on that section, you consider
that you were not responsible. notwithstanding the fact that you submitted reports
that you had examined it and found the timber there?—A. Not when I obeyed the
instructions of my superior officer.

Q. Ihaveexamined a number of lots or forty-acre tracts within that section, and
I find them very wrong fromn what your reports show. You therefore consider
that you are not responsible for those reports which you made? —A. No. sir.

Q. Do you consider yourself responsible for any reports which you submitted?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. In one of those tracts I find on one lot about 500,000 feet of pine classed as
agricultural. The reports show that you and two others examined and reported
upon it. What figures have you on the NE. 1 SE. } sec. 2-150-32?—A.. 4,000 white
pine.

Q. You accepted that as correct, and reported it in your name?—A. I accepted
it from them.

Q. And by accepting it and reporting it in your own name, did you not thereby
become responsible for it?—A., That is not for me to answer.

Q. On the SW. 1 NE. 1 sec. 2-150-32, what did you report, and whose figures
did you accept’—A. 12,000 white pine.

Q. Who gave you those figures?—A. Mr. Conway.

Q. You accepted those figures and reported them as your work?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. On the SE. } NE. } of sec. 2-150-32. what did you report?—A. 15.000 white
pine.

Q. Who furnished you those figures?—A. Mr. Conway.

Q. You accepted his returns and based your returns on that, did yon?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. On the NW. ] SE. } 2-150-32, what did you report*—A. 12,000.

Q. From whom did you receive those figures, and did you accept those figures
without personally examimng the tract>—A. From Mr. Conway. I did.

Q. On the SE. 1 SE. 1 of 1ot 6 of sec. 2-150-32, what did you report?—A. 15,000.

Q. Who furnished you those figures>—A. Mr. Conway.

Q. In each of the five instances which you have stated you reported, on section
2-150-82, you accepted figures from Mr. Conway and reported them as yours
without personally examining any of those tracts, did you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how much timber there is on any one of those tracts?—A. No,
sir; only the figures I got from them.

Q. I have examined each one of those tracts and find on each of them in the
neighborhood of 200,000 feet. Now, your accepting other people’s figures and
reporting them as your work puts a very serious responsibility upon you.—A. 1
realized that then, but it seemed to be the common practice in the corps, and I had
spoken to Mr, Douglas and written to Major Baldwin.
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Q. But you informed me that you did not speak to the chief in regard to that
particular case, or that you had not done so up to the present time, and your
instructions being to go upon each forty and report what was thereon, without
reference to anybody else, you should not have accepted anybody else’s statements
and submitted it as your own work unless you were willing to assume the respon-
sibility of them, without submitting some explanation on the report that you sub-
mitted, or doing it under protest; and even then you would have had no right to
assuine that otlier figures were correct unless you were willing to assume them as
coming from yourself and taking the responsibility for it.—A. Had I been positive
as to the conclusion of this matter, I should certainly have taken a different course.

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge where other examiners besides your
own crew or those with whom you worked accepted reports from other examiners
without themselves or any one of them comprising the crew of three men making
personal examinations of the tracts reported upon by them?—A. Yes, sit; 1 have
furnished reports myself to other parties.

Q. Towhomhave you furnished the reports?—A. To Mr. Bowdre, and Mr. Long,
and Mr. Looney, and other parties whomn I can not now remember.

Q. What descriptions did you furnish them?—A. In those northeast townships
from Thief River Falls, agricultural lands.

Q. They assumed your figures to be correct and reported upon them without
themselves personally examining them, did they>—A. Yes.

Q. Do you know that your reports were correct>—A. To the best of my knowl-
edge they were.

Q. Did you furnish reports to any other examiners covering forty-acre tracts of
timber land?—A. T could not say definitely, but I am inclined to think that I did.

Q. To whom?—A. Mr. Morgan and Mr. Dowd. I can't remember the others.
Those parties I am positive of.

Q. What descriptions did you furnish them?—A. I could not tell you, sir.

Q. What towns?—A. Couldn’t say.

Q. Do you know whether or not they based their reports upon estimates which
you furnished them?—A. Presumably they did. I could not so state under oath.

Q. Do you know of any other examiners furnishing any crew or member of
crews with estimates of timbered forty-acre tract or lot, and that they accepted
such estimate without themselves or any one of them examining such tracts?—
A. The first year of the organiza.ion of the corps and the greater portion of the
next year we were all together. and it became the practice to exchange minutes,
to give crews that didu’t have the minutes, so that they could make up their
reports.

Q. Do you know of any examiner who furnished any crews with snch reports?—
A. Idon't know as I can state definitely; but, as far as I can understand, it was
the universal practice among the crew.

Q. Do you now state that you know positively that other crews besides your
own accepted estimates of forty-acre tracts as furnished to them by others, with-
out themselves personally examining it?—A. Outside of the fact that they were
furnished to me, and those that I furnished to others, I could not say anything
about the rest. All the work north of Thief River Falls was, combined together
and wag divided among the different crews, and each man signed it as his work
without first examining it, and there was not a quarter of that land that any of
the estimators ever saw.

Q. Isthere any other information you can furnish or which you have any knowl-
edge of in regard to the improper manner in which any other examiner employed
estimated timber or furnished reports covering any 40-acre tracts of timber? Andif
50, please state, and all cases of which you have any knowledge.—A. From my per-
sonal knowledge, practically, that man never did a day’s work since he has been
employed upon the corps. I refer to Mr. Allen. Iknow that Patsy Needham,
now employed at the Government school at Red Lake, did some work in town 153,
range 32, for Mr. Allen. one of the examiners, and that Mr. Allen reported it as
his own work. Mr. Needham was then cook for the crew where Mr. Allen worked.
This was either in the latter part of October or the first part of November, 1893.

Q. Did you ever report that fact to the chief or assistant chief?—A. We had no
assistant chief at that time. We talked over it with Mr. Harmon, the foreman.

Q. Is there anything else that you know in regard to any examiner reporting
having examined timber or other tracts which he did not see or in regard to their
improperly estimating what they did see, so far as you know?—A. To my personal
knowledge, no, sir, as far as I remember now.

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge of any of the examiners being absent
from their work on pay for any length of time each time?—A. I can only say for
those men that were in my crew.
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Q. What do you know in reference to those working with you being absent?—
A. I have no knowledge of the men who were employed with me being absent
more than tweuty or thirty days during the year.

Q. Was such absence at any one time or at different times, and for how long
each time? What was the longest period they were absent each time?—A.. Ithink
three weeks, if I remember right.

Q. Who and at what time was that absence, to the best of your recollection?
How often and for what length of time each time were you absent from duty?—A.
If I remember right, the first leave of absence I had commenced on the 21st day of
May, 1894, and I did not get back to work until the 30th day of July, 1894, but I
didn’t get any pay for it. In May, 1895, on the 13th day of May, I was in St. Paul
drafting maps by direction of the Department. Ithink1 spent three or four weeks
on the work.

Q. Were you absent from the work and at Red Lake Agency for eleven days dur-
ing themonth of July, 1893?—A. I wasoff and on there, sir. We werecamped at Sand
Hill River, and I used to go to the agency for the mail, and sometimes 1 would get
there on a day when the boat was not due and I would wait for the boat and then
go back.

Q. During the month of August, 1893, were you there ten days>—A. Nine days
in August, including one Sunday, after mail and waiting for boats.

Q. Were you at Fosston eight days during the month of September, 1894, six
days at one time; and if so, for what purpose?—A. On the 11th day of September
I went to Fosston to consult Dr. Umland about throat troubles; in the latter part
(f)f_September a number of us went down to Fosston for a few days to the county

air.

Q. Were you at some eighteen days during October, 1893°—A. I was
there on the 17th, 18th, 19th, 21st, and 22nd, which was Sunday, six days alto-
gether. If I mistake not, I was drafting maps for the office.

Q. Were you there at any other time five or six days at a time?—A. In December,
1893, I was there on the 23rd, 24th, 25th, and the next day we returned to camp;
came down there to spend the holidays; was compiling reports on the 9th, 10th,
and 11th days of January, 1894, On Sunday, the 18th day of February, 1894, 1
went down to Thief River Falls; absent three days; aftter supplies for camp. On
the 26th day of March my family came to Thief River Falls, and I spent three days
with them there. On the 2nd day of April I went back to the Falls; did some
drafting for the office. On the 4th day of April one of my children was injured,
and I remained there with her for about a week. On the 17th, 18th, 19th, 20th,
and 21st, 22nd, including Sunday, and to the 28th of April, 1894, I drafted a map
for the Land Office of the Red Lake Reservation.

Q. During the fall of 1894 and that winter I noticed you were at Fosston differ-
ent dates. What did you go there for?—A. I was away from the 16th of October,
going home for election, and was gone about a month; my recollection is that I
lost my time; December 8th went to Fosston for team to move camp; December
21st I again went after supplies.

Q. Have you ever seen any of the estimators under the influence of liquor at
the camps?—A. No. sir.

Q. Have you ever seen any large quantities of liquor taken to the camp?—A.
Not to my knowledge, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not any of the examiners were retained in the
camp as cook for the rest of the men?—A. This last fall of 1896 one of the men
always remained in camp to prepare the meals; but most of the lands our crew
examined were agricultural lands.

cgh Who remained in camp for such purpose?—A. Mr. Wolff, while he was
with us.

Q. Have you any other statements that you wish to make with regard to your
connection with the work of estimating timber while employed by the Government
on this work?—A. I don’t know of anything.

Q. Mr. Spears, trader at Red Lake Agency, has stated that you and Mr. Finney
owe abo%t $5 for supplies there this year. What do you know about it?>—A. That
is correct.

Q. Mr. Morrison has also stated that you owe him for some amount for board
there?—A. Yes, sir; $8. I mean to pay them as soon as I can get the necessary
money to do it with.

Dated Crookston, Minn., December 19th, 1896.

TrEO. H. BEAULIEU.
Sworn to before me this 19th day of December, 1896,
J. GEO. WRIGHT,
U. 8. Indian Inspector.
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Q. Do you know whether or not Mr. Harmon had any knowledge of the transac-
tion?—A. No, sir; I could not say that he had.

Q. Did Mr. Beaulieu ever have any conversation with you in reference to those
minutes?—A. Yes, sir; but I can’t remember the substance of that conversation
at the present time.

Q. How soon after those descriptions were given to Mr. Bodkin by you in Mr.
Beaulieu’s presence did you all leave there and go to White Earth?—A. It wasn’t
very soon, but I could not give the exact time.

Q. Have you any recollection of what time of the year it was this transaction
occurred?—A. It occurs to me that it was in the month of March, 1895.

Q. Mr. Harmon, do you remember about what time you went to White Earth?—
A. Some time in March, 1895, I think; we all went at different times.

Q. Mr. Beaulieu, do you remember what date you moved to White Earth Reser-
vation?>—A. We left Thunder Lake on the 21st day of March, 1895.

Q. Mr. Harmon, did all of the men go to White Earth at that time?—A. No;
they did not. *

Q. Mr. Conway, were you on the White Earth Reservation during the month of
April, 1895?—A. No, sir.

Q. Where weve you working during the month of April, 1895?—A. I can not
now recall.

Q. Mr. Beaulieu, where were you working between the first and 25th of May,
1895?—A. During the week ending the 4th of May, 1895, I was at home, and during
the week ending the 18th of May I was at St. Paul.

Q. Where were you the week ending May 4th, 1894?>—A. T left Thief River Falls
on the 2nd day of May to take my family back home, and arrived at home on the
3rd day of May, 1894.

Q. Where were you on the week ending May 18th, 1894?—A. I was at home, and
left home on the 21st of May to go to the hospital at St. Paul, and from that time
to the 30th of July I received no pay.

Q. At what time do you remember that reports were submitted covering work
in section 2-150-32?—A. If I remember right, the reports for those sections were
submitted the first part of April, 1895, or the latter part of March, 1895.

Q. Mr. Conway, do you remember when you did work in section 15-150-32?—A.
No, sir.

Q. Did you actually do the work there at the time the reports were subimnitted?—
A. No, sir.

Q. Did you do the work there at all*—A. No, sir.

Q. Whose reports did you accept on that work, then?>—A. Mr. Wall’s.

Q. Were you working with Mr. Wall at that time>—A. No, sir.

Q. Had Mr. Wall examined that particular work that you reported on?—A. He
told me so; yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Beaulieu, the records show that you submitted reports covering that
work in May, 1895>—A. I presume I did if the records show so.

Q. Mr. Conway, did you actually do any work on sections 3 and 10 in 150-32?—
A. No, sir.

Q. (]133 you know whether or not Mr. Bodkin or McNeill did>—A. Icould not say
they did.

Q. Do you know that they did not>—A. I presume they did not.

Q. Whose reports did you accept on that work?—A. My recollection now is
that it was from Mr, Stacy I got those reports also.

Q. Do you know whether or not Mr. Stacy furnished others with estimates upon
which they based their reports>—A. No, sir.

Q. Mr. Stacy was on the former corps, was he>—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know where Mr. Stacy procured the estimates which he furnished
you and also the reports which you gave to Mr. Bodkin.—A. No, sir; except
what he told me—that he had been on the work himself and estimated it.

Q&Had he been assigned to that work under the present corps before you were?—
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then how was it that the work was being reestimated?>—A. Mr, Harmon had
ordered a certain number of the estimators to go into this township and estimate
and report on it; but as Chief Douglas had already had reports on a number of
the sections in the township, and only required one froin certain sections at that
time, but had sent an order to that effect to Mr. Harmon, and the mail not having
reached us, we had the township completed before Mr. Harmon received the orders.

Mr. McQUILLAN, being recalled; present, Mr. Beaulieu and inspector:

Q. Mr. McQuillan, did you ever furnish any estimates of any tracts of timber
or agricultural lands to Mr. Beaulieu of tracts which he was to examine or which
were assigned to him prior to the time he had made his report on them?—A. No.

8. Doc. 70——15






TIMBER ON THE CHIPPEWA INDIAN RESERVATIONS. 221

Present: Mr. Read, Conway, Bodkin, Mr. Douglas, Mr. Beaulieu, and Mr. Parke.

Q. Mr. Read, were any instructions or authority ever given by you that any
examiners should or could furnish to one another or accept from one another
reports or estimates covering any certain tract of timber or agricultural lands
and base their reports upon such estimates without themselves personally examin-
ing tracts which had been assigned to them?—A. No, sir: I always insisted that I
had no authority to change the instructions received from the Department.

Q. Was such ever done with your knowledge?—A. On agricultural lands I
know of it by hearsay in two or three instances.

Q. Have you any knowledge of it as to timber lands?>—A. No, sir; none what-
ever.

Q. Were the original reports as furnished by each examiner forwarded by you
to the Department?— A. I forwarded the original reports from each examiner to
the chief.

Q. Mr. Douglas, were such reports forwarded by you to the Department as com-
ing to you from Mr. Read without any alterations or changes?—A. Yes, sir; only
where there was some evident error I returned them for correction; but as finally
accepted by me they were forwarded as received, without any changes.

Q. Mr. Douglas, had you any knowledge of any examiner’s accepting reports
from others as to the quantities of timber on any tract or tracts and basing their
rep%ts on such estimates without themselves personally examining the same?—
A. No, sir.

Q. Did Mr. Beaulieu ever inform you that such was being done?—A. I don’t
remember of it.

Q. Did Mr. Beaulieu ever inform you that he had been directed to accept reports
of others and not examine the lands himself?>—A. No, sir; I am positive of that.

Q. Mr. Beaulieu, you have heard what Mr. Douglas has said. You claim in
your testimony that you had several conversations on that subject, informing him
that you had been directed to accept the reports of others and not examine the
land yourself.—A. If I made that statement, I didn’t want to make it so specific;
but I would say that on several occasions, I can’t state any special time, to the
best of my recollection, of having talked with Chief Douglas, among other things,
about these matters, and that I thought it was not right. Idon't know that I ever
made any charges, directly or indirectly, but we talked of the matter.

Q. Did you or did you not inform him that you had been directed or requested
or that you had been informed that you could accept reports from others and base
your returns upon such reports without yourself examining the lands?>—A. I don’t
think that I ever did.

Q. Did you inform him at any time that such was being done hy any exam-
iners?>—A. Directly. I never did.

Mr. DougLas. When Mr. Beaulieu came to the office, or any other men of the
corps, I always talked with them freely and always impressed it upon them to do
their work carefully and well. You remember that, do you not, Mr. Beaulieu?

Mr. BEAULIEU. Yes, sir.,

Q. Mr. Read, do you know whether or not reports by different examiners, or
any examiners, were furnished covering any parts of township 150, range 32,
ghiCh was not personally examined by those who furnished such reports?—A. 1

id not.

Q. Do you know whether or not Mr. Beaulieu, Connor, and Finney, working in
a crew together, examined any of the tracts on which they report in town 150,
range 32°—A. I will state that in February, 1895, when making my regular rounds
of the camp, I urged the crews to hurry with the work then assigned to them,
as I wished to complete 150-32 before the frost was out of the ground and get
down to White Earth, the next work to be done; that Mr. Harmon in a few days
carried the assignment of the work to the different crews, and I supposed that the
work would be done.

Q. At what time did you go to White Earth?—A. In the latter part of March,
or about the middle of March; that is my impression.

. Did Mr. Beaulieu, Connor, and Finney, Mr. Bodkin. Mr. Conway, and Mr.
McNeill go to White Earth at that time, too?>—A. They had instructions to get
out as soon as they finished the work in 150-32.

Q. Did Mr. Beaulieu, Conway, and Finney accompany you about the middle of
March?—A. We didn’t go in a body, but by different roads.

Q. What time did Mr. Conway, Beaulieu. and Finney go?—A. About the last of
March. to the best of my recollection.

Q. How long did you remain at White Earth?—A. Until—we got out of there
the last week in April and the first week of May.

Q. Did Mr. Conway. Mr. Bodkin, and McNeill go to White Earth the last part
of March, 1895?—A. They did.
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Mr. Jou~ C. HARMON, recalled. Mr. Beaulieu also present.

Q. Mr. Harmon, Mr. Beaulieu reported on lot 14, section 20, town 150-85. Do
you remember whether or not you advised him to reduce his estimates on that lot;
and if so, to what extent? What wasthe nature of your conversation with him?—
A. T don’t remember any conversation I ever had with anybody to reduce any-
body's estimate,

Q. Did you have any conversation with him, if you remember, in regard to the
timber on that particuiar tract?—A. 1 don’'t remember having had any conver-
sation with him in regard to section 20; but I remember having one with Mr.
McNeill and Bowdre, but in regard to what part of the section I don't remember.

Q. You may state the substance, if you remember, of the conversation with Mr.
Bowdre and McNeill in regard to their estimates on any of that section.—A. I
think it was on a Saturday that I went out with Mr. Bowdre on the east side of
34-150-85, and during the time we were out there was a few big, large, scattered
pine that stood on the east side of the NE. 1 NE. 1 of 34; and he asked me how
many logs it would take of that kind to the thousand, and I said about four to the
thousand and four to the tree; he spoke up then and said lie found some two-log
timber yesterday, two logs to the thousand feet; and I says, ¢ If you did I would
like to see it;” on Sunday I then went over on some part of section 20—I1 donot now
remember what part—with Mr. Bowdre and McNeill, and together we measured
several fallen trees, testing some small and some larger ones, and found, as I had
previously informed them I thought we would, that it took about six logs to the
thousand; and I endeavored to give them such information as would be of service
to themn in enabling them to ascertain about how many logs of that kind of timber
it would take to the thousand.

Q@. Did you have any conversation with them at that time in regard to reducing
their estimates on that?>—A. No, sir; I did not know what they had reported. All
that we went over there for was to just determine the size of the timber.

Q. Do you remember having any conversation with Mr. Beaulien in regard to
that timber?—A. T don't think that I did.

Q. (To Mr. Beaulieu.) Do you have any recollection of that transaction?

Mr. BEAULIEU. If my memory serves me right, Mr. Bowdre informed me, after
being out with Mr. Harmon, that Mr. Harmon had informed him that we had not
got enough logs to the thousand, and after talking the matter over with him we
concluded to reduce our estimates in regard to the number of logs to the thousand.

Above questions asked by me and testified to by parties named.

J. GEOo. WRIGHT,
U. S. Indian Inspector.
CROOKSTON, MINN., Dec. 19 and 25, 1890.

DEPOSITIONS AND STATEMENTS OF WORK DONE BY LSTIMATORS.
S.

Personally appeared before me Samuel Sutor, who, after being duly sworn,
deposes as follows:

That he is the proprietor of the Commercial Hotel at Fosston, Minnesota, and
was during the years of 1894 and 1893. That during the said years the account
book of his hotel shows that the following-named men were guests at said hotel
on the following-named dates:

Henry M. Allen: Feb'y 14th, 1895, 11 days board; March 6, 1895, 6 days’ board;
and that he registered at said hotel on the following dates not included in above
account: Sept. 18th, 1894; Oct. 26. 1894, and July 2, 1896.

Theodore H. Beaulieu: August 23rd, 14 da; Sept. 9th, 1894, 1 da; Sept. 12, 1894,
1 da; Sept. 24, 1894, 6 da; Nov. 21, 1894, 1 da; Dec’r 10, 1894, 24 da; Dec’r 22,1834,
2 da; January 8, 1895. 43 da; Feb'y 23rd, 1895, 4 da; and that he registered at said
hotel on the following days not inciuded in the above, and the number of days
remaining each time can not be stated: July 24th, 1894; Oct. 15, '94.

John A. Bell: Sept. 28th to Oct. 15th, 1894, 18 da; Oct. 26th, 1894, 5 da; Nov.
1st to Nov. 16th, 16 da: Dec’r 11th, 1894, 2 da; Jan’ry 26th, 1893, 2 da; also regis-
tered on the following dates in addition to above: July 3rd, 1894; Jan'y 6, 95:
April 3rd. 1895.

Asa Bodkin: Registered the following dates, but can not state length of time
heremained such time: January 26th, 1895.
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Z.

Parsy NEEDHAM, being duly sworn, deposes and says:

That he is 37 years old, and his occupation for past 10 years has been cooking for
camps and steamboats, and working for the Government, his present position
being disciplinarian at the Government boarding school at Red Lake Agency.

That he was employed by the Government estimators of pine timber on Red
Lake Reserve from July, '93, to Sept., '94, as cook from July, '93, to May, '94, until
which time all estimators were camped together, and from May to Sept., 94,
traveled from one camp to another taking supplies to men, and other required gen-
eral work of moving camps, as from May, "94, estimators had separate camps of 3
or 4 men each.

That during the time he was cooking for them (from July, '93, to Sept., *94) dif-
erent ones were absent at agency or Fosston, or Thief River Falls, frequently,
some one being absent all the time; that he kept no memorandum of their absence
but that Allen, Bowdra, Childs, Beaulieu, and Finney (all estimators) were away
a considerable time. That during the time he was cooking for them and later
while employed in other capacity by them, John C. Harmon was the foreman and
directed work of others, and visited their camps.

That Mr. A. Douglass visited the camp of estimators twice in July, 1893, and
remained 2 days each time, once while camped on Sandy River (T. 150, 35), and
once while camped on Long Lake, same township, and again in August, 1894, while
camped on Clear Water Creek, and remained there about 2 days.

That R. A. Reid arrived in camp about March 1st, 1894, but did not go into
woods prior to May, 1894, while he was cooking, but remained in camp and others
reported to him.

That several of the men frequently visited Thief River Falls during summer of
1893 and winter of 1893 and 1894,

That H. M. Allen was gone from Nov., 1893, to Dec., 1893, about one month,
and from about May 15, 1894, to the last of June, 1894, about 6 weeks.

That he did work for H. M. Allen with Mess. McNeel and Childs, 3 daysin Octr.,
1893, while camped on Battle River. That they went along section lines of tewn-
ship 153, range 28, and that all such land was classed as agricultural.

That the said Allen at that time had a lame knee, and agreed to pay him for work-
ing in his place, which he has not done.

That from Dec., 1893, to March, 1894, they were camped on Mud River, about
35 miles northwest of Thief River TFalls, about center of township 156, R. 36;
that during Jan., Feb'y, and first part of March nearly all men remained in camp,
going to Thief River Falls frequently; and that there was considerable snow on
the ground at that time; that the men did most of the work estimating or apprais-
ing land (there being no timber) in that vicinity during Dec., 1893, soon after their
arrival there, the land being low and swamnpy in places.

That in the latter part of March, 1894, nearly all estimators went east of camp,
north of Red Lake. in the vicinity of townshlp 155, R. 36; thatall were gone about
one week, and that to the best of his recollection Messrs. Allen, Dowd, Childs, Fin-
ney, and Beaulieu remained in camp.

That about the last of March,1894, they moved to Thief River, off reserve, about
T. 155, R. 43, working on agricultural land in that vicinity; that they remained
there about one month, then went to Thief River Falls in May, 1894, all remain-
ing there about 1 week, preparing to again start out to work.

That while camped on Long Lake in Aug., 1893, Mr. P. Meehan, of Thief River
Falls, had 2 men estimating timber, who were camped near Gov’t estimators’
camp, and visited there several evenings.

PaTrsy NEEDHAM.

Sworn to betore me this 1st day of December, 1896.

J. GEO. WRIGHT,
U. S. Indian Inspector.

Parsy NEEDHAM, being recalled, states that in May, 1893, a team of horses,wagon,
and harness was purchased for hisusein taking supplies to camps, with the under-
standing that the outfit was to cost $300; that the estimators were to and did pay
$60 on same, and that he was to pay balance of $240 and retain or keep the team;
that after using the team about 3 months, while working for the estiumators, he
did not pay anything on them. not having the money, and after quitting working
for them he was unable to pay amount due, and therefore team was returned to
original purchaser or to bank which held notes on amount due. None of esti-
mators ever demanded of him that the team be returned to them: that while whole
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A 6.

Personally appeared before me RoBERT N. KITTLESON, who, after Deing duly
sworn, deposes as follows: That during the winter of 1889 and ’90 he was employed
by Messrs. Burbank & Butler, of Fergus Falls, Minnesota, as compass inan, sur-
veying certain portions of the Red Lake Indian Reservation. That during said
time he traveled over certain parts of said reservation in company with above-
named surveyors over land described as follows: Tps. 152 and 133, R. 36, 37, and
38, character of which country was swamp and low lands, portions of which was
open country and the remainder covered with poplar and tamarack growths, there
being no pine timber thereon; that in his opinion one man could travel over the
entire portions of the above-described tracts for the purpose of ascertaining if
there was any pine timber thereon in a period of thirty days, or not more than ten
days for each township.

That he also traveled over, during the same winter for the same purpose (sur-
veying), tps. 154 and 153, R. 39, 40, 41, 42,and fraction 43, to the western boundary
of the then Red Lake Reservation; that most of the above-described country was
open prairie, with small poplar growth, and that in places a man could see across
an entire township, and that there was no pine timber on any of the above-
described land; and in his opinion one man could see or examine fully any one of
the above-described townships in three or four days and require not more than
thirty days for the entire ten of the tps. named.

That in the spring of 1890 he was employed in the same capacity by George
Ralph, of Crookston, Minn.,and with him surveyed through the following-described
country: Tps. 152, R. 89, 40, and 41, character of which country was open prairie
and hay land, with poplar groves in certain localities; that there was no pine tim-
ber on any of these tps., and, in his opinion, one man could examine each of the
above tps. in from seven to ten days for the purpose of ascertaining whether or
not there was any pine timber thereon.

That in the spring of 1892 he was again employed by thesaid George Ralph in the
same capacity, and, as U. S. deputy surveyor, accompanied over hiin the following
lands: Tps. 153, R. 88, the character of which country was similar to that in tps.
152, R. 39, 40, and 41, with low, swampy ground in places; that there was then no
pine timber thereon, and, in his opinion. one man would require about seven days
to carefully examine and ascertain whether or not there was any pine timber on
this twp. That during the same season of 1892 and in the same capacity he also
subdivided, as in the previous twps. named in this affidavit, twp. 156, R. 41;
twp. 157, 39, 40, and 41, and twp. 138, R. 89, 40, and 41; that the character of
country in these twps. was open prairie, poplar growths, and swampy in places,
twp. 158, R. 39, being almost, entirely swamp.

That there was at that time no pine timber on any of the above-described twps.,
and that, in his opinion, one man could carefully examine each of these twps. in
about seven days.

ROBERT N. KITTLESON.

Sworn to before me this 29th day of November, 1896.
J. GEO. WRIGHT,
U. S. Indian Inspector.
‘Witness:
F. J. PARKE, Spl. Agent G'. L. O.

CARLTON, MIXN., Dec. 19, 1896.
Mr. W. A. HAYDEN, White Earth, Minn.

DEAR SIR: In reply to your inquiry of the 15th inst., I began estimating stand-
ing timber in 1883 for the Northern Transcontinental Survey and, with few inter-
vals, have been either estimating or scaling timber or examining lands since. Am
familiar with the best methods of timber and land examinations used both in this
country and in Europe.

Most of my work has been done in Minnesota for the Northern Pacific and the
St. Paul and Duluth Railroad Companies, and for the State of Minnesota.

Have found that on the prairie a man can thoroughly examine, map, and de-
scribe in detail one section a day. In the wooded portion of Minnesota a half
section a day can be done.
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on would depend very largely on the number of holes dug and the depth of same.
I think a half section would be a fair day’s work.
Yours truly, A. Gowan.

Respectfully referred to the Secretary of the Interior for the use of Inspector J.
George Wright.
M. R. BALDWIN.
Dec. 30.

TowEgR, MINN., Dec. 25, 1896,
Major BaLpwiN, White Earth, Minn.

DEAR SiRr: I see by the papers you are putting up a fight against the estimators
from Red Lake. I have some information that may be of value to you, but first of
all I had better explain who I am. Iam deputy sheriff and game warden at Tower,
and accompanied you on your trip to the Indian council at Gheens, and also you
went with me to the land office in Duluth to get an Indian’s patent, so you will
remember me by that. I know a special agent in the employ of the Government
now who invested $1,250 in Red Lake pine. I saw him hand the draft to a noted
pine-land man round Duluth land office, and he told me himself that he was on
the inside. The estimators had two sets of books, one official and one of their
own for private use, and he had a list of good land that would go cheap, and they
had formed a pool in Duluth to buy it up and he had put in all the money he could
scrape up. I have no personal interest in this affair, only you did me a great favor
in Washington when you were there, aud if I can do anything in return, I will do
so. I would rather not appear in this matter now, but if it is absolutely neces-
sary, you can call on me. Any further information you may want 1 shall be
pleased to give.

Very truly, yours, ARCHIE PHILIP.

Respectfully referred to the Secretary of the Interior for information of
Inspector Wright. 1 suppose the special agent referred to is formerly of the
estimator corps.

M. R. BALDWIN,

Dec. 30.

BRAINERD, MINXN., Dee. 27, 1896.
Mr. BaLpwin, White Earth, Minn.

DEeAR Sir: If you are anxious to get the public sale of Red Lake lands put one
side, you ought be able to do so, if crooked estimating cuts any figure. I worked
six months on Red Lake pine lands, and had a partner at same time: and we both
worked over 15 years in Michigan at estimating pine: and if you are honest, and
are not trying to get money out of lumbermen to hush up, you should be success-
ful. Now I will name over some sections, and I will put the price after each sec..
what it cost the lumbermen by the thousand when they bought it at Crookston last
summer. [ will name 2 secs. in each of townships where 1 worked:

Cost.
Town 150, R. 83, sec. 28__ .. ... . __.. e $0.29
Town 150, R. 33,8ec. 33 .._.___ . . il .67
Town 150, R. 84, sec. 19_ . . . el .90
Town 150, R. 84.8ec. 20_ .. __ ... ... ... . .83
Town 150, R. 85, 8ec. R4_ .. Wt
Town 150, R. 85, sec. 23 _ . il 1.10
Town 150, R. 36, sec. 19 . . .. .40
Town 150, R. 85, sec. 85 . . . .90
Town 149, R. 86, 8€C. & . e .95
Town 149, R. 86, sec. 10, . . e 1.00
Town 149, R. 805, S6C. 28 . o et e e 1.50
Town 149, R. 85, seC. 82 . e 1.00
Town 148, R. 85, seC. 9. . e 75
Town 148, R. 85, sec. 80 _ e 75
Town 148, R. 86, sec. @4 _ e .90
Town 148, R, 86, S8C, 23 . - - o it n e et e e e ——————————— .85

S. Doe. 70——16
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28.—Petition of chiefs and headmen on the Winnebegoshish Reservation,
dated November 5, 1898, addressed to the Secretary of the Interior,
requesting that logging be continued.... ... ... ... ... ...
29.—Summary of logs banked by Indian loggers, winter of 1897-98, on the
White Earth, Red Lake, Leech Lake, and Winnebegoshish reserva-
714
30.—Letter of Special Agent Parke, dated November 8, 1898, to Mr. Gus H.
Beauleaun, Leech Lake, Minn., relative to certain charges printed in
the Minneapolis papers and alleged to have been made by him._.....
31.—Copy of unsigned petition addressed to the Attorney-General, said to
have been prepared by Beauleau, who wanted to get the chiefs to
INAOTBE BAIMIO . -« oo o itn vt ieeeoe o ceae et e aeaaaeeaas
32.—Petition of chiefs and tribesmen on the Winnebegoshish Reservation,
dated November 5, 1898, addressed to the Secretary of the Interior,
praying that the present system of logging be continued..._...._...
33.—Indorsement of said petition by Winnebegoshish, Cass Lake, and Bow-
string Indians, who proclaim themselves heartily in favor of the con-
tinuation of the logging under the rules and regulations of and the
direction of the United States General Land Office...._...............

EXHIBIT H.

34.—Letter of Mr. Herbert Welsh, of the Indian Rights’ Association, Phila-
delphia, Pa., dated November 30, 1890, inclosing a letter from George
Davis, a Chippewa Indian of the Winnebegoshish Reservation, in which
he urged the allowance of logging for the present season ............
35 —Letter of the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, dated December 10, 1898,
to the Secretary of the Interior, relative to matter contained in said
letter from Mr. Herbert Welsh. ... ... ... ... . ... . .. ..i.....
26.—Letter of the Assistant Commissioner of the General Land Office, dated
December 22, 1898, addressed to Mr. Herbert Welsh, replying to his
said letter of November 30,1898 ... .. ..o c.iiot it aianes

EXHIBIT I.

37.—Letter of Special Agent Schwartz, dated December 29, 1898, transmitting
attidavits of A. J. Abercrombie and James Currie, deputy state scalers,
who scaled logs under contract last season, showing that no fraud was
perpetrated in cutting green timber under contracts scaled by them. .

EXHIBIT J.

38.—Letter of Hon. Page Morris, referring to the Commissioner of the Gen-
eral Land Office a letter (39) from J. H. Howes, Duluth, Minn., con-
taining suggestions as to estimating the standing pine timber.....__.
39.—Letter of Mr. J. H. Howes above referred to (38), dated December 4,
1898, addressed to Hon. Page Morris... ... ... oo oo .o ..
40.—Letter, dated December 26, 1898, from Chief Examiner Seelye, to whom
the letter of Mr. J. H. Howes was transmitted for report as to the
advisability of adopting suggestions contained therein, showing that
the suggestions of Howes are no improvement upon the present
method ..ot e e iiiee e

EXHIBIT K.

41.—Letter from the Assistant Commissioner of Indian Affairs, dated No-
vember 30, 1898, to the Commissioner of the General Land Office,
transmitting a letter received from William Douglass, a Leech Lake
Chippewa Indian, making complaint (42).. ... .o.oicooaiiiiiiaan.
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852.—Regulations to govern logging on White Earth, Red Lake, and White Oak
Point reservations, approved by the President October 16, 1889.. .. ...._..
NoTe.—The regulations to governlogging on White Earth, Red Lake,
and White Oak Point reservations, under provisions of the act of
February 16, 1889 (25 Stats., 673), which were approved by the Presi-
dent October 16, 1889, for the ensuing season (see regulations, begin-
ning at foot of page 68), are the same as those which were authorized
for subsequent seasons, and which have since governed the cutting and
sale of dead and down timber on the Chippewa diminished reserves.

(See pp. 68-79.)
53.—Letter of the Acting Commissiouer of Indian Affairs, dated October 11,
1890, to the Sccretary of the Interior relative to logging, suggesting
that the regulations in force the previous year approved October 16,
1829, be adopted withont moditication to govern the logging opera-
tions of the Indians on the White Earth and Red Lake reservations
the ensuing season, which regulations were reported by the agent to
have worked very satisfactorily ... o ...
54.—Letter of the Secretary of the Interior, dated October 15, 1890, addressed
to the President, containing the reason given by the Commissioner ot
Indian Affairs for not including the White Oak Point Reserve in this
year’s authority, concurring in his views, and requesting that authority
be granted the Indians on the Red Lake Diminished Reserve and on
the White Earth Reserve, Minn., to cut and dispose of the dead and
down timber during the current fiscal year under rules and regula-
tions similar to those approved October 16, 1889. Approval thereof
by the President, dated October 17, 1890.... . ... .. .. ... .. .......
35.—Letter of the Secretary of the Interior, dated December 18, 1894, to the
President, snbmitting a communication from the Commissioner of
Indian Aftairs, and recommending that authority be granted for the
cutting and sale of the dead and down timber on the Red Lake and
White Earth reservations, under the accompanying regulations pre-
scribed by the Commissioner of Indian Affairs._._ .. ... . ... ... ...
56.—Regulations to govern the cutting and sale of dead and down timber on
the Red Lake and White Karth reservations, under Executive author-
ity of December 24, 1894 ... .. .. ... il
5'7.—Letter of the Acting Secretary of the Interior, dated September 11,1895,
to the President, recommending that authority be granted for the cut-
ting and sale of the dead and down timber on the Red Lalke and White
Larth reservations for the season of 1895-96, nnder regulations similar
to those of the previons seasonm ... .. ... oo iiiiioii...
58.—Letter of the Acting Secretary of the Interior, dated September 19, 1896,
to the President, submitting a communication {from the Cominissioner
of Indian Affairs, and recommending that authority be granted to dis-
pose of all the dead timber, standing or fallen, on the White Earth
Reservation, Minn., under regulations submitted, similar, to those pre-
viously governing such work on said reservation (approved September
B S 5
59.—Letter of the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, dated October 29, 1897, to
the Secretary of the Interior, stating that the Indians of the White
Earth and Red Lake diminished reservations were under the impres-
sion that the regulations prescribed by the General Land Office to
govern logging by Indians on the ceded Chippewa reservations, Minne-
sota, nnder the provisions of an act of Congress approved June 7, 1897
(which regulations were dated August 26, 1898, and approved by the
Department), wounld apply as well to permit the disposition of the
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66.—Letter of Agent Sutherland, dated December 9, 1898, addressed to Special
Agent Jenkins, at Washington, D.C.. ... . ... ...
6'7.—Statement showing the amounts that should have been realized under
the contracts for cutting dead and down timber on the Chippewa res-
ervations in Minnesota, estimated from the scale bills and reports of
the superintendent and Indian agent that full amount had been paid,
and from the price named in the contracts.......... .. ... . .. ..
68.—Statement taken from the account of Indian Agent Sutherland, rendered
June 30, 1898, as to logging operations on Chippewa ceded lands,
MiNNeBOtA «ucmen iaant i et e et i caeaee e
69.—Report of A. J. McIntosh, superintendent of logging dead and down
timber on diminished reserve, dated January 21, 1898, to Indian Agent
Sutherland, relative to reported illegal cutting of green and growing

70.—Abstract A, showing names of Indian loggers, number of feet banked,
price per thousand, value of logs, stumpage, scalage, amounts paid con-
tractors or Indian loggers, etc., on the diminished reservations......
7 1.—Abstract B, showing names of Indian loggers, etc., as above (70) on
ceded 1ands. .. oo ... e

251

Page.

88

89

89

91

92

95

72.—Abstract C, list of names of employees . .....cceecemeniennnanann.oo. 93-100

Senate Documént No. 85, Fifty-fifth Congress, first session... 101-242

73.—Leiter from the Secretary of the Interior, transmitting, in response to Senate
resolution of May 11, 1897, the report of Indian Inspector J. George Wright,
together with accompanying papers, relative to pine lands and pine tim-
ber on the Red Lake Reservation, in the State of Minnesota..........
74.—Letter to the Secretary of the Interior, dated January 26, 1897, from the Com-
missioner of Indian Affairs (to whom the report of Indian Inspector
Wright, dated December 31, 1896, was referred by the Secretary for
consideration, report, and recommendation), commenting on said report,
making suggestions, and recommending that all the lands theretofore
offered for sale and the sale thereof not consummated, be withdrawn
from sale, and that the sales already actually made of tracts that may
be shown to contain a large excess of timber over that estimated by the
Government estimators be canceled for inadequacy of consideration,
allowing such sales to stand where the actual amount of timber stand-
ing on the lands is not greatly in excess of the estimates on which the

101

same Was SOld ... cieaciieaiaaean 101-104

9 5.—Report of United States Indian Inspector J. George Wright, dated December
31, 1896, giving results of his investigation relative to the estimation
of timber on Chippewa lands in Minnesota, in compliance with Depart-
ment instructions dated October 20 and 21, 1896, and forwarding testi-
mony taken during the course of the investigation and other state-

ments relative thereto (¢¢-109) ... .. . eie . 104-242

76.—Letter of F. J. Parke, special agent, General Land Office, dated January
9, 1897, reiterating or indorsing the report of Inspector Wright......

Statements and exhibits accompanying the report of Inspector Wright.

7'¢.—Tabulated statement showing total examinations made...............
78.—Statement showing comparative work of two estimators where same
tracts were examined on respective dates...........................

113
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105.—Exhibit A2: Deposition of Patsy Needham regarding the bringing of
a box of liquor {from railroad depot for Mr. Bell,ete...... .._..._ ...
106.—Exhibit A3: Deposition of Patrick Cavanaugh relative to several
tracts that he examined for a certain party.... .. ... ... ... .. ..
NorteE.—For method of computing quantity of timber in trees meas-
ured by calipers (referred to in Inspector Wright’s report, page 110),
see page 162.
107.—Exhibit A4: Deposition of John W. Meeley relative to tracts examined
13 I U
108.—Exhibit A5: Deposition of George A. Ralph, giving his estimate of the
time it would take to examine a certain area of land. ... .....____.
109.—Exhibit A6: Deposition of Robert N. Kittleson, and communications
from other parties, relative to the cost of examining and estimating
lands :
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